
 

 
 

Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Thursday 29 March 2012 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 5                        
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Sachin Shah  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Sue Anderson 
Mano Dharmarajah 
Thaya Idaikkadar (VC) 
 

Chris Mote 
Richard Romain 
Yogesh Teli 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Ben Wealthy 
2. Ajay Maru 
3. Krishna Suresh 
4. Krishna James 
 

1. Tony Ferrari 
2. Stephen Wright 
3. Anthony Seymour 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1881     E-mail:  daksha.ghelaniharrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 March 2012 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2012 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive references from Council and any other Committees or Panels (if any). 

 
8. INFORMATION REPORT - AUDIT OPINION PLAN 2011/12   (Pages 9 - 60) 
 
 Report of the Interim Corporate Director Resources. 

 
 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 March 2012 

9. INFORMATION REPORT - RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE   (Pages 61 - 106) 
 
 Information Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
10. INFORMATION REPORT - INSURANCE RISKS   (Pages 107 - 118) 
 
 Information Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
11. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13   (Pages 119 - 128) 
 
 Joint Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Interim Corporate Director 

Resources.  
 

12. INFORMATION REPORT - FUTURE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS   
(Pages 129 - 152) 

 
 Joint Information Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Interim Corporate 

Director Resources. 
 

13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
14. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 

item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential 
information in breach of an obligation of confidence, or of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

15. Information Report – 
Insurance Risks 

Information under paragraph 3 -  
contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 
 

 
 

 AGENDA - PART II   
 

15. INFORMATION REPORT - INSURANCE RISKS   (Pages 153 - 232) 
 
 Appendix 2 to the Information Report of the Assistant Chief Executive at item 10 

above. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 - 77 - 

 
 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE   

MINUTES 
 

26 JANUARY 2012 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Sachin Shah 
   
Councillors: * Sue Anderson 

* Mano Dharmarajah 
* Thaya Idaikkadar  
 

* Chris Mote 
* Richard Romain 
* Yogesh Teli 
 

* Denotes Member present  
 
 

136. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance. 
 

137. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made. 
 

138. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2011, be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

139. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were received, questions put 
or deputations received under the provisions of Committee Procedure 
Rules 17, 15 and 16. 
 

140. References from Council and other Committees/Panels   
 
None received. 

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 8 

1



 

- 78 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 

 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

141. INFORMATION REPORT - Annual Audit Letter 2010/11   
 
The Committee received an information report of the Interim Director Finance, 
setting out the Annual Audit Letter of the Council on the 2011 Audit, as issued 
by the Council’s external auditor Deloitte LLP. 
 
The Chairman invited representatives from Deloitte LLP to brief Members on 
the Annual Audit Letter, which set out the conclusions and the main 
messages following their audit of the Council for the financial year 2010/11.  
 
Representatives from Deloitte LLP briefed Members on the key aspects of the 
Executive Summary, as follows: 
 
• that they were pleased to have been able to issue unqualified opinions 

in relation to the Council’s financial statements, value for money, 
pension scheme annual report and the Council’s consolidated return 
for the purposes of the Whole of Government Accounts as at 
30 September 2011; 
 

• that due to an objection in relation to the 2008/09 accounts, which 
remained unresolved, it had not been possible to certify the closure of 
the audit for 2010/11 accounts nor for  2009/10 and 2008/09; 

 
• that in relation to Grants certification, Grants HOU01and PEN05, had 

now been certified and therefore all grants had been signed off without 
qualification. 

 
Members asked questions about the Local Government Pension Scheme 
annual report and sought clarification on the objection, which had resulted in 
the Council’s accounts not being certified.  In response, a representative from 
Deloitte LLP and the Interim Director Finance stated that anyone could object 
to the Financial Statements of a local authority and explained that, in relation 
to Harrow Council, the matter related to an objection against the charging of a 
fee for the use of a credit card to pay parking and traffic penalty charges.  The 
Interim Director explained the background to the case, the advice the 
government had given in relation to such charges and the anomaly of the law.  
She explained that whilst the amount involved was small, the accounts could 
not be certified until the matter had been resolved but, noted this was not an 
uncommon situation.  With regard to the Pension Scheme annual report, 
Deloitte LLP had been satisfied that there were no significant issues arising as 
a result of which an unqualified opinion had been issued in advance of the 
1 December 2011 deadline. 
 
The representatives from Deloitte LLP responded to additional questions from 
Members.  They confirmed that the financial statements presented by the 
Council under the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the 
first time had been handled positively and they welcomed the production of a 
timetable by the Council in meeting various deadlines.  The Finance 

2



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 - 79 - 

Directorate had undertaken a number of changes to the previous accounts to 
meet the requirements of the new Code of Practice.  
 
Members agreed that the delay in publishing the accounts on the Council’s 
website, governed by regulations, was unacceptable and should not happen 
again.  They enquired how the implementation of the Bribery Act 2011 would 
be monitored and enforced by the Council’s external auditors.  In response, 
the Divisional Director Risk, Audit and Fraud stated that the requirements of 
the Act would be incorporated in the Council’s policy on Fraud.  A 
representative from Deloitte LLP stated that they would review the procedures 
in place and advised that this element would also be built into their own Plans.  
He did not consider that this area would require a significant amount of focus, 
provided the procedures put in place were robust.  The practical impact of the 
Act was that the Council should review their anti-corruption policies to ensure 
regulatory risk was mitigated. 
 
The Chairman thanked representatives from Deloitte LLP for their 
contributions. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted and the Interim Director Finance be 
requested to ensure that there were no delays in the publishing of accounts 
on the Council’s website in the future. 
 

142. INFORMATION REPORT - Risk, Audit and Fraud Division Activity Update   
 
The Committee received an information report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive, which set out the current work streams of the Risk, Audit and 
Fraud Group of services.  The report set out the progress made and future 
work planned in respect of the Group, as the Committee was responsible for 
monitoring this area. Confidential appendices were also considered by 
Members. 
 
The Divisional Director highlighted the key achievements in relation to the 
insurance service procurement for property and liability cover which would be 
reported to Cabinet in February 2012, raising awareness in relation to the 
carrying of sensitive data, progress made in implementing a two year Health 
and Safety Plan which was on track, achievements of the Anti-Fraud Service, 
Risk Management Strategy which included the Council’s new draft risk 
appetite  statement, incorporating a monitoring tool which would be presented 
to Cabinet in April 2012. 
 
A Member thanked the Divisional Director Risk, Audit and Fraud for resolving 
the public liability insurance issue in relation to the use of Community 
Premises at 27 Northolt Road, South Harrow, for the benefit of the community 
groups. 
 
A couple of the Members were of the view that whilst the anti-fraud elements 
were informative and addressed fully in the report, the report did not identify 
the types of insurable risks faced by the Council in detail, which was also an 
important aspect of the Committee’s monitoring role.  Moreover, the levels of 
self insurance needed to be identified in the report, including land value and 
building costs which appeared to be moving in different directions.  The limits 

3



 

- 80 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 

placed on the different types of insurance were also important.  Additionally, 
the report proposed for Cabinet ought to initially be scrutinised by the 
Committee in future.  
 
In response, the Interim Director Finance reminded Members that a 
comprehensive report had been submitted at the September 2011 meeting 
and was of the view that a balance had to be struck on the level of detail 
provided in reports.   
 
The Chairman was of the view that the Committee’s remit was wide and 
suggested that it might be beneficial to revisit the terms of reference at the 
future date.  Moreover, informal posts of Lead Members had been set up to 
allow the Committee’s role to be enhanced and not become cumbersome.  
 
The Divisional Director undertook to provide a summary of the major classes 
of cover required, trends of claims and actuary review results which would be 
of interest to Members, with the September 2011 report being used as a basis 
whilst providing a refresh and an update.  In response to a further question, 
he assured the Member that, following the implementation of a new team 
structure, the Health and Safety team appointment process to vacant posts 
was underway and should be completed by June 2012. 
 
A Member sought officers’ opinion on the types of risks faced by the Council 
and asked if a sixth risk, namely ‘Counterparty or Stakeholder Risk’, needed 
to be addressed.  Moreover, the concept of risk was not widely understood 
and the Member suggested that the Committee would benefit from a 
presentation in this regard.  The Chairman agreed with this approach and 
asked that the Interim Risk Manager be invited to the next meeting. 
 
Members noted that Harrow had been successful in tackling tenancy fraud 
and had received good publicity in previous years.  Members were informed 
that a great deal of evidence gathering was required to ensure success.  They 
asked about the financial aspects and thresholds set against risks and were 
advised that these details would be submitted to the next meeting in the form 
of a matrix setting out the parameters under which the Council operated. 
 
Another Member enquired how the ‘Public Purse’ would be protected once the 
Audit Commission had been disbanded.  The Divisional Director Risk, Audit 
and Fraud stated that currently, the Audit Commission produced an annual 
document ‘Protecting the Public Purse’, which focused on fighting fraud 
against local government.  Once the Audit Commission had been disbanded, 
it was likely that this area of work would devolve to local authorities who were 
lobbying for it, with Fraud Teams based locally.  Networking arrangements 
could be put in place with the Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) 
issuing a national plan which local authorities would adhere to. 
 
Members also discussed the confidential appendices, particularly the report 
relating to the major incident at Belmont Circle on 3 October 2011.  The 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Service Manager informed 
Members that a number of lessons had been learnt from the incident, the 
majority of which had been implemented.  Only one action remained 
outstanding.  In response to question, the officer informed Members that in 

4



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 - 81 - 

terms of providing accommodation to a large number of people during an 
incident, mutual aid arrangements were in place.  Moreover, there were 
regional aid agreements should the number of people to be accommodated 
went beyond a figure of 1,200 people.  Schools too had arrangements in 
place, particularly in relation to the exam timetable.  Trained police officers 
and those from the Fire Brigade were charged with dealing with the 
vulnerable.  Members welcomed the post incident training they had received 
and agreed that an aide-memoire of the ‘Do’s and Don’ts’ of handling a major 
incident ought to be issued to Members, as it would particularly assist those 
who had not been trained.  The Chairman stated that mandatory training for 
Members ought to be introduced on an annual basis.  Furthermore, it would 
be appropriate for Members to observe officers helping during an incident. 
 
Members felt that the incident had been handled well and was considered to 
be a good news storey.  It was important that residents were briefed on this 
matter through the Council’s ‘Harrow People’ magazine.  The Divisional 
Director undertook to take this request forward. 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the report be noted; 

 
(2) the next meeting of the Committee be themed on Risk with a 

presentation being made by the Interim Risk Manager, including an 
examination of the Council’s risk register; 

 
(3) the Member Development Panel be advised of the view that the 

training provided to Members in dealing with major incidents be made 
mandatory. 

 
143. Half Year 2011/12 Treasury Management Activity   

 
Members considered a report of the Interim Director Finance, which set out 
the half year summary of the Treasury Management activity for 2011/12. 
Members were asked to consider the report and review the recommendations 
made by Cabinet to Council and prior to the consideration by Cabinet of the 
2012/13 Strategy in February 2012. 
 
The Treasury and Pension Fund Manager introduced the report and outlined 
the key aspects of the report, particularly the Creditworthiness and 
Counterparty policy and long term borrowing.  He added that, at its December 
2011 meeting, the Committee had agreed to recommend to Council a revised 
Counterparty Policy.  Maximum maturities for the Council’s bank would be 
limited to 36 months for the nationalised banks and three months for all other 
counterparties and would only be extended with the approval of Cabinet. 
Additionally, the government had changed the housing subsidy system, as a 
result of which the Council would have to pay £89 million to the government 
by 28 March 2012.  This would entail the Council borrowing long term from 
the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), as this method was seen as the most 
appropriate way forward. 
 

5



 

- 82 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 

A Member urged caution on the use of advisors and remarked that the 
financial markets were continuously changing and understanding them was a 
real challenge for all, including specialist advisors.  He considered the views 
of the credit rating agencies to be an important aspect of any future financial 
planning.  The same Member stated that he would seek further clarification 
separately on various aspects of the report from the Interim Director Finance, 
but confirmed that he could not support Credit Default Swaps (CDS).   
 
In response, the Treasury and Pension Fund Manager advised that officers 
thought it prudent to look at all credit rating agencies, and that the 
Creditworthiness and Counterparty policy was ‘owned’ by officers and 
Members and not advisors. In this case, Sector, a leading and independent 
provider of capital financing, treasury advisory and strategic consulting 
services to UK public services organisations, had advised the Council.  He 
assured the Member that officers discussed appropriate limits and examined 
relevant and available information before embarking on or proposing changes 
to existing policy.  The officer also informed the Member that Council did not 
have proper custody arrangements in place or resources to hold Bonds.  
 
In reply to a question from the same Member, the Interim Director Finance 
stated that the internal borrowing, as represented by the difference between 
the Capital Financing Requirement and external borrowing, had been 
accumulated over many years and impacted by changing Local Government 
accounting rules and would be difficult to rationalise. 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the half year Treasury Management activity for 2011/12 be noted; 
 
(2) in reviewing the recommendations made to Council by Cabinet, namely 

to approve the revised Counterparty Policy for investments and the 
increase in authorised limit of £378m and operational boundary of 
£366m for external debt, the Committee noted the comments made by 
individual Members in the preamble above. 

 
144. Any Other Urgent Business   

 
Lead Members 2011/12 
 
Due to the need to make progress on this matter, Members agreed to 
consider this item as urgent business. 
 
The Chairman stated that it was important that the following Lead Member 
positions were filled from with the Committee’s membership and, where 
appointments had already been made, regular meetings between relevant 
officers and Members should commence. 

6



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 - 83 - 

 
Function 
 

Member 
Governance 
 

[Position Vacant] 
Risk Management 
 

[Position Vacant] 
Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity 
 

Councillor Richard Romain 

Anti Fraud 
 

Councillor Sue Anderson 
Health and Safety 
 

Councillor Yogesh Teli 
Internal Audit 
 

[Position Vacant] 
Insurance 
 

Councillor Mano Dharmarajah 
Information Management 
 

Councillor Yogesh Teli 
Treasury Management 
 

Councillor Richard Romain 
Finance 
 

Councillor Richard Romain 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
  
(1) the Divisional Director Risk, Audit and Fraud write to all Members and 

Reserve Members of the Committee with a view to enlisting them on 
the previously agreed Lead Member positions; 

 
(2) regular meetings between relevant officers and Lead Members 

commence with immediate effect. 
 

145. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 
RESOLVED:  That, in accordance with Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following item for the reasons set out below: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

9. INFORMATION 
REPORT - Risk, Audit 
and Fraud Division 
Activity Update – 
Appendices 1 and 5 

Information under paragraphs 1 
(relating to any individual) and 7 
(action taken ot to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, 
investigation and prosecution of 
crime). 

 
 

7



 

- 84 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 26 January 2012 

146. INFORMATION REPORT - Risk, Audit and Fraud Division Activity Update   
 
The Committee received confidential appendices to the report of the Assistant 
Chief Executive outlining the response to the Belmont Circle incident and 
details of fraud cases. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the appendices be noted. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.08 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR SACHIN SHAH 
Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\9\9\AI00076997\$ijsam3i1.doc 

 
 
REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT 
AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

29  March 2012 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT  
Audit Opinion Plan 2011-12 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Julie Alderson, Interim Corporate Director 
Resources 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Accounts Opinion Audit Plan 
2011-12 
Appendix   2 - Pension Fund  Annual Report 
Audit Plan 2011 -12 
Appendix   3  - Audit Report on Grants 
Certification 2010-11 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This Report provides the Committee with the opportunity to see the 2011-12 
Accounts Audit Opinion Plan 2011-12 and the Pension Fund Annual Report 
Audit Plan 2011-12. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
The Committee is asked to note: 
 

(i) the 2011-12 Accounts Audit Opinion Plan and Pension Fund Annual 
Report Audit Plan 

(ii) the Grants Certification Report for 2010 -11 
 
To keep the Committee informed of current issues in relation to the Audit of 
the Council’s Accounts. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 9 to 60 

9



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\9\9\AI00076997\$ijsam3i1.doc 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Audit Plan for 2011-12 
 
1. The Accounts Opinion Audit Plan provides the Council with clarity about 
how the external audit of the accounts for 2011-12 will be conducted and 
highlights the key audit risks. It is an extremely useful document, as it will help 
the Council to plan and prioritise its work on the accounts. It also gives the 
Committee early sight of the issues that will be pertinent. 
 
2. The Committee is asked to consider the plan and in particular the key audit 
risks. The External Audit has already carried out some preparatory work for 
the audit of the 2011-12 accounts, and the Council is working to address the 
key audit risks. 
 
3. Committee will receive a verbal presentation of the report. 
 
Grant Certifications 2010-11 
 
4. The Report on Grant Certifications in relation to 2010-11 is attached as 
appendix 3 to this report. Eight grant claims and returns were certified for 
2010-11 of which five resulted in an unqualified opinion. Adjustments were 
made to three grant claims, only one of which resulted in a financial impact 
(an increase of £2,000). These mainly related to incorrect information kept on 
the system and are being followed up by the relevant officers.   
 
 
Financial Implications 
 
5. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:  12 March 2012 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:  Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 12 March 2012 

   
 

 
 

10



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\9\9\AI00076997\$ijsam3i1.doc 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Jennifer Hydari: Divisional Director Finance and 
Procurement. 
Jennifer.hydari@harrow.gov.uk 
Telephone:02084241393 
 
 
Background Papers:  None. 
 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



January 2012 

London Borough of Harrow Council 

Report to the Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee

Audit Plan for the 2011/12 Pension Fund Annual 
Report Audit 

13



Contents

Executive summary 1 

1. Scope of work and approach 3 

2. Key audit risks 4 

3. Consideration of fraud 6 

4. Internal control 8 

5. Timetable 9 

6. Responsibility Statement 10 

Appendix 1: Briefing on Audit Matters 11 

14



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   1 

Executive summary 
We have pleasure in setting out in this document details of our proposed audit scope for the London Borough of 
Harrow Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2012. 

Audit scope

Our audit 
scope is 
unchanged 
from last year 

Based on guidance issued by the Audit Commission, auditors are again asked, for 
audit purposes, to treat the Local Government Pension Fund (LGPS) as a stand-
alone body, with separate audit plan and reports to those charged with 
governance. 

Our audit of the pension fund is planned in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Audit Commission and in accordance with additional 
guidance issued by the Commission in relation to the audit of pension funds.  
However, this only extends to the audit of the accounts and there is no 
requirement for a value for money conclusion on the pension fund accounts 
specifically.  Aspects of the use of resources framework will inform the value for 
money conclusion for the Authority and cover issues relating to the pension fund. 

The pension fund accounts remain part of the accounts of the Authority as a 
whole.  The LGPS Regulations require administering authorities to prepare an 
annual report for the pension fund, which should incorporate the annual accounts.  
Our audit report on the Authority accounts will continue to cover the pension fund 
section of that document.  In addition, we are asked by the Commission to issue 
an audit report for inclusion in the annual pension fund report. 

Section 1 

Timetable

Our work will be 
carried out at the 
same time as our 
audit of the 
Authority 

The timetable is set out in Section 5.  The fieldwork will be carried out at the same 
time as our work on the Authority’s financial statements in order for us to have 
completed the audit of the financial statements in time for inclusion in the 
Authority’s annual report. 

Section 5 

Key audit risks

We summarise 
the key audit 
risks identified 
at this stage 

The key audit risks which we have identified as part of our overall audit strategy 
are:

1. In view of the complexity arising from the participation of different admitted 
bodies within the fund, together with the fact that members may pay different 
rates depending on their pensionable pay, we have included the calculation 
and payment of contributions as areas of audit risk.  

2. As there are a number of complexities to the calculation of both benefits in 
retirement and benefits paid on ill health and death, we have identified 
benefits payable as an area of specific risk. 

3. Previously, the pension fund has invested in private equity and derivative 
financial instruments.  Such investments can give rise to complexities in 
accounting, disclosure and measurement; accordingly we will treat the 
appropriateness of the accounting for these investments as a risk. 

4. Management override of key controls.  This is a presumed area of risk within 
auditing standards. 

Section 2 

15



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   2 

Executive summary (continued) 

Prior year uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies

No prior year 
issues 

There were no significant unadjusted misstatements or uncorrected disclosure 
deficiencies reported to you in respect of the 2010/11 accounts. 

Independence

We reconfirm 
our
independence 

Deloitte have developed important safeguards and procedures in order to ensure 
our independence and objectivity.   

These are set out in the “Independence policies and procedures” section included 
at Appendix 1. 

We will reconfirm our independence and objectivity for the year ending 31 March 
2012 in our final report to the GARM Committee.  We have discussed our 
relationships with the Authority in our separate audit plan for the audit of the 
Authority’s financial statements. 

Appendix 1 

Fee

Fee in line with 
prior year 

We propose a fee of £35,000 excluding VAT (PY: £35,000) which is in line with 
the fee scale advised by the Audit Commission. 

Engagement team

Paul Schofield will lead the audit and will be supported by David Hobson who will 
be the day to day contact on the engagement. 

Matters for those charged with governance

Briefing on audit 
matters

We have attached at Appendix 1 our “Briefing on audit matters” which includes 
those additional items which we are required to report upon in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland).  We will report to you at the 
final audit stage any matters arising in relation to those requirements. 

Appendix 1 

Materiality and prior year uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies

Planning
materiality set 
at £5.3m 

Reporting 
threshold set 
at £0.22m 

We calculate materiality on the basis of the net assets of the fund, but have 
restricted this to the materiality established for the audit of the Authority’s financial 
statements as a whole.   

We estimate materiality for the year to be £5.3 million (2011: £6.1 million).  We 
will report to the Governance, Audit and Risk Management (“GARM”) Committee 
on all unadjusted misstatements greater than £0.26 million (2011: £0.23 million).   

Further details on the basis used for the calculation of materiality are given in our 
audit plan for the audit of the Authority’s financial statements. 

16



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   3 

1. Scope of work and approach 
Overall scope and approach 

Audit
objectives are 
explained in 
more detail in 
our “Briefing 
on audit 
matters” 
document 
attached as 
Appendix 1. 

Based on guidance issued by the Audit Commission, auditors are again asked, for audit 
purposes, to treat the Local Government Pension Fund (LGPS) as a stand-alone body, with 
separate audit plan and reports to those charged with governance. 

Local LGPS funds administered by administering authorities are not statutory bodies in their 
own right.  Therefore, it is not possible for separate audit appointments to be made for LGPS 
audits.  We are therefore appointed to the audit of the LGPS through the existing Audit 
Commission appointment arrangements.   

Our audit of the pension fund is planned in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued 
by the Audit Commission and in accordance with additional guidance issued by the 
Commission in relation to the audit of pension funds.  However, this only extends to the audit 
of the accounts and there is no requirement for a value for money conclusion on the pension 
fund accounts specifically.  Aspects of the use of resources framework will inform the value for 
money conclusion for the Authority and cover issues relating to the pension fund.  

Our audit objectives are set out in our “Briefing on audit matters” document attached as 
Appendix 1.

The audit opinion we intend to issue as part of our audit report on the Authority’s financial 
statements will reflect the financial reporting framework adopted by the pension fund.  This is 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
(the “Code of Practice”). 

For pension fund statements, we have initially considered the net assets of the fund as the 
benchmark for our materiality assessment as this benchmark is deemed to be a key driver of 
business value, is a critical component of the financial statements and is a focus for users of 
those statements.  However, we have restricted our estimate of materiality to the amount set 
for the Authority’s financial statements as a whole, which is £5.3 million.  Our separate audit 
plan for the audit of the Authority’s financial statements includes further information on how we 
derived this estimate.  The concept of materiality and its application to the audit approach are 
set out in our Briefing on audit matters document. The extent of our procedures is not based 
on materiality alone but also on the quality of systems and controls in preventing material 
misstatement in the financial statements.   

The Audit Commission has also determined that auditors should give an opinion in accordance 
with auditing standards on the financial statements included in the pension fund annual report.  
This entails the following additional work over and above giving an opinion on the pension fund 
accounts included in the statement of accounts: 

  Comparing the accounts to be included in the pension fund annual report with those 
included in the statement of accounts. 

  Reading the other information published within the pension fund annual report for 
consistency with the pension fund accounts. 

  Where the pension fund annual report is not available until after the auditor reports on 
the financial statements, undertaking appropriate procedures to confirm that there are 
no material post-balance sheet events arising after giving the opinion on the pension 
fund accounts included in the financial statements. 

  The financial statements included in the pension fund annual report are prepared on 
the basis of the same proper practices - the Code of Practice - as the financial 
statements included in the statement of accounts.  

  Consider whether the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Regulation 34 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 
2008.

17



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   4 

2. Key audit risks 
Based upon our initial assessment we will concentrate specific audit effort in 2011/12 on the following areas:  

Contributions 

Tiered
contribution 
rates increase 
complexity  

Unlike the position in the private sector, we are not required to issue a statement about 
contributions in respect of the LGPS.   However, this remains a material income stream for the 
pension fund and in view of the complexity introduced by the participation of more than one 
employer in the fund, and a benefit structure with tiered contribution rates, we have identified 
this as a specific risk. 

Deloitte
response 

We will perform the following procedures to ascertain whether employer and employee 
contributions have been calculated, scheduled and paid in accordance with the schedule: 

 Review the design and confirm the implementation of key controls present at the Fund for 
ensuring contributions from all Scheduled and Admitted bodies are identified and 
calculated correctly. 

 Recalculate contributions for a sample of individual members to ensure they are 
calculated in accordance with the schedule of rates. 

 Perform analytical review procedures to gain assurance over the total contributions 
received in the year.   

 Reconcile the membership movements in the year to the Financial Statements, ensuring 
that these include members from the admitted bodies. 

We note that the Authority is not responsible for the calculation of contributions and will 
therefore perform such tests with the assistance of the other scheduled and admitted bodies.  

Benefits 

There are a 
number of 
complexities to 
the calculation 
of both 
benefits in 
retirement and 
ill health and 
death benefits. 

Changes were made to the local government pension fund from April 2008 which introduced 
complexities into the calculation of both benefits in retirement and benefits paid on ill health 
and death. 

In respect of benefits in retirement, benefits are accumulated on two different bases for service 
pre and post 1 April 2008. The calculation of the pensionable pay on which benefits will 
depend may be varied by the individual opting to take account of pay earned in any of the 10 
years prior to retirement.  Also individuals now enjoy greater flexibility in their choice of the mix 
of pension and lump sum.   

In respect of ill health and death benefits, the calculation of the pensionable pay on which 
benefits will depend may be varied by the individual opting to take account of pay earned in 
any of the 10 years prior to retirement. Some employers may not have retained all the 
necessary records. 

The Government has also completed the process to amend the revaluation and index factors 
for statutory minimum uplift from the Retail Price Index to the Consumer Price Index.  This 
change has further increased the complexity of benefit calculations.  

Deloitte
response 

We will perform the following procedures to ascertain whether benefits payable have been 
calculated correctly in accordance with the fund rules.  

  Review the design and confirm the implementation of controls present at the Fund for 
ensuring the accuracy, completeness and validity of benefits. 

  Test a sample of new pensioner calculations and other benefits paid by tracing to 
supporting documentation and reviewing the calculation, to ensure it is in line with the 
scheme rules.    

  Perform analytical review procedures over the pensions paid in the year based on prior 
year audited numbers adjusted for changes in pensioner numbers and any pension 
increases.  

18



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   5 

2. Key audit risks (continued) 
Financial instruments 

Private equity 
and derivatives 
are complex to 
value 

The pension fund makes some use of investments in private equity and derivative financial 
instruments.   

Private equity funds are complex to value and include an element of judgement on the part of 
the investment manager.  Given that these funds form a material balance within the pension 
fund accounts, we have identified the valuation of these funds as a specific risk. 

The fund also makes use of derivatives which can be complex in terms of accounting, 
measurement and disclosure requirements.

Deloitte
response 

For the private equity investments we will seek to understand the approach adopted in the 
valuation of such investments and inspect supporting documentation such as cash flow reports, 
quarterly investment advisor reports and audited financial statements.  We will tailor further 
procedures depending on the outcome of that work and our assessment of the risk of material 
error taking into account the fund’s investment holding at the year end.  

We will update our understanding of the rationale for the use of the derivatives and then test 
compliance with the accounting, measurement and disclosure requirements of the Code of Audit 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The use of expert advice may be required for testing 
these balances.

Management override of controls 

Audit guidance 
includes a 
presumed risk 
of management 
override of key 
controls.

Auditing standards recognise that management may be able to override controls that are in 
place to present inaccurate or even fraudulent financial reports.  They include a presumption of 
a risk of management override of key controls. 

Deloitte
response 

We will focus our work on testing of journals, significant accounting estimates and any unusual 
transactions, including those with related parties. 

19



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   6 

3. Consideration of fraud 
3.1 Characteristics 

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or error.  The distinguishing factor between 
fraud and error is whether the underlying action that results in the misstatement of the financial statements is 
intentional or unintentional.  Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as auditors – misstatements 
resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation of assets. 

We are aware that management has the following processes in place in relation to the prevention and detection of 
fraud which include: 

  Anti-fraud and corruption policy 

  Codes of conduct 

  Whistle-blowing procedures 

3.2 Responsibilities 

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with management and those charged with 
governance, including establishing and maintaining internal controls over the reliability of financial reporting, 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  As auditors, we 
obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 

3.3 Fraud inquiries 

We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud: 

Management Internal Audit Those charged with governance 

Management's assessment of 
the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially 
misstated due to fraud including 
the nature, extent and 
frequency of such assessments; 

Management's process for 
identifying and responding to 
the risks of fraud in the entity; 

Management's communication, 
if any, to those charged with 
governance regarding its 
processes for identifying and 
responding to the risks of fraud 
in the entity; 

Management's communication, 
if any, to employees regarding 
its views on business practices 
and ethical behaviour; and 

Whether management has 
knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud 
affecting the entity. 

Whether internal audit has 
knowledge of any actual, suspected 
or alleged fraud affecting the entity, 
and to obtain its views about the risks 
of fraud. 

How those charged with governance 
exercise oversight of management's 
processes for identifying and responding 
to the risks of fraud in the entity and the 
internal control that management has 
established to mitigate these risks; and 

Whether those charged with governance 
have knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the 
entity.

20



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   7 

3.  Consideration of fraud (continued) 

We will make inquiries of others within the Authority as appropriate.  We will also inquire into matters arising from 
your whistling blowing procedures. 

3.4 Process and documentation 

We will gather this information through meetings and review of relevant documentation, including meeting minutes. 

3.5 Representations 

We will ask for you and management to make the following representations towards the end of the audit process: 

  We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud and error. 

  We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

  We are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud / We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud 
or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the entity and involves: 

- officers; 
- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

  We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 
entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

21



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   8 

4. Internal control 
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 

As set out in "Briefing on audit matters" (Appendix 1), our risk assessment procedures will include obtaining an 
understanding of controls considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’.  This involves evaluating the design of the 
controls and determining whether they have been implemented (“D & I”).  Our audit approach consists of the 
following:

The results of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls will be collated and the impact on the extent of 
substantive audit testing required will be considered.  At this stage, we do not propose to carry out tests on the 
operating effectiveness of controls and will obtain our assurance wholly from substantive testing procedures.  We 
have selected this approach as the most efficient. 

Our audit is not designed to provide assurance as to the overall effectiveness of the controls operating within the 
Authority, although we will report to management any recommendations on controls that we may have identified 
during the course of our audit work. 

22



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   9 

5. Timetable 
2012

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Prepare plan based on discussions 

with management 

        

Early discussion of Authority’s 

approach to risks areas 

        

Performance of detailed audit 

planning fieldwork 

     

Audit fieldwork/audit issues 

meetings

     

Review of pension fund annual 

report

      

Management 

Preparation of our report on the 

2011/12 audit 

       

Audit plan          
Pensions 

Committee  Report to the GARM Committee on 

the 2011/12 accounts audit 

      

Our work during these visits will be closely co-ordinated with the work carried out on other parts of main audit of 
Harrow Council. 

23



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   10 

6. Responsibility statement 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission explains the 
respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body and this report is prepared on the basis of, and our 
audit work is carried out, in accordance with that statement.  

This report should be read in conjunction with the “Briefing on audit matters” attached at Appendix 1 and sets out 
those audit matters of governance interest which came to our attention during the audit to date.  Our audit was not 
designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to members and this report is not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all weaknesses which may exist in internal control or of all improvements which may be made. 

This report has been prepared for the Members of Harrow Council, as a body, and we therefore accept 
responsibility to you alone for its contents.  We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since 
this report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. 

Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants  

St Albans
       January 2012 

24



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   11 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 
Published for those charged with governance 

This document is intended to assist those charged with governance to understand 
the major aspects of our audit approach, including explaining the key concepts 
behind the Deloitte Audit methodology including audit objectives and materiality. 

Further, it describes the safeguards developed by Deloitte to counter threats to our 
independence and objectivity. 

This document will only be reissued if significant changes to any of those matters 
highlighted above occur. 

We will usually communicate our audit planning information and the findings from 
the audit separately.  Where we issue separate reports these should be read in 
conjunction with this "Briefing on audit matters". 

Approach and scope of the audit  

Primary audit objectives We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & 
Ireland) as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”).  Our statutory audit 
objectives are: 

 To express an opinion in true and fair view terms to the members on the 
financial statements; 

 To express an opinion as to whether the accounts have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework; and 

 To form an opinion as to whether the financial statements contain the 
information specified in regulation 3 and the schedule to the Occupational 
Pension Schemes (Requirement to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement 
from the Auditor) Regulations 1996;  

Other reporting 
objectives 

Our reporting objectives are to: 

 Present significant reporting findings to those charged with governance.  This 
will highlight key judgements, important accounting policies and estimates and 
the application of new reporting requirements, as well as significant control 
observations. 

 Provide timely and constructive letters of recommendation to management.  
This will include key business process improvements and significant controls 
weaknesses identified during our audit. 

25



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   12 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 
(continued)
Materiality The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary misstatements 
but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to appropriate accounting 
principles and statutory requirements. 

"Materiality" is defined in the International Accounting Standards Board's 
"Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements" in the 
following terms: 

"Information is material if its omission or misstatement could influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality 
depends on the size of the item or error judged in the particular circumstances of its 
omission or misstatement.  Thus, materiality provides a threshold or cut-off point 
rather than being a primary qualitative characteristic which information must have if 
it is to be useful."  

We determine materiality based on professional judgment in the context of our 
knowledge of the audited entity, including consideration of factors such as 
stakeholder expectations, sector developments, financial stability and reporting 
requirements for the financial statements.  We use a different materiality for the 
examination of the summary contributions to that used for the financial statements 
as a whole. 

We determine materiality to: 

 Determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures. 

 Evaluate the effect of misstatements. 

The extent of our procedures is not based on materiality alone but the quality of 
systems and controls in preventing material misstatement in the financial 
statements, and the level at which known and likely misstatements are tolerated by 
you in the preparation of the financial statements. 

The materiality in relation to the audit of the pension scheme's financial statements 
will not necessarily coincide with the expectations of materiality of an individual 
member of the scheme in relation to his or her expected benefits.  Our judgments 
about materiality are made in the context of the financial statements as a whole and 
the account balances and classes of transactions reported in those statements, 
rather than in the context of an individual member's designated assets, 
contributions or benefits. 

Uncorrected 
misstatements 

In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK 
and Ireland)”) we will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements (including 
disclosure deficiencies) identified during our audit, other than those which we 
believe are clearly trivial.  

ISAs (UK and Ireland) do not place numeric limits on the meaning of ‘clearly trivial’.  
The Audit Engagement Partner, management and those charged with governance 
will agree an appropriate limit for 'clearly trivial'.  In our report we will report all 
individual identified uncorrected misstatements in excess of this limit and other 
identified errors in aggregate.  

We will consider identified misstatements in qualitative as well as quantitative terms.

26



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   13 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 
(continued)
Audit methodology Our audit methodology takes into account the changing requirements of auditing 

standards and adopts a risk based approach.  We utilise technology in an efficient 
way to provide maximum value to trustees and create value for management and 
those charged with governance whilst minimising a “box ticking” approach. 

Our audit methodology is designed to give trustees the confidence that they 
deserve.

          For controls considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’ we evaluate the design of the 
controls and determine whether they have been implemented (“D & I”).  The 
controls that are determined to be relevant to the audit will include those: 

 Where we plan to obtain assurance through the testing of operating 
effectiveness; 

 Relating to identified risks (including the risk of fraud in revenue recognition, 
unless rebutted and the risk of management override of controls); 

 Where we consider we are unable to obtain sufficient audit assurance through 
substantive procedures alone; and 

 To enable us to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements and design and perform further audit procedures. 

Other requirements of 
International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland)

ISAs (UK and Ireland) require we communicate the following additional matters: 
ISA (UK & 
Ireland) Matter 

ISQC 1 Quality control for firms that perform audits and review of financial statements, 
and other assurance and related services engagements 

240 The auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements 

250 Consideration of laws and regulations in an audit of financial statements 

265 Communicating deficiencies in internal control to those charged with governance 
and management 

450 Evaluation of misstatements identified during the audit 

505 External confirmations 

510 Initial audit engagements – opening balances 

550 Related parties 

560 Subsequent events 

570 Going concern 

600 Special considerations – audits of group financial statements (including the work 
of component auditors) 

705 Modifications to the opinion in the independent auditor’s report 

706 Emphasis of matter paragraphs and other matter paragraphs in the independent 
auditor’s report 

710 Comparative information – corresponding figures and comparative financial 
statements

720 Section A: The auditor’s responsibilities relating to other information in 
documents containing audited financial statements

27



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   14 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 
(continued)
Independence policies and procedures

Important safeguards and procedures have been developed by Deloitte to counter threats or perceived threats to our objectiv
which include the items set out below.   

Safeguards and 
procedures 

 Every opinion (not just statutory audit opinions) issued by Deloitte is subject to 
technical review by a member of our independent Professional Standards 
Review unit. 

 Where appropriate, review and challenge of key decisions takes place by the 
Second Partner and by the Independent Review Partner, which goes beyond 
ISAs (UK and Ireland), and ensures the objectivity of our judgement is 
maintained.

 We report annually to those charged with governance our assessment of 
objectivity and independence.  This report includes a summary of non-audit 
services provided together with fees receivable. 

 There is formal consideration and review of the appropriateness of continuing 
the audit engagement before accepting reappointment. 

            Periodic rotation takes place of the audit engagement partner and, where 
appropriate, the independent review partner and key partners involved in the 
audit in accordance with our policies and professional and regulatory 
requirements. 

 In accordance with the Revised Ethical Standards issued by the APB, there is 
an assessment of the level of threat to objectivity and potential safeguards to 
combat these threats prior to acceptance of any non-audit engagement.  This 
would include particular focus on threats arising from self-interest, self-review, 
management, advocacy, over-familiarity and intimidation. 

 In the UK, statutory oversight and regulation of auditors is carried out by the 
Professional Oversight Board (POB) which is an operating body of the Financial 
Reporting Council.  The Firm’s policies and procedures are subject to external 
monitoring by both the Audit Inspection Unit (AIU), which is a division of POB, 
and the ICAEW’s Quality Assurance Directorate (QAD).  The AIU is charged 
with monitoring the quality of audits of economically significant entities and the 
QAD with monitoring statutory compliance of audits for all other entities.  Both 
report to the ICAEW’s Audit Registration Committee.  The AIU also reports to 
POB and can inform the Financial Reporting Review Panel of concerns it has 
with the accounts of individual entities. 

28



Audit Plan for the audit of the 2011/12 Pension Fund Audit   15 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 
(continued)
Independence policies Our detailed ethical policies’ standards and independence policies are issued to all 

partners and employees who are required to confirm their compliance annually.  We 
are also required to comply with the policies of other relevant professional and 
regulatory bodies.   

Amongst other things, these policies: 

 State that no Deloitte partner (or any immediate family member) is allowed to 
hold a financial interest in any of our UK audited entities; 

 Require that professional staff may not work on assignments if they (or any 
immediate family member) have a financial interest in the audited entity or a 
party to the transaction or if they have a beneficial interest in a trust holding a 
financial position in the audited entity; 

 State that no person in a position to influence the conduct and outcome of the 
audit (or any immediate family member) should enter into business relationships 
with UK audited entities or their affiliates; 

 Prohibit any professional employee from obtaining gifts from audited entities 
unless the value is clearly insignificant; and 

 Provide safeguards against potential conflicts of interest. 

Remuneration and 
evaluation policies 

Partners are evaluated on roles and responsibilities they take within the firm 
including their technical ability and their ability to manage risk. 

APB Revised Ethical 
Standards 

The Auditing Practices Board (APB) has issued five ethical standards for auditors 
that apply a ‘threats’ and ‘safeguards’ approach. 

The five standards cover: 

 Maintaining integrity, objectivity and independence; 

 Financial, business, employment and personal relationships between auditors 
and their audited entities; 

 Long association of audit partners and other audit team members with audit 
engagements; 

 Audit fees, remuneration and evaluation of the audit team, litigation between 
auditors and their audited entities, and gifts and hospitality received from 
audited entities; and 

 Non-audit services provided to audited entities. 

Our policies and procedures comply with these standards. 

29



Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (‘DTT’), a Swiss Verein, and its network of member firms, each of which is a 

legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of DTT and 

its member firms. 

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of DTT. 

This publication has been written in general terms and therefore cannot be relied on to cover specific situations; application of the 

principles set out will depend upon the particular circumstances involved and we recommend that you obtain professional advice before

acting or refraining from acting on any of the contents of this publication. Deloitte LLP would be pleased to advise readers on how to apply 

the principles set out in this publication to their specific circumstances. Deloitte LLP accepts no duty of care or liability for any loss 

occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any material in this publication. 

© 2011 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved. 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 

2 New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Tel: +44 (0) 20 7936 3000 Fax: +44 (0) 20 7583 1198. 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 

 
 
 
REPORT 
FOR: 

GOVERNANCE AUDIT AND 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 29 March 2012 
 

Subject: Risk Management Update – Information 
Report  
 

Responsible 
Officer: 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive 

Exempt: No 
 

Enclosures: Appendix 1 – Q3 Corporate Risk Register  
Appendix 2 – High Level Risk Summary 
Report   
Appendix 3 - 2012-13 Risk Appetite 
Statement  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 61 to 106 

61



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\1\AI00077155\$gzs44a3j.doc 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
The Governance Audit and Risk Management Committee (GARM) support 
Cabinet in its role by reviewing internal policies and arrangements.  
This report is provided to ensure GARM is aware of the Council's progress in 
risk management and to ensure the Council’s risk management framework 
continues to align with best practice, including production of an annual risk 
appetite statement on behalf of the Council in line with best practice in 
corporate governance and also ensuring risk information and reporting 
processes are streamlined and effective.  
 
FOR INFORMATION 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The Corporate Risk Register & High Level Risk Summary 
Report  
 
The Council’s updated risk strategy (approved by the Cabinet in October 
2011) provides for the merging of the former strategic risk and corporate 
operational risk registers into a single corporate risk register. This has now 
been undertaken and the new register is enclosed at Appendix One. The risk 
strategy also makes provision for the introduction of a new high-level 
summary risk report and this has now been similarly undertaken and is 
enclosed at Appendix Two.  
 
The creation of single corporate risk register, focussing only on business 
critical risks and also containing positive risk opportunities, and also the new 
high level summary risk report, was reported to CSB in February as part of the 
Q3 Performance Morning. The new summary report above is relatively open 
and flexible in its theme and is intended to focus from quarter to quarter on 
risk areas that CSB themselves collectively decide upon. For Quarter 3 it 
addressed the new risk reporting area of positive risk opportunities. 
 
The introduction of these new formats has been undertaken to streamline the 
level of relevant strategic risk information being reported to CSB, to target risk 

62



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\1\AI00077155\$gzs44a3j.doc 

discussion more effectively, and to avoid information overload and other 
information inefficiencies (such as duplication) in the strategic risk reporting 
process.  
 
2012-13 Statement of Risk Appetite  
 
At the January GARM meeting the Committee requested further information 
regarding the Council’s annual Statement of Risk Appetite. The Statement is a 
relatively new development in corporate governance (arising from a review in 
2010 by the Financial Reporting Council [FRC]) of the former UK Combined 
Code) and is now a best professional practice requirement further to the 
newly-created UK Corporate Governance Code (which replaces the 
Combined Code).  
 
Further to Section C; Accountability of the new Code, the Executive [the 
Cabinet] is responsible on an annual basis for “determining the nature and the 
extent of the significant risks it is willing to take in achieving its strategic 
objectives”. The statement of risk appetite is recognised as fulfilling this 
requirement which applies in best practice terms to both private and public 
sector organisations in the UK. 
 
The statement is significant in corporate governance terms and has largely 
been introduced in response to the 2010 financial crisis. It seeks to ensure 
that organisations are fully aware, of the level and quantity of risk exposure 
being carried by the organisation in pursuing its strategic objectives, and for 
this risk exposure to be fully communicated to stakeholders, eg by attachment 
to the corporate plan and the annual governance statement.  
 
The key messages of the Statement are that during 2012-13 the Council will 
have in the main an overall and informed cautious appetite for taking 
significant risks (these as outlined below) to achieve the corporate plan and 
for delivering council services in support of this. Where significant risks arises 
the Council and its officers will take effective control action to mitigate these 
risks to minimal and safe levels of net residual risk exposure for stakeholders.  
 
The Council’s appetite for these risks on a residual risk basis can be shown 
graphically in overall summary terms as follows:-  
 

63



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\1\AI00077155\$gzs44a3j.doc 

  
It is to be noted however that whilst the Council will maintain its overall 
informed cautious approach, it will have areas within this where a higher level 
of risk will be taken such as in, for example, in supporting innovation in 
service delivery. These will be offset by areas where it maintains a lower than 
cautious appetite, for example, in matters of compliance with law and public 
confidence in the Council, so leading to its overall and informed cautious 
position on risk.  
 
The full detailed Statement is attached at Appendix 3 and this will be 
submitted for approval by the Cabinet on the 4th April 2012. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
No financial implications are associated with this report. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
Should the recommendations not be accepted, there is a risk that the Council 
will not continue to align with best professional practice in risk management 
and will not clearly define for Members and officers respectively the Council’s 
framework and requirements for the management of its key and significant 
risks.  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The Corporate Risk Register, High Level Summary Risk Report and Risk 
Appetite Statement is strongly aligned with and supports the achievement 
and delivery of all of the Council’s corporate priorities  
 

 
 

              Net Residual Risk Appetite for Significant Risk 

 
 
 

 
Low 
  
 Med  

 
 

High 

Strategic
Risk 

Financial
Risk 

Service 
Delivery Risk Compliance

Risk 
Reputation

Risk 

Significant Risk 

Ri
sk
 A
pp

eti
te 

Le
ve
l 

64



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\1\AI00077155\$gzs44a3j.doc 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle  x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 13 March 2012 

   
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Neale Burns, Interim Risk Manager, Extension 8391 
 
Background Papers:  
 
Appendix 1: Q3 Corporate Risk Register  
Appendix 2: Q3 High Level Risk Summary Report  
Appendix 3: Statement of Risk Appetite (2012-13)   
 
 

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



Ve
rsi
on
:Q
3 F

ina
l 

La
st 
Re

vie
we

d b
y C

RS
G:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
1

La
st 
Re

vie
we

d b
y C

SB
: N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
1

CR
SG

 R
ev
iew

 D
ate

:Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
CS

B R
ev
iew

 D
ate

: F
eb
rua

ry 
20
12

TH
RE

AT
 R
ISK

S 
1

Fa
ilu

re 
to 

de
liv
er 

on
 a 
ba

lan
ce
d b

ud
ge

t in
 20

11
/12

 (J
A)

2
Pr
es
su

res
 on

 th
e M

TF
S  

(JA
) - 

NE
W 

RI
SK

  
3

Fa
ilu

re 
to 

de
liv
er 

lon
g t

erm
 ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 B
or
ou

gh
 (A

T) 
NE

W 
RI
SK

4
Su

cc
es
sfu

l le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

e o
f a

 co
un

cil
 de

cis
ion

 (H
P)

5
De

ter
ior

ati
ng

 In
du

str
ial
 R
ela

tio
ns

 (C
SB

 &
 C
ab

ine
t)

6
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 a 
cu

ltu
re 

tha
t s

up
po

rts
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 vi
sio

n a
nd

 pr
ior

itie
s (

TW
)

7
Th

e C
ou

nc
il f

ail
s t

o d
eli
ve
r r
eq

uir
ed

/ta
rg
et 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

av
ing

s (
£2
M)

 in
 20

10
/11

 (J
A)

8
Ine

ffe
cti

ve
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
or
kin

g i
n l

oc
al 
he

alt
h r

e-o
rg
an

isa
tio

n i
mp

ac
ts 

on
 Vi

sio
n (

TW
)

9
Im

pa
ct 

of 
ch

an
gin

g d
em

og
rap

hic
s n

ot 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 (P

N)
10

Th
e C

ou
nc

il i
na

de
qu

ate
ly 
pr
ep

are
s f

or
 w
elf

are
 re

for
m 

(JA
) 

11
Hi
gh

-pr
ofi

le 
se
rvi

ce
 fa

ilu
re 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 a 
vu

lne
rab

le 
cli
en

t o
r p

ers
on

 (A
ll) 

12
Bu

sin
es
s c

on
tin

uit
y/d

isa
ste

r r
ec
ov

ery
 no

t r
es
ilie

nt 
(TW

)
13

Ina
de

qu
ate

 em
erg

en
cy
 pl

an
nin

g i
n p

lac
e t

o d
ea
l w

ith
 m

ajo
r in

cid
en

ts 
(TW

)
14 15

Da
ma

ge
 to

 C
ou

nc
il r

ep
uta

tio
n &

 fa
ilu

re 
to 

en
ga

ge
 w
ith

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y/s

erv
ice

 us
ers

 (H
P)
 

16
Tr
an

sfo
rm

ati
on

 is
 no

t s
uc

ce
ss
ful

ly 
de

liv
ere

d (
TW

)
17

Ina
de

qu
ate

 O
H&

S M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
tem

 (T
W)

 
18 19 20

Sc
ho

ols
' In

co
me

 O
pp

or
tun

itie
s [

po
ten

tia
lly
 £1

-2M
 in

co
me

 st
rea

m]
 (J

A 
& 
CD

)  
21

At
tra

cti
ng

 In
wa

rd
 In

ve
stm

en
t [M

ajo
r D

ev
elo

pm
en

ts]
 (A

T) 
- N

EW
 O
PP

OR
TU

NI
TY

22
Su

pp
ly 
of 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o t
he

 C
CG

 [u
p t

o £
2-4

M 
inc

om
e s

tre
am

] (P
N)
 - N

EW
 O
PP

OR
TU

NI
TY

Co
rp
or
ate

 Pr
ior

itie
s 2

01
1/1

2 –
 20

14
/15

1. 
Ke

ep
ing

 ne
igh

bo
ur
ho

od
s c

lea
n, 

gr
ee
n a

nd
 sa

fe

    
Lin

e o
f R

isk
 A
pp

eti
te 

La
ck
 of

 co
mm

itm
en

t to
 cl
im

ate
 ch

an
ge

 an
d t

o r
ed

uc
ing

 ca
rb
on

 em
iss

ion
s (

BH
)

OP
PO

RT
UN

ITY
 R
ISK

S

Ins
uff

ici
en

t s
ch

oo
l p

lac
es
 (p

rim
ary

, s
ec
on

da
ry 

an
d s

pe
cia

l) f
or
 pr

oje
cte

d n
um

be
rs 

(C
D)

HA
RR

O
W
 C
O
UN

CI
L 
CO

RP
O
RA

TE
 R
IS
K 
RE

G
IS
TE

R 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
AP

PE
ND

IX
 1
 

4. 
Su

pp
or
tin

g o
ur
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e, 
loc

al 
sh

op
pin

g c
en

tre
s a

nd
 bu

sin
es
se
s

3. 
Su

pp
or
tin

g a
nd

 pr
ote

cti
ng

 pe
op

le 
wh

o a
re 

mo
st 

in 
ne

ed
2. 
Un

ite
d a

nd
 in

vo
lve

d c
om

mu
nit

ies
; a

 co
un

cil
 th

at 
lis
ten

s a
nd

 le
ad

s

Ine
ffe

cti
ve
 Po

liti
ca
l In

ter
fac

e (
HP

)

LI
KE

LI
HO

OD

A Ve
ry 

Hi
gh

(>8
0%

)

2,5

B Hi
gh

 
(51

-80
%)

4,8

C Si
gn

ific
an

t
(25

-50
%)

20
3,6

,7,
11

, 
14

,15
 

16
,19

17

D Lo
w

(10
-24

%)

22
1, 
9,1

8
10

,12
,13

 
21

E Ve
ry 

Lo
w

(3-
9%

)
F Al
mo

st 
Im

po
ssi

ble
 

(0-
2%

)
1 

Ca
tas

tro
ph

i
c I

mp
ac

t / 
Ex

ce
pti

on
al 

Be
ne

fit
IM

PA
CT

4 
Ne

gli
gib

le 
Im

pa
ct 

/ 
Be

ne
fit

3 
Ma

rg
ina

l 
Im

pa
ct 

/ 
Mi

no
r 

Be
ne

fit

2 
   
   

Cr
itic

al 
Im

pa
ct 

/ 
Ma

jor
 

Be
ne

fit

Pa
ge
 1

67



1
Risk (Event)Fa

ilu
re 

to 
de

liv
er 

on
 

bu
dg

et 
in 

20
11
/12

 (J
A)

Cause(s)Lo
w 
lev

el 
of 
res

erv
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Go
vt 
fun

din
g r

ed
uc
tio
ns
 

in 
15
/16

 an
d 1

6/1
7  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Og
an
isa

tio
na
l c
ult
ure

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Dif
fic
ult
 po

litic
ial
 

de
cis

ion
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

HR
A/w

elf
are

 re
for

m.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
mp

eti
tio
n f
or 

fun
din

g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   D

em
an
d-l
ed
 bu

dg
ets

   

Consequence(s)De
live

ry 
of 
Me

diu
m 
Te

rm
 

Fin
an
cia

l S
tra

teg
y 

we
ak
en
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
pu
tat
ion

 da
ma

ge
.

Go
ve
rnm

en
t in

ter
ve
nti
on
.

Cu
t in

 / u
na
ble

 to
 de

live
r 

se
rvi
ce
s.

Or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
ch
an
ge
 in
 

res
po
ns
e t
o b

ud
ge
t c
uts

.
ContingenciesEs

ca
lat
e t
o C

SB
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
ad
dit
ion

al 
co
st 
cu
ttin

g i
nit
iat
ive

s 
/ b
ud
ge
t re

all
oc
ati
on
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
co
urs

e t
o s

tat
uto

ry 
po
we

rs 
(S
ec
t.1
51
) 

No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 
pro

ce
ss
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
gu
lar
 fin

an
cia

l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 qu

art
erl
y t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
an
d m

on
thl
y t
o C

SB
, D

MT
s 

an
d a

t s
erv

ice
 le
ve
l a
nd
 ta
kin

g 
ac
tio
n o

n i
de
nti
fie
d p

rob
lem

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
gu
lar
 ca

pit
al 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 th
rou

gh
 

ab
ov
e p

roc
es
s a

nd
 m
on
thl
y a

t th
e 

Ca
pit
al 
Fo

rum
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Me
diu

m 
Te

rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 St

rat
eg
y.

Bu
dg
et 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er.

Co
mp

reh
en
siv

e b
ud
ge
t p
lan

 in
 pl
ac
e 

to 
clo

se
 ga

ps
.

De
bt 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Po

licy
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
ali
sti
c a

na
lys

is 
of 
fin
an
cia

l 
pre

ss
ure

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Clo
se
 po

rtfo
lio
 ho

lde
r in

vo
lve

me
nt

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Further Actions

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
the

 11
/12

 bu
dg
et 
or 

se
ttin

g a
 12

/13
 

bu
dg
et 
is 
rel
ati
ve
ly 
sm

all
. F

rom
 

01
.04

.12
 on

wa
rds

 th
is 
ris
k w

ill 
be
co
me

 fa
ilu
re 

to 
de
live

r o
n t
he
 

20
12
/13

 bu
dg
et 
.

On
-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion

g P
an
els

 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 

Me
mb

er 
pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ea
rly
 ac

tio
ns
 to
 pr

ev
en
t 

pro
jec

ted
/fo
rec

as
t o
ve
rsp

en
ds
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Clo
se
 w
atc

hin
g b

rie
f o
n s

av
ing

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Tra
ini
ng
 on

 fin
an
cia

l 
co
mp

lia
nc
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

20
11
/12

 IA
 R
ev
iew

s e
g C

ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
, S

AP
 Ac

co
un
ts 

Pa
ya
ble

 & 
Re

ce
iva

ble

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Al
de

rso
n 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

Pa
ge
 2

68



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

2
All

Risk (Event)Pr
es
su

res
 on

 th
e 

Me
diu

m 
Te

rm
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 

St
rat

eg
y [

thi
s i
s t

o s
et 

an
d t

he
n d

eli
ve
r a

 
ba

lan
ce
d b

ud
ge

t in
 

20
12
/13

 an
d t

he
n 

bu
ild

ing
 on

 th
is 
de

liv
er 

fur
the

r r
eq

uir
ed

 bu
dg

et 
red

uc
tio

ns
 ov

er 
the

 
me

diu
m 

ter
m]

 (J
A)

Str
uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 
pro

ce
ss
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
gu
lar
 fin

an
cia

l p
erf

orm
an
ce
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 an

d r
ep
ort

ing
 qu

art
erl
y t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
an
d m

on
thl
y t
o C

SB
, D

MT
s 

an
d a

t s
erv

ice
 le
ve
l a
nd
 ta
kin

g 
ac
tio
n o

n i
de
nti
fie
d p

rob
lem

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
gu
lar
 ca

pit
al 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 th
rou

gh
 

ab
ov
e p

roc
es
s a

nd
 m
on
thl
y a

t th
e 

Ca
pit
al 
Fo

rum
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Me
diu

m 
Te

rm
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 St

rat
eg
y.

Bu
dg
et 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er.

Co
mp

reh
en
siv

e b
ud
ge
t p
lan

 in
 pl
ac
e 

to 
clo

se
 ga

ps
.

De
bt 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Po

licy
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
ali
sti
c a

na
lys

is 
of 
fin
an
cia

l 
pre

ss
ure

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Clo
se
 po

rtfo
lio
 ho

lde
r in

vo
lve

me
nt

N/
A 

Ne
w 

Ri
sk
 

Ne
w 
Ac

tio
ns
 in
 th
is 
are

a -
 

Me
mb

er-
led

 gr
ou
p t
o d

ev
elo

p 
MT

 fin
an
cia

l p
lan

 an
d 

su
sta

ina
ble

 sa
vin

gs
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Pr
oje

ct 
to 
rev

iew
 po

ten
tia
l fo

r 
inc

rea
sin

g f
ee
s/c

ha
rge

s &
 

gre
ate

r c
om

me
rci
ali
sm

 su
pp
ort

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

IT 
Up

gra
de
 Pr

og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
pro

jec
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

TB
C 

Th
is 
is 
the

 si
gn
ific

an
t a
nd
 em

erg
en
t 

fin
an
cia

l ri
sk
 (in

clu
din

g i
ts 

rep
uta

tio
na
l d
im
en
sio

ns
) fa

cin
g t
he
 

Co
un
cil 

go
ing

 in
to 
20
12
/13

 an
d i
s n

ot 
on
ly 
the

 ne
ed
 to
 de

live
r o

n a
 

ba
lan

ce
d b

ud
ge
t in

 12
/13

 bu
t to

 
su
bs
eq
ue
ntl
y d

eli
ve
r fu

lly 
in 
fut
ure

 
ye
ars

 on
 fu
rth

er 
req

uir
ed
 bu

dg
et 
cu
ts 

ov
er 

the
 m
ed
ium

 te
rm

 . T
he
 ris

k i
s 

ris
ing

 be
ca
us
e o

f th
e n

atu
re 

of 
ha
vin

g 
to 
ma

ke
 ve

ry 
dif
fic
ult
 ch

oic
es
 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g f
ac
ed
 M
em

be
rs.
 

Ad
dit
ion

all
y, 
ce
ntr

al 
go
vt 
ha
ve
 

ex
ten

de
d t
he
 ne

ed
 fo
r d

efi
cit
 

red
uc
tio
n m

ea
su
res

/cu
ts 
int
o 1

5/1
6 

an
d 1

6/1
7 i
nc
rea

sin
g t
he
 sc

ale
 of
 

req
uir
ed
 cu

ts 
an
d p

res
su
res

 in
 th
e 

MT
FS

. 

Cause(s)Lo
w 
lev

el 
of 
res

erv
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Go
vt 
fun

din
g r

ed
uc
tio
ns
 

in 
15
/16

 an
d 1

6/1
7  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Og
an
isa

tio
na
l c
ult
ure

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Dif
fic
ult
 po

litic
al 
de
cis

ion
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

HR
A/w

elf
are

 re
for

m.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
mp

eti
tio
n f
or 

fun
din

g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   D

em
an
d-l
ed
 bu

dg
ets

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Consequence(s)De
live

ry 
of 
Me

diu
m 
Te

rm
 

Fin
an
cia

l S
tra

teg
y 

we
ak
en
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
pu
tat
ion

 da
ma

ge
.

Go
ve
rnm

en
t in

ter
ve
nti
on
.

Cu
t in

 / u
na
ble

 to
 de

live
r 

se
rvi
ce
s.

Or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
ch
an
ge
 in
 

res
po
ns
e t
o b

ud
ge
t c
uts

.

ContingenciesEs
ca
lat
e t
o C

SB
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
ad
dit
ion

al 
co
st 
cu
ttin

g i
nit
iat
ive

s 
/ b
ud
ge
t re

all
oc
ati
on
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
co
urs

e t
o s

tat
uto

ry 
po
we

rs 
(S
ec
t.1
51
) 

A2
D2

Ju
lie
 

Al
de

rso
n 

31
.03

.13

Further Actions

Pa
ge
 3

69



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)Th

ere
 is
 fa

ilu
re 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 

ec
on

om
ic 
gr
ow

th 
in 

the
 

Bo
ro
ug

h  

Cause(s)Fa
ilu
re 

to 
att
rac

t s
uff
icie

nt 
lev

els
 of
 in
wa

rd 
inv

es
tm
en
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
bri
ng
 in
 

co
mm

erc
ial
 en

d-u
se
rs 
    
    
 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
en
su
re 

Ha
rro

w 
res

ide
nts

 be
ne
fit 
fro

m 
em

plo
ym

en
t a
nd
 tra

ini
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

    
    
    
    
   

Consequence(s)Inc
rea

se
d c

all
 on

 co
un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s (
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 A&

H 
an
d C

hil
dre

n's
 Se

rvi
ce
s) 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Inc
rea

se
d u

ne
mp

loy
me

nt 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
du
ce
d c

on
su
me

r 
sp
en
d/a

 po
ore

r s
ho
pp
ing

 
off
er 

in 
tow

n c
en
tre

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Wo
rse

nin
g h

ea
lth
 

co
nd
itio

ns
    
    
    
    
    
    

Lo
w-
sk
ill w

ork
for

ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Inc
rea

sin
g l
ev
els

 of
 fa
mi
ly 

an
d c

hil
d p

ov
ert

y  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Contingencies

N/
A 

Ne
w 

Ris
k 

Further Actions

D2
20
13
/14

An
dre

w 
Tre

he
rn 

30
%

Ap
pre

nti
ce
s P

rog
ram

me
 be

ing
 

su
bm

itte
d t
o C

ab
ine

t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Wo
rk 
Cu

bs
 to
 ru

n j
ob
 fa
res

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pr
om

oti
on
 an

d b
rok

eri
ng
 of
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ith
 lo
ca
l c
oll
eg
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 co

mm
erc

ial
 

ag
en
ts 
to 
ma

rke
t D

ist
ric
t 

Sh
op
pin

g C
en
tre

s a
nd
 va

ca
nt 

ret
ail
 pr

em
ise

s.
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a s

us
tai
na
ble

 
rev

en
ue
 st
rea

m 
to 
pro

mo
te 
the

 
To

wn
 C
en
tre

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Wh
ilst

 th
is 
ris
k c

an
 be

 se
en
 as

 
rea

so
na
bly

 lo
w 
in 
like

lih
oo
d t
erm

s o
n 

a l
oc
al 
lev

el 
cu
rre

nt 
lev

els
 of
 na

tio
na
l 

(in
cl.
pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 fu
nd
ing

 an
d 

sp
en
din

g l
ev
els

) a
nd
 gl
ob
al 
ec
on
om

ic 
un
ce
rta

int
y i
nc
rea

se
 th
e d

eg
ree

 of
 

like
lih
oo
d r

eq
uir
ed
 to
 be

 at
tac

he
d t
o i
t 

un
de
r th

e p
res

en
t c
on
dit
ion

s.

3
4

En
ter

pri
sin

g H
arr

row
 St

ee
rin
g G

rou
p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Su
sta

ina
ble

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Po

licy
    
    
    
    
    
   

s1
06
 Pl

an
nin

g c
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 

inc
rea

se
 lo
ca
l la

bo
ur 

(ap
pre

nti
ce
s) 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f c
en
t. g

ov
 W

elf
are

 
to 
Wo

rk 
Pr
og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Inw
ard

 In
ve
stm

en
t O

pp
ort

un
ity
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
be
low

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

C2

Pa
ge
 4

70



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

4
Risk (Event)Su

cc
es
sfu

l le
ga

l 
ch

all
en

ge
 of

 a 
co

un
cil
 

de
cis

ion
.

Cause(s)Po
or 

leg
al 
& t

ec
hn
ica

l 
ad
vic

e
Un

ce
rta

inl
y o

f c
ou
rt 

ou
tco

me
s/c

as
es
 

Po
ten

tia
lly 

co
nte

nti
ou
s 

de
cis

ion
s b

y C
ab
ine

t.  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

EU
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

leg
isla

tio
n. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

La
ck
 of
 M
em

be
r/s
taf
f 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d a
wa

ren
es
s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Gr
ea
ter

 su
pp
lie
r re

sid
en
t 

aw
are

ne
ss
 of
 av

ail
ab
le 

leg
al 
res

po
ns
es
 an

d 
ap
pe
tite

 fo
r le

ga
l a
cti
on
.

Consequence(s)Le
ga
l c
os
ts/
fin
es
.

Ne
ga
tiv
e m

ed
ia 
an
d 

rep
uta

tio
n d

am
ag
e.

De
lay

 to
 pr

oje
cts

.
Inc

rea
se
d s

up
pli
er 

inc
en
tiv
e f
or 

leg
al 
ac
tio
n

Fin
es
, o
rde

r 
sh
ort

en
ing

/ca
nc
ell
ing

 
co
ntr

ac
t, d

am
ag
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

ContingenciesTB
C 

B2

Further Actions

Ris
k s

till 
rem

ain
s a

t it
s c

urr
en
t 

ex
po
su
re 

as
 at
 Q
3 

De
ve
lop

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Str

ate
gy
 

(R
ich

ard
 H
aw

tin
 - 2

01
1/1

2)
De

ve
lop

 C
on
tra

ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy
 (R

ich
ard

 H
aw

tin
 - 

20
11
/12

)   
 Pu

bli
sh
 a 
vo
lun

tar
y 

tra
ns
pa
ren

cy
 no

tic
e f
or 

dir
ec
t 

aw
ard

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

En
su
re 

co
ntr

ac
tua

l te
rm

s 
cle

arl
y a

llo
ca
te 
ris
k i
n t
he
 ev

en
t 

tha
t re

me
die

s u
nd
er 

UK
 

leg
isla

tio
n i
s i
mp

os
ed
. 

Inv
es
tig
ate

 op
tio
n o

f p
re-

ag
ree

ing
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l 
pro

vis
ion

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Es
tab

lish
 di
sp
ute

 re
so
lut
ion

 
pro

ce
du
res

. In
ve
sti
ga
te 
op
tio
n 

of 
pre

-ag
ree

ing
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
gis

ter
 of
 co

ntr
ac
ts 
be
ing

 
de
ve
lop

ed
 in
 co

nju
nc
tio
n w

ith
 

the
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
div

isio
n t
o 

su
pp
ort

 de
cis

ion
-m

ak
ing

TB
C 

D2
20
12
 - 1

3
Hu

gh
    
 

Pe
art

 
All

Le
ga
l c
lea

ran
ce
 of
 M
em

be
r re

po
rts
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Le
ga
l in

pu
t to

 m
ajo

r p
roj
ec
t g
rou

ps
.

Co
rpo

rat
e E

qu
ali
tie
s G

rou
p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Mg
m 
De

v.P
rog

ram
me

.
Fil
e r

ev
iew

s. 
Co

rpo
rat

e M
an
ag
ers

 
Ind

uc
tio
n i
nc
lud

es
 a 
se
ss
ion

 on
 le
ga
l 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
an
d d

ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

.
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 O
ffic

er 
pa
rt o

f C
SB

 & 
Mo

nth
ly 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
 br

ief
ing

 se
ss
ion

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Tra
ini
ng
 se

ss
ion

s f
or 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tea

ms
 on

 de
cis

ion
 

ma
kin

g (
pro

vid
ed
 by

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

On
go
ing

 w
ork

 w
ith
 C
LG

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Co
nti
nu
al 
up
da
te/
tra

ini
ng
 of
 le
ga
l 

sta
ff &

 SP
B e

sta
bli
sh
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

O&
SC

 ca
ll-i
n o

f c
on
ten

tio
us
 de

cis
ion

s. 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
du
res

 re
fle
ct 
fin
din

gs
 of
 th
e C

ou
rt i
n t
his

 ar
ea
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  M

em
be
r Q

ua
rte

rly
 Br

ief
ing

s o
n p

ote
nti
all
y c

on
ten

tio
us
 is
su
es
 (d

ue
 to
 ge

ne
ral
 cu

rre
nt 
clim

ate
 of
 un

ce
rta

int
y i
n p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r la
w 
eg
 Bi

rm
ing

ha
m 
Cit

y C
ou
nc
il )
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

B2

Pa
ge
 5

71



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)D

ete
rio

rat
ing

 
Ind

us
tri
al/
em

plo
ye
e 

rel
ati

on
s 

Cause(s)Na
tio
na
l p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r 
dis

pu
te 
on
 pe

ns
ion

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Na
tio
na
l lo

ca
l 

go
ve
rnm

en
t p
ay
 aw

ard
 

an
d c

on
dit
ion

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Lo
ca
l p
ay
 an

d c
on
dit
ion

s 
ne
go
tia
tio
ns
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
un
cil 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n 

Pr
og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 
cu
ts/
red

uc
tio
ns
 in
 th
e 

wo
rkf
orc

e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

ConsequencesInd
us
tria

l a
cti
on
, in

cl 
str
ike

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ad
ve
rse

 im
pa
ct 
on
 

wo
rkf
orc

e w
ell
-be

ing
    
    
 

Ad
ve
rse

 im
pa
ct 
on
 st
aff
 

mo
ral
e a

nd
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Lo
ss
 of
 pr

od
uc
tiv
ity
 an

d 
go
od
wil

l   
    
    
    
    
 

"S
urv

ivo
r s
yn
dro

me
" in

 
po
st-
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n s

taf
f   
    
    
    
    
    
 
ContingenciesTB

C 

Further Actions

N/
A 

Ne
w 

Ri
sk
 

Co
nti
nu
ing

 w
ork

 on
 st
aff
 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
str
ate

gy
, in

cl.
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 st
rat

eg
y o

n 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 

(31
.03

.12
)   

    
    
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 pl
an
 to
 de

al 
wit

h i
nd
us
tria

l a
cti
on
(30

.11
.11

)   
    
    
    
    
   

Co
nti
nu
ing

 fo
cu
s o

n l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

for
 m
an
ag
ing

 ch
an
ge
 (O

n-
go
ing

)   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Dir
ec
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n w

ith
 st
aff
 on

 
Te

rm
s &

 C
on
dit
ion

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

60
%

Ca
bin

et/
   

CS
B

5
All

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d n
eg
oti
ati
on
 

fra
me

wo
rk 
in 
pla

ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

We
ll-e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 w
ork

for
ce
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n c

ha
nn
els

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Em
plo

ye
e s

up
po
rt a

rra
ng
em

en
ts,
 

inc
l. r
ed
ep
loy

me
nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Fo
cu
s o

n l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
an
d 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
for

 
ma

na
gin

g c
ha
ng
e 

A2
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
rea

ch
 ag

ree
me

nt 
on
 Te

rm
s 

& C
on
dit
ion

s w
ith
 TU

 no
w 
req

uir
es
 

an
d a

lso
 of
fer

s t
he
 op

po
rtu

nit
y o

f 
dir
ec
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
 ba

llo
tin
g o

f 
sta

ff o
n i
ss
ue
s r
ais

ed
.

B3
Au

g-1
2

Pa
ge
 6

72



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

6
All

Risk (Event)Fa
ilu

re 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 a 

cu
ltu

re 
in 

the
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 th

at 
su

pp
or
ts

the
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 vi
sio

n a
nd

 
pr
ior

itie
s 

Ch
an
ge
 M
an
ag
em

en
t s
tra

teg
y  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
    
    
   

Cr
ea
te 
va
lue

s a
nd
 C
rea

te 
aw

ard
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo

ard
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    

Sta
ff s

urv
ey
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

CE
 N
ew

sle
tte
r a

nd
 st
aff
 br

ief
ing

s 
Ab

se
nc
e m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 re

po
rtin

g

C2
C2

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 

Le
ad
ers

hip
 G
rou

p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

On
-go

ing
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt 

for
 m
an
ag
ers

 in
 th
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 
ch
an
ge
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Me
mb

er 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Pla

n  
    
    
    

Ne
w 
Co

rpo
rat

e P
lan

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ne
w 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 Pl

an
 

20
12
/13

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Dir
ec
t n
eg
oti
ati
on
s w

ith
 st
aff
 on

 
Te

rm
s &

 C
on
dit
ion

s 

Ne
w 
co
rpo

rat
e p

lan
 to
 be

 ag
ree

d a
t 

Fe
bru

ary
 ca

bin
et 
wh

ich
 w
ill f

urt
he
r 

cla
rify

 vi
sio

n, 
pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 di
rec

tio
n. 

Ne
w 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 pl
an
 be

ing
 

de
ve
lop

ed
 fo
r 2

01
2/1

3.

Cause(s)Vis
ion

 an
d d

ire
cti
on
 no

t 
cle

arl
y u

nd
ers

too
d o

r 
dir
ec
ted

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
or 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

ch
an
ge
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Po
or 

sta
ff m

ora
le 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Va
lue

s n
ot 
ali
gn
ed
 to
 

dir
ec
tio
n o

f th
e 

org
an
isa

tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

La
ck
 of
 m
em

be
r o

f 
aw

are
ne
ss
    
    
    
    

Ma
jor
 pr

og
ram

me
 of
 

ch
an
ge
 

ConsequencesIn
cre

as
ed
 ab

se
nc
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Lo
w 
sta

ff m
ora

le 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
du
ce
d c

ou
nc
il 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pr
og
ram

me
 de

live
ry 

be
hin

d t
arg

et 
ContingenciesTB

C 

TW

Further Actions

D2
01
.03

.12
80
%

Pa
ge
 7

73



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

7
All

Risk (Event)Th
e C

ou
nc

il f
ail
s t

o 
de

liv
er 

req
uir

ed
/ta

rg
et 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

av
ing

s 
(£2

M)
 in

 20
10
/11

Cause(s)Se
rvi
ce
 ar

ea
s u

nd
er 

se
ve
re 

bu
dg
eta

ry 
pre

ss
ure

 an
d a

re 
un
ab
le 

an
d/o

r re
luc

tan
t to

 
su
rre

nd
er 

sa
vin

gs
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
rpo

rat
e f
ina

nc
ial
 

co
mp

lia
nc
e a

nd
 

ch
all
en
ge
 pr

oc
es
se
s a

re 
no
t s
tro

ng
ly 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

at 
the

 C
ou
nc
il  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Consequence(s)Co
un
cil 

bu
dg
eta

ry 
ov
ers

pe
nd
 in
 20

10
/11

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 ov

era
ll 

tar
ge
t u
nd
er-

sp
en
d  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Fo
rce

d r
ev
isio

n o
f th

e 
MT

FS
 an

d r
ed
uc
ed
 

fun
din

g f
or 

fut
ure

 ye
ars

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Me
mb

er 
cri
tic
ism

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
pu
tat
ion

al 
da
ma

ge
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
nti
nu
ing

 w
as
te 
an
d 

ine
ffic

ien
cy
 in
 

pro
cu
rem

en
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

ContingenciesMT
FS

 re
vie

w 
& r

ev
isio

n 

E4
Ris

k h
as
 de

cre
as
ed
 fro

m 
B2

 to
 C
2 

ov
er 

the
 la
st 
qu
art

er.
 Th

is 
is 
du
e t
o 

the
 pr

op
os
al 
for

 £2
M 
pro

cu
rem

en
t 

sa
vin

gs
 be

ing
 st
ron

ge
r. H

ow
ev
er 

iss
ue
s a

rou
nd
 co

mp
lia
nc
e a

nd
 th
e 

co
rpo

rat
e a

pp
roa

ch
 re

ma
in 
an
d 

de
live

rin
g o

n t
he
 20

12
/13

 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 w
ill b

e 
cri
tic
al.
 Th

is 
ris
k i
n i
ts 
rel
ati
on
 to
 

11
/12

 as
 a 
sta

nd
 al
on
e r

isk
 ca

n b
e 

co
ns
ide

red
 fo
r re

mo
va
l fr
om

 th
e r

isk
 

reg
ist
er 

at 
31
.03

.12
. F

or 
12
/13

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
rop

os
als

 ha
ve
 be

en
 in
-

bu
ilt 
int
o d

ire
cto

rat
e b

ud
ge
ts 
an
d c

an
 

em
be
dd
ed
 in
to 
the

 w
ide

r ri
sk
 of
 

co
mi
ng
 in
 on

 bu
dg
et 
in 
12
/13

.

50
%

31
.03

.12
Pr
oc
es
s a

gre
ed
 to
 id
en
tify

 sa
vin

gs
 

an
d s

ub
se
qu
en
tly
 w
ith
dra

w 
mo

ne
y 

fro
m 
se
rvi
ce
 bu

dg
ets

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
str
ate

gy
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

ac
hie

vin
g a

nd
 re

lea
sin

g m
ed
ium

-
ter

m 
pro

cu
rem

en
t s
av
ing

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ca
pa
bil
ity
 an

d c
ap
ac
ity
 to
 de

live
r 

sa
vin

gs
 in
cre

as
ed
 vi
a e

sta
bli
sh
me

nt 
of 
the

 in
ter

im
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
tea

m 

C2
B2

Ac
tio
ns
 as

 ou
tlin

ed
 by

 D
oR

 
em

ail
 25

.10
.11

 on
 re

ve
nu
e 

bu
dg
et 
po
sit
ion

 (9
5%

)   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

SA
P c

on
fig
ura

tio
n t
o d

riv
e 

gre
ate

r e
ffic

ien
cie

s i
n 

pro
cu
rem

en
t (1

0%
) - 

pro
jec

t 
de
lay

ed
 in
 11

/12
 bu

t w
ill b

e  
de
live

red
 in
 12

/13
.

Further Actions

Ju
lie
 

Ald
ers

on
 

Pa
ge
 8

74



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

8
Risk (Event)Ine

ffe
cti

ve
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 lo
ca
l h

ea
lth

 
reo

rg
an

isa
tio

n i
mp

ac
ts 

on
 Vi

sio
n  

Cause(s)Pa
rtn

er 
& C

ou
nc
il 

fin
an
cia

l p
res

su
res

 / 
red

uc
ed
 LA

A f
un
din

g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Po
or 

go
ve
rna

nc
e m

od
el 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

La
ck
 of
 sh

are
d v

isio
n/ 

co
nfl
ict
ing

 pr
ior
itie

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Le
gis

lat
ive

 ch
an
ge
s, 
e.g

. 
ab
oli
sh
me

nt 
of 
PC

T t
o 

GP
 C
on
so
rtiu

m 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
or 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n -

 
int
ern

al 
& e

xte
rna

l   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
luc

tan
ce
 to
 cu

ltu
re 

ch
an
ge
 - t

he
m 
vs
. u
s.

Consequence(s)Hig
h p

rof
ile
 se

rvi
ce
 fa
ilu
re 

 
Lo
ss
 of
 pu

bli
c c

on
fid
en
ce
   

Co
mp

rom
ise

d d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
st 
sh
un
tin
g a

nd
 

ina
de
qu
ate

 fin
an
cia

l 
rec

ov
ery

 pr
oc
es
s

ContingenciesEs
ca
lat
e t
o H

CE
 an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Co
un
cil 

fin
an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g 

All

Further ActionsRe
vie

w 
(s)

 of
 sp

en
din

g c
uts

 on
 

Vo
lun

tar
y S

ec
tor

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
vie

w 
of 
Gr
an
ts 
Pr
oc
es
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
vie

w 
of 
HS

P M
gm

. G
rou

ps
 

(Ju
ne
 20

11
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

En
ga
ge
 di
rec

tly
 w
ith
 G
P 

Co
ns
ort

ium
(s)

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

PC
T/C

ou
nc
il A

wa
y D

ay
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

He
alt
h &

 W
ell
-B
ein

g B
oa
rd 

an
d 

Cli
nc
ica

l C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

bo
ard

s b
ein

g d
ev
elo

pe
d  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Int
eg
rat

ion
 pl
an
 fo
r p

ub
lic 

he
alt
h  
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ne
go
tia
tio
ns
 ov

er 
PC

T c
os
t 

sh
un
tin
g

On
-G
oin

g
60
%

D2
Re

gu
lar
 H
CE

 G
rou

p m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d 
up
da
tes

 & 
LA

A r
ec
eiv

ed
 gr

an
t 

all
oc
ati
on
 an

d H
SP

 re
all
oc
ati
on
 of
 

LA
A f

un
ds

Up
da
ted

 H
SP

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 

Ha
nd
bo
ok
 an

d I
nd
uc
tio
n H

an
db
oo
k.

HS
P M

an
ag
em

en
t G

rou
p r

isk
 

reg
ist
ers

 in
 pl
ac
e. 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 St

rat
eg
y -
 up

da
ted

 ev
ery

 
2 y

ea
rs 
& a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 Bo
ard

.
Jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 Po

lice
 in
 

org
an
isa

tio
na
l jo

in 
up
.

HC
E p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

cy
cle

.
Co

st 
sh
un
tin
g r

isk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
& 

Up
da
ted

 H
SP

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 

Ha
nd
bo
ok
.

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(P
MO

)
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
 Be

ing
 an

d C
lin
ica

l 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 Bo
ard

s s
et-

up

B2
C2

To
m 

Wh
itin

g 
Inc

rea
sin

g d
isp

ute
 w
ith
 PC

T o
ve
r c
os
t 

sh
un
tin
g p

rop
os
als

 pl
ac
e 

rel
ati
on
sh
ips

 at
 ris

k a
nd
 th
is 
is 
a k

ey
 

fac
tor

 in
 th
e r

isk
 ris

ing
 th
is 
qu
art

er 
fro

m 
C2

 to
 B2

. W
ork

 on
 a 
dra

ft 
int
eg
rat

ion
 pl
an
 fo
r p

ub
lic 

he
alt
h h

as
 

sta
rte

d.

Pa
ge
 9

75



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

9
Risk (Event)Im

pa
ct 

of 
ch

an
gin

g 
de

mo
gr
ap

hic
s n

ot 
an

tic
ipa

ted

Cause(s)We
lfa
re 

ref
orm

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Da
ta 
qu
ali
ty/
ac
cu
rac

y i
s 

po
or 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

No
 re

so
urc

e a
llo
ca
ted

 to
 

co
ns
ide

r im
pli
ca
tio
ns
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Lo
ng
 te
rm

 pl
an
nin

g d
oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t n
ee
ds
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Dir
ec
tor

ate
s d

o n
ot 
ac
t 

pro
ac
tiv
ely

 on
 em

erg
ing

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

Consequence(s)Ins
uff
icie

nt 
tim

e t
o p

lan
 

for
 sc

ho
ol 
pla

ce
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Se
rvi
ce
s n

ot 
ca
ter

ed
 to
 

co
mm

un
ity
 di
ve
rsi
ty 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Co
mm

un
ity
 co

he
sio

n 
do
es
 no

t 
im
pro

ve
/in
cre

as
ed
 

se
gre

ga
tio
n/i
so
lat
ion

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Se
rvi
ce
 us

ers
 ne

ed
s n

ot 
me

t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ins
uff
icie

nt 
res

ou
rce

s t
o 

de
live

r s
erv

ice
s 

ContingenciesSp
en
din

g p
rot

oc
ol

To
m 

Wh
itin

g 
Th

e r
isk

 ha
s d

ec
rea

se
d t
his

 qu
art

er 
fro

m 
C2

 to
 D
2 m

ain
ly 
as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 

the
 LI
S c

om
ing

 on
 lin

e t
o s

tre
ng
the

n 
pro

toc
ols

 in
 th
is 
are

a. 
Ho

we
ve
r H

B 
an
d C

T r
efo

rm
s i
n i
mp

ac
t te

rm
s s

till 
un
ce
rta

in 
in 
ter

ms
 of
 tri
gg
eri
ng
 

po
pu
lat
ion

 m
ov
es
.  R

isk
 es

se
nti
all
y 

wil
l re

ma
in 
un
til 
20
11
 C
en
su
s d

ata
 

be
co
me

s a
va
ila
ble

 an
d c

an
 be

 us
ed
 

as
 th
e b

as
is 
for

 pr
oje

cti
on
s w

hic
h w

ill 
the

n m
ini
mi
se
 th
is 
ris
k. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Further ActionsJA
G 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 & 
Ye

ar 
Ah

ea
d S

tat
em

en
t (J

uly
 20

12
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

HS
P T

as
k &

 Fi
nis

h G
rou

ps
 

(in
cl.
 w
elf
are

 re
for

m)
 & 

fee
d 

int
o s

erv
ice

 pl
an
nin

g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

On
-go

ing
 ut
ilis

ati
on
 & 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
LIS

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Int
ern

al 
stu

dy
 on

 re
sid

en
t 

nu
mb

ers
 le
d b

y S
ue
 Ka

mi
ns
ka
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ph
as
ed
/pa

rtia
l re

lea
se
 of
 20

11
 

Ce
ns
us
 da

ta 

50
%

D3
20
12
-13

All
Jo
int
 re

se
arc

h/a
na
lys

is 
gro

up
 

es
tab

lish
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ex
pe
rio
n V

ita
lity

 pr
ofi
les

 up
da
ted

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Us
e o

f G
LA

 Po
pu
lat
ion

 Pr
oje

cti
on
 

Se
rvi
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ce
ns
us
 20

11
 & 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y 
HA

P R
efr

es
h &

 LD
 Fr

am
ew

ork
    
    
    
   

Co
mm

un
ity
 C
oh
es
ion

 Ac
tio
n P

lan
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
rpo

rat
e E

qu
ali
tie
s G

rou
p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Un
ive

rsa
l u
se
r g

rou
ps
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Lo
ca
l In

for
ma

tio
n S

ys
tem

 (L
IS)

 

D2
C2

Pa
ge
 10

76



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)Co

un
cil
 in

ad
eq

ua
tel

y 
pr
ep

are
s f

or
 w
elf

are
 

ref
or
m 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Cause(s)De
tai
ls 
of 
ne
w 
sc
he
me

 
no
t g
ive

n b
y g

ov
t. w

ith
 

ad
eq
ua
te 
tim

es
ca
les

  
La
ck
 of
 cl
ari
ty 
on
 w
ha
t 

go
vt.
 re

qu
ire
s o

f C
ou
nc
il 

& u
nc
ert

ain
ty 
of 
tim

eli
ne
s. 

Tig
ht 
de
ad
lin
es
    
  

Ina
de
qu
ate

 ca
pa
cit
y &

 
res

ou
rce

s t
o d

eli
ve
r   

 
Cu

tba
ck
 of
 su

bs
idy

 fro
m 

go
vt.
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
mp

eti
tio
n w

ith
 ot
he
r 

Co
un
cils

 fo
r th

e I
T 

sy
ste

ms
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 
& 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n f
rom

 on
ly 

a f
ew

 su
pp
lie
rs 
of 
the

 
sy
ste

m 
in 
the

 m
ark

et

Consequence(s)£2
m+

 co
st 
to 
Co

un
cil 

if 
De

fau
lt s

ch
em

e h
as
 to
 be

 
pu
t in

 pl
ac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ult
ra 

vir
es
 if 
ne
w 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 no

t 
im
ple

me
nte

d  
    
    
    
    
   

Ris
k o

f ju
dic

ial
 re

vie
w 
    
    
 

Fin
an
cia

l p
rob

lem
s f
or 

res
ide

nts
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
mp

lai
nts

/lit
iga

tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Me
mb

er 
cri
tic
ism

    
    
 

ContingenciesBil
ls 
wo

uld
 go

 ou
t to

 re
sid

en
ts 

gro
ss
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ca
sh
 flo

w 
red

uc
ed
 ca

us
ed
 by

 
dif
fic
ult
ies

 in
 en

for
cin

g n
on
 

pa
ym

en
t u
nti
l re

ba
tes

 ar
e 

ca
lcu

lat
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

aw
ard

s w
ill b

e m
ad
e 

ret
ros

pe
cti
ve
ly

D1

Further ActionsWo
rks

ho
ps
 fo
r C

LG
 an

d 
Me

mb
ers

 in
 Fe

b-A
pri
l 2
01
2 t
o 

inc
rea

se
 aw

are
ne
ss
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Sta
ke
ho
lde

rs 
inv

olv
em

en
t - 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 re

sid
en
ts 

sta
rtin

g A
pri
l/M

ay
  2
01
2  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Fu
nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n a

llo
ca
ted

 in
 

the
 bu

dg
et 
for

 th
e p

roj
ec
t to

 
pre

pa
re 

for
 C
T b

en
efi
t to

 be
 re

-
loc

ali
se
d. 
    
    
    
    
    
  P

roj
ec
t 

Te
am

 & 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on
 re

so
urc

e 
pla

nn
ed
 an

d t
o b

e i
n p

lac
e b

y 
Fe

bru
ary

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ke
y s

taf
f a
tte
nd
ing

 ex
ter

na
l 

se
mi
na
rs 
to 
en
su
re 

the
ir 

kn
ow

led
ge
 on

 G
ov
ern

me
nt 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 up
 to
 da

te 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

PID
, P

roj
ec
t P

lan
, 

Sc
he
me

/fin
an
cia

l s
tee

r &
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 st
rat

eg
y t
o b

e 
de
ve
lop

ed
 Fe

b-A
pri
l

10
%

10
All

Su
sta

ina
ble

 ef
fic
ien

t H
B/C

T s
ys
tem

 
cu
rre

ntl
y i
n p

lac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
gu
lar
 re

po
rtin

g t
o C

SB
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
rtfo

lio
 m
ee
tin
gs
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

on
 ris

k r
eg
ist
er 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

CS
B a

pp
rov

ed
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
    
    
    
    
   

fee
din

g b
ac
k t
o g

ov
t.  
    
   R

es
ou
rce

 
pla

nn
ing

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

£1
00
k f
un
din

g s
ec
ure

d t
hro

ug
h 

MT
FS

 fo
r p

roj
ec
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Cle
ar 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
str
uc
tur

e  
    
  

Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am
 be

ing
 pu

t in
 pl
ac
e 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

LG
F B

ill 2
01
2 i
ss
ue
d J

an
. 

D1
Ju
lie
 

Ald
ers

on
 

C1
30
.10

.20
12
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

17
.01

.20
12

As
 at
 Q
3 C

I p
red

ict
ive

 re
d r

isk
 ra

tin
g 

is 
ba
se
d o

n c
urr

en
t u
nc
ert

ain
ty 
of 
the

 
ou
tco

me
s o

f c
on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
 of
 go

vt.
 

fun
din

g l
ev
els

 an
d r

ela
ted

 de
live

ry 
pla

tfo
rm

s. 
Ris

k r
em

ain
s a

t it
s Q

ua
rte

r 
2 e

xp
os
ure

 in
 Q
ua
rte

r 3
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Alt
ho
ug
h £

10
0k
 fu
nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n 

ma
de
 av

ail
ab
le 
via

 M
TF

S f
or 

ye
ar 

20
12
/13

, th
is 
is 
ins

uff
icie

nt.
 St

aff
 

Re
so
urc

es
 be

ing
 re

mo
ve
d f
rom

 H
B 

se
rvi
ce
 to
 m
ak
e u

p p
roj
ec
t te

am
 

wh
ich

 br
ing

s r
isk

 to
 ex

ist
ing

 H
B 

se
rvi
ce
 op

era
tio
n &

 su
bs
idy

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sta
tut
ory

 in
str
um

en
ts 
no
t a
va
ila
ble

 
un
til 
lat
e s

pri
ng
/ea

rly
 su

mm
er.

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Gr
an
t a
mo

un
t n
ot 
ye
t d
isc

los
ed
.

Pa
ge
 11

77



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

11
Risk (Event)T

he
re 

is 
a h

igh
-pr

ofi
le 

se
rvi

ce
 fa

ilu
re 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 a 
vu

lne
rab

le 
cli
en

t o
r p

ers
on

 

Cause(s)Eff
icie

nc
y /
 se

rvi
ce
 

ch
an
ge
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Lo
w 
Sta

ff l
ev
els

 at
 fro

nt 
lin
e/e

xc
ep
tio
na
l in

cre
as
e 

in 
de
ma

nd
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pa
rtn

er 
fai
lur
e –

 ag
en
cie

s 
ac
tin
g i
n i
so
lat
ion

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ma
ve
ric
k e

mp
loy

ee
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ina
de
qu
ate

 or
 la
ck
 of
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sy
ste

ms
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

La
ck
 of
 M
gm

 su
pe
rvi
sio

n 
an
d c

as
ew

ork
 ov

ers
igh

t   
    
    
    
    
 

La
ck
 of
 st
an
da
rd 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d 
co
ntr

ac
tin
g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

La
ck
 of
 tra

ini
ng
/ 

aw
are

ne
ss
 at
 se

rvi
ce
 

lev
el 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fa
ilu
re 

to 
fol
low

 Po
licy

 
an
d P

roc
ed
ure

s e
.g.
 pa

n-
Lo
nd
on
 Sa

feg
ua
rdi
ng
 

pro
ce
du
res

Consequence(s)Cli
en
t s
uff
eri
ng
 

pre
ve
nta

ble
 ab

us
e /
 lo
ss
 

of 
life

 (in
cl.
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 
eff
icie

nc
y/s

erv
ice

 
ch
an
ge
s) 
Su

sta
ine

d 
me

dia
 at
ten

tio
n 

Le
ga
l/G

ov
t in

ter
ve
nti
on
 or

 
ins

pe
cti
on
 R
ep
uta

tio
n 

da
ma

ge
 to
 H
arr

ow
 

Co
un
cil 

Mi
sc
on
du
ct 

iss
ue
s

ContingenciesRe
sp
on
se
s t
o O

H&
S a

nd
 D
uty

 
of 
Ca

re 
Inc

ide
nts

 

C2
On

-G
oin

g 
CS

B
All

On
go
ing

 qu
art

erl
y m

on
ito
rin
g o

f 
de
ma

nd
 fo
r s
erv

ice
 an

d s
taf
fin
g 

lev
els

 an
d r

ep
ort

 to
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo

ard
s.

Re
gu
lar
 re

vie
ws

 of
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 an
nu
al,
 in
ter

na
l a
nd
 

inc
ide

nt 
ba
se
d r

ev
iew

s e
.g.
 Se

rio
us
 

Ca
se
 R
ev
iew

s. 
Fo

rm
al 
QA

 an
d Q

A b
oa
rd 

co
ns
ide

rs 
les

so
ns
 le
arn

t fr
om

 in
cid

en
ts.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

IPA
D 
pro

ce
ss
. 

HS
P a

nd
 co

ns
titu

en
t a
ge
nc
ies

 to
 

mo
nit
or,

 e.
g. 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Bo

ard
, 

Ad
ult
s P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Bo

ard
 an

d l
oc
al 

Sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 Ad

ult
s B

oa
rd.

H&
S p

lan
s a

nd
 tra

ini
ng
 pr

og
ram

me
, 

an
d o

cc
up
ati
on
al 
He

ath
 po

lici
es
 fo
r 

sta
ff.

Re
cru

itm
en
t p
roc

es
s (
inc

lud
ing

 C
RB

 
ch
ec
ks
),  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

1:1
 m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d s
up
erv

isio
n.

Co
de
 of
 co

nd
uc
t a
nd
 au

dit
 

req
uir
em

en
ts.

Va
ca
nc
y r
ate

s a
nd
 us

e o
f lo

cu
m 

sta
ff h

as
 be

en
 re

du
ce
d. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   A

&H
 & 

Wo
rkf
orc

e S
tra

teg
ies

.

C2

Further ActionsBe
st 
Pr
ac
tic
e F

oru
ms

 in
 Ad

ult
s 

Se
rvi
ce
s -
 le
arn

ing
 th
e l
es
so
ns
 

fro
m 
QA

 an
d c

as
e r

ev
iew

s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
vie

w 
of 
for

ma
l tr
ain

ing
 

pro
gra

mm
e f
oll
ow

ing
 tra

ini
ng
 

ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is.

TB
C 

D2
Ad

ult
s d

im
en
sio

n o
f ri
sk
 

ref
res

he
d/u

pd
ate

d i
n D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1 

wit
h C

aro
l Y

ard
e &

 Su
e S

pu
rlo
ck

Pa
ge
 12

78



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

12
Risk (Event)Bu

sin
es
s 

co
nti

nu
ity

/di
sa
ste

r 
rec

ov
ery

 no
t r
es
ilie

nt 
(TW

)

Cause(s)Na
tur

al 
dis

as
ter

.
Pa

nd
em

ic.
Wa

r/te
rro

ris
m.

Consequence(s)Un
ab
le 
to 
de
live

r 
se
rvi
ce
s.

Lo
ss
 of
 C
ou
nc
il b

uil
din

gs
, 

IT 
or 

sta
ff.

ContingenciesUt
ilis

e S
afe

gu
ard

 re
co
ve
ry 
sit
e. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ha
rro

w 
IT 

Se
rvi
ce
 BC

 Pl
an
 

be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
 by

 C
ap
ita
 in
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 In
for

ma
tio
n 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e \
an
d t
he
 EP

 te
am

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

(IT
 D
isa

ste
r R

ec
ov
ery

) 

D2

Further Actions Al
l B

CP
 Pl

an
s t
o b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 

(M
arc

h- 
Ma

y 2
01
2) 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
gu
lar
 bu

sin
es
s c

on
tin
uit
y 

tra
ini
ng
 fo
r C

SB
/C
LG

 - 
sc
he
du
led

 23
.02

.12

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il's

 BC
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e c
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 
an
d w

ill u
nd
erg

o t
he
ir a

nn
ua
l re

vie
w 

fol
low

ing
 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
res

tru
ctu

re,
 

du
rin
g M

arc
h -

 M
ay
 20

12
, ju

st 
pri
or 

to 
the

 O
lym

pic
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's

 
BC

 pl
an
s a

re 
up
 to
 da

te 
an
d f
it f
or 

pu
rpo

se

 Al
l 3
4 B

CP
s a

t d
ep
art

me
nta

l le
ve
l 

co
mp

let
ed
.

On
go
ing

 bu
sin

es
s c

on
tin
uit
y 

wo
rks

ho
ps
 fo
r s
erv

ice
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d 

ab
ov
e (

ne
w/
up
on
 pr

om
oti
on
).

BC
 aw

are
ne
ss
 pa

rt s
taf
f in

du
cti
on
 & 

BC
 in
fo 
on
 th
e H

ub
. 

Nig
htl
y d

ata
 ba

ck
 up

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
.

SA
P d

isa
ste

r re
co
ve
ry 
pla

ns
.

An
nu
al 
rev

iew
 of
 al
l B

CP
s a

nd
 

tes
tin
g o

f S
AP

 da
ta 
rec

ov
ery

 at
 

rem
ote

 da
ta 
ce
ntr

e b
y C

ap
ita
.

Qu
art

erl
y &

 on
go
ing

 lia
iso

n w
ith
 

We
st 
Lo
nd
on
 bo

rou
gh
s a

nd
 an

nu
al 

for
um

 w
ith
 al
l L
on
do
n b

oro
ug
hs
 to
 

sh
are

 be
st 
pra

cti
ce
 an

d l
es
so
ns
 

lea
rnt

.
On

go
ing

 lia
iso

n b
y E

me
rge

nc
y T

ea
m 

wit
h D

ire
cto

rat
es
.

Ta
ble

 to
p t
es
tin
g o

f C
orp

ora
te 
an
d 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 BC

P c
om

ple
ted

 Fe
b 

20
11
.

Su
ng
ua
rd 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ag

ree
d a

nd
 

in 
pla

ce
.

D1
D1

20
12
/13

TW
80
%

Pa
ge
 13

79



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

13
Risk (Event)In

ad
eq

ua
te 

em
erg

en
cy
 

pla
nn

ing
 in

 pl
ac
e t

o 
de

al 
wi
th 

ma
jor

 
inc

ide
nts

Cause(S
ev
ere

 w
ea
the

r, 
ex
plo

sio
ns
, te

rro
ris
m 
an
d 

pa
nd
em

ic.

Consequence(s)Co
mm

un
ity
 di
sru

pti
on
.

Re
pu
tat
ion

 da
ma

ge
.

ContingenciesIm
ple

me
nt 
Ma

jor
 In
cid

en
t P

lan
.

D1
Se

nio
r m

an
ag
em

en
t tr

ain
ing

 
(C
SB

 & 
CL

G)
 sc

he
du
led

 fo
r 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Lo
nd
on
-w
ide

 an
nu
al 
ex
erc

ise
 

Ex
 Al

tiu
s o

n 2
4-2

6th
 Ap

ril 
20
12
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

An
nu
al 
tra

ini
ng
 fo
r M

em
be
rs 
as
 

pe
r M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pr
og
ram

me

20
12
/13

TW
As

 at
 Q
3 p

rep
ara

tio
n f
or 

the
 O
lym

pic
s 

CS
 O
pe
rat

ion
s a

nd
 R
es
ilie

nc
e 

Pla
nn
ing

 is
 w
ell
 un

de
rw
ay
 w
ith
 th
e E

P 
tea

m 
pa
rtic

ipa
tin
g i
n e

xe
rci
se
s w

ith
 

mu
lti-
ag
en
cy
 pa

rtn
ers

 ac
ros

s L
on
do
n 

an
d a

lso
 lo
ca
l tr
ain

ing
 fo
r c
ou
nc
il 

ma
na
ge
rs 
an
d d

ire
cto

rs,
 eg

 Ex
-

Fo
rtiu

s 1
7.0

1.1
2.

All
An

nu
al 
rev

iew
 of
 M
ajo

r In
cid

en
t 

Pla
ns
, in

clu
din

g e
me

rge
nc
y 

res
po
ns
e p

roc
ed
ure

s.
Em

erg
en
cy
 re

sp
on
se
 of
fic
er 

vo
lun

tee
r ro

ta/
Du

ty 
Dir

ec
tor

 ro
ta 
in 

pla
ce
 & 

up
da
ted

 bi
an
nu
all
y..

On
go
ing

 lia
iso

n &
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 

GL
A R

es
ilie

nc
e T

ea
m,
 C
ab
ine

t 
Of
fic
e.

All
 D
uty

 D
ire
cto

rs 
up
 to
 da

te 
on
 EP

 
tra

ini
ng
.

Pa
rtic

ipa
ted

 in
 Sa

fer
 C
ity
 ex

erc
ise

 
(Lo

nd
on
-w
ide

 M
arc

h 2
01
1).

 
An

nu
al 
ha
nd
s-o

n t
es
tin
g e

xe
rci
se
 fo
r 

se
nio

r m
an
ag
ers

.
Me

mb
ers

 tra
ini
ng
 (D

ec
 20

11
)

Se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t tr

ain
ing

 
(Fe

bru
ary

 20
11
)

All
 pl
an
s i
n p

lac
e a

nd
 re

gu
lar
ly 

rev
iew

ed
, w

ith
 re

gu
lar
 tra

ini
ng
 

pro
vid

ed
 to
 al
l s
en
ior
 m
an
ag
er,

 
inc

lud
ing

 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
in 
tes

tin
g 

ex
erc

ise
s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Mu
lti-
ag
en
cy
 m
idd

le 
ma

na
ge
rs 

ex
erc

ise
 on

 a 
CB

R 
inc

ide
nt 

(18
/11

/20
11
).

Co
un
cil 

wid
e B

C 
ph
on
e c

as
ca
de
 te
st 
 

(23
/11

/20
10
).

D1
90
%

Further Actions

D2

Pa
ge
 14

80



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)Th

ere
 ar

e i
ns

uff
ici
en

t 
sc
ho

ol 
pla

ce
s (

pr
im

ary
, 

se
co

nd
ary

 an
d s

pe
cia

l 
sc
ho

ols
) fo

r p
ro
jec

ted
 

pu
pil

 nu
mb

ers

* S
ch
oo
l e
xp
an
sio

n p
rog

ram
me

 
wil

 be
 ex

ten
de
d t
o S

ec
on
da
ry 

an
d S

pe
cia

l S
ch
oo
ls 
to 
co
pe
 

wit
h i
nc
rea

se
 in
 nu

mb
ers

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

*T
he
 ou

tco
me

 of
 th
e 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 pr
op
os
als

 to
 

ex
pa
nd
 up

 to
 11

 pr
im
ary

 
sc
ho
ols

 w
ill b

e r
ep
ort

ed
 to
 

Ca
bin

et 
in 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
11
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

*E
xp
an
sio

n p
rog

ram
me

 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 C
ap
ita
l S

tra
teg

y f
or 

Ca
bin

et 
to 
ag
ree

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n m

ad
e f
or 

PF
I 

fun
din

g (
De

cis
ion

 D
ec
 11

)   
    
   

Aw
ait
ing

 ou
tco

me
 on

 go
vt.
 

sc
ho
ols

 ca
pit
al 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

an
d a

wa
itin

g c
on
firm

ati
on
 of
 

Ha
rro

w 
all
oc
ati
on
s f
or 

20
12
/13

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Cause(s)Inc
rea

sin
g b

irth
-ra

te 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Po
pu
lar
ity
/de

ma
nd
 fo
r 

su
cc
es
sfu

l H
arr

ow
 

sc
ho
ols

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Mi
gra

tio
n (

inc
l. p

ote
nti
al 

eff
ec
t o
f H

B c
ha
ng
es
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ec
on
om

ic 
clim

ate
 

de
pre

ss
es
 th
e h

ou
sin

g 
ma

rke
t re

du
cin

g m
ov
es
 

ou
t o
f H

arr
ow

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Op
tin
g-i
n o

f p
riv
ate

 
sc
ho
ol 
ch
oic

e f
am

ilie
s 

int
o t
he
 st
ate

 se
cto

r

Re
gu
lar
 re

po
rtin

g t
o E

dC
F w

ill 
en
ab
le 
mo

re 
rob

us
t m

on
ito
rin
g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Wo
rk 
wit

h s
ch
oo
ls 
to 
ag
ree

 
tho

se
 th
at 
wil

l b
e e

xp
an
de
d  
    
   

Pla
n f
or 

bu
lge

 cl
as
se
s a

nd
 a 

co
nti
ng
en
cy
 of
 ad

dit
ion

al 
bu
lge

 
cla

ss
es
 if 
ne
ed
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
po
rt t

o C
ab
ine

t o
n c

ap
ita
l 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
vie

w 
all
 fu
nd
ing

 op
tio
ns
 eg

 
Df
E n

ew
 PF

I s
ch
em

e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Se
ek
 al
lia
nc
es
 w
ith
 al
ter

na
tiv
e 

pro
vid

ers
, e
g F

ree
 Sc

ho
ols

 an
d 

ne
igh

bo
uri
ng
 au

tho
riti
es

Consequence(s)Br
ea
ch
 of
 st
atu

tor
y 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ne
ga
tiv
e p

ub
lici

ty 
an
d 

Me
mb

er 
cri
tic
ism

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fa
mi
ly 
ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 no

t 
me

t in
cre

as
ing

 fa
mi
ly 

an
xie

ty 
an
d s

ub
se
qu
en
t 

inc
rea

se
d d

em
an
d o

n 
co
un
cil 

res
ou
rce

s a
nd
 

tim
e  
    
 

ContingenciesRe
vie

w 
an
d s

ee
k a

dd
itio

na
l 

fun
din

g e
.g.
 fro

m 
co
rpo

rat
e 

ce
ntr

e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Se
ek
 gr

ea
ter

 al
lia
nc
es
 w
ith
 

alt
ern

ati
ve
 pr

ov
ide

rs,
 eg

 Fr
ee
 

Sc
ho
ols

 an
d n

eig
hb
ou
rin
g 

au
tho

riti
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
op
os
al 
for

 M
TF

S c
on
tin
ge
nc
y

14
2&

3
Sc

ho
ol 
Pla

ce
 Pl

an
nin

g s
tra

teg
y &

 
Sc

ho
ol 
Ex

pa
ns
ion

 Pr
og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
oje

cti
on
s a

na
lys

is 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Pr
im
ary

 H
ea
d T

ea
ch
er 

Wo
rki
ng
 

Gr
ou
p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Sta
nd
ing

 O
ffic

er 
Gr
ou
p  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
ve
nu
e-f

un
din

g s
up
po
rt a

va
ila
ble

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
sp
on
se
 to
 go

ve
rnm

en
t 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 sc
ho
ols

 ca
pit
al 

str
ate

gy
 

C2
Ris

k w
ill r

em
ain

 at
 its

 cu
rre

nt 
ex
po
su
re 

of 
C2

 un
til 
all
 pl
an
ne
d 

co
ntr

ols
 ha

ve
 be

en
 fu
lly 

im
ple

me
nte

d, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in
 re

ga
rd 

to 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ols

. A
t th

is 
po
int
 th
e t
arg

et 
ris
k 

rat
ing

 of
 D
2 w

ill b
e a

ch
iev

ed
. 

C2

Further Actions

TB
C 

D2
01
.10

.12
Ca

the
rin
e 

Do
ran

 

Pa
ge
 15

81



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

15
Risk (Event)Th

ere
 is
 da

ma
ge

 to
 th

e 
rep

uta
tio

n o
f th

e 
Co

un
cil
 an

d f
ail
ur
e t

o 
inv

olv
e a

nd
 en

ga
ge

 
wi
th 

the
 

co
mm

un
ity

/se
rvi

ce
 

us
ers

Cause(s)Hig
h p

rof
ile
 se

rvi
ce
 

fai
lur
e/ 
Inc

ide
nt 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Le
ak
 to
 m
ed
ia 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Su
sta

ine
d p

res
s a

tte
nti
on
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Mi
sh
an
dli
ng
 pr

es
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Un
co
ord

ina
ted

 PR
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
La
ck
 of
 po

litic
al 
/ s
oc
ial
 se

ns
itiv

ity
 of
 de

cis
ion

’s 
im
pa
ct 
on
 co

mm
un
ity
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Consequence(s)Po
or 

pu
bli
c p

erc
ep
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Su
sta

ine
d m

ed
ia 

att
en
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Da
ma

ge
 to
 co

un
cil 

bra
nd
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

La
ck
 of
 in
flu
en
ce
 w
ith
 

Pa
rtn

ers
/st
ak
eh
old

ers

ContingenciesTB
C 

20
12
/13

Ris
k r
em

ain
s a

t it
s c

urr
en
t e
xp
os
ure

 
of 
C2

 go
ing

 in
to 
the

 bu
dg
et 
pe
rio
d. 

Pla
nn
ed
 ac

tio
ns
 m
ov
ing

 in
to 
FY

12
/13

 
wil

l fo
cu
s o

n i
nc
rea

se
d e

ng
ag
em

en
t 

of 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs,
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 ke

y 
pa
rtn

ers
 an

d w
hic

h w
ill g

ive
 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs 
the

 op
po
rtu

nit
y t
o s

ee
 

the
 bi
gg
er 

pic
tur

e, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 th
e 

fin
an
cia

l p
ict
ure

, a
t th

e C
ou
nc
il

All
Me

dia
 tra

ini
ng
 fo
r k
ey
 st
aff
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Wh
ist
leb

low
ing

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Me
mb

ers
 Tr

ain
ing

 & 
Co

de
 of
 

Co
nd
uc
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ea
rly
 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of 
Co

mm
s t
ea
m 
in 

iss
ue
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
rpo

rat
e C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
 

Sta
nd
ard

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

PR
CA

 au
dit
 (8

8%
 sc

ore
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Inv
olv

em
en
t T

rac
ke
r 

C2
C2

CS
B

Further ActionsInf
orm

ati
on
 W

ork
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

20
10
-12

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

IA 
Re

vie
w 
in 
20
11
-12

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
es
s s

tra
teg

y f
or 

12
/13

 bu
dg
et 

cu
ts 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Le
ts 
Ta

lk 
3 P

rog
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    

20
12
/13

 C
T b

oo
kle

t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Inv
olv

em
en
t T

rac
ke
r   

    
    
    

20
12
/13

 C
om

mu
nic

ati
on
s P

lan
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
mm

s s
tra

teg
y w

ill h
igh

lig
ht 

T2
 st
res

sin
g i
nn
ov
ati
on
 an

d 
fin
an
cia

l d
isc

ipl
ine

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Gr
ea
ter

 st
ak
eh
old

er 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
(re

sid
en
ts 
an
d 

int
ere

st 
gro

up
s) 
in 
FY

 12
/13

 in
 

co
un
cil 

de
cis

ion
-m

ak
ing

 fu
rth

er 
to 
"Le

ts 
Ta

lk"
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

"Y
ou
 Sa

id 
- W

e D
id"
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 on

 co
rpo

rat
e p

rio
riti
es
    
    
    
 

30
%

D2

Pa
ge
 16

82



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

16
Risk (Event)Th

e T
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

 
Pr
og

ram
me

 is
 no

t 
su

cc
es
sfu

lly
 de

liv
ere

d 
an

d f
ail
s t

o r
ed

uc
e 

me
diu

m 
to 

lon
g t

erm
 

fin
an

cia
l p

res
su

res
 

Cause(s)Re
du
ce
d /
 lim

ite
d f
un
din

g 
an
d i
n y

ea
r c
uts

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

La
ck
 of
 re

so
urc

es
 

(ca
pa
cit
y /
 ca

pa
bil
ity
) a

nd
 

mu
ltip

le 
pro

jec
ts 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Po
or 

pro
gra

mm
e a

nd
 

pro
jec

t g
ov
ern

an
ce
 an

d 
ma

na
ge
me

nt

Consequence(s)Cr
itic

all
y r
eq
uir
ed
 M
TF

S 
sa
vin

gs
/ef
fic
ien

cie
s a

re 
no
t re

ali
se
d  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
du
ce
d c

us
tom

er 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n /
 re

pu
tat
ion

 
da
ma

ge
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
du
ce
d /
 in
eff
icie

nt 
de
live

ry 
of 
se
rvi
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fa
il t
o a

ch
iev

e l
on
g-t

erm
 

co
st 
sa
vin

gs
.

All
oc
ate

 pr
o-r

ata
'd 
sa
vin

g 
tar

ge
ts 
to 
ea
ch
 ta
rge

t.
Fu

nd
ed
 ba

ck
fill 

for
 bu

sin
es
s 

ca
se
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n.

Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
ter

na
te 
fun

din
g 

op
tio
ns
.

All
CS

B T
ran

sfo
rm

 Bo
ard

 & 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

Tra
ck
er 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Qu
art

erl
y I
Bs

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Su
pp
ort

/ch
all
en
ge
 of
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s, 

e.g
. H

SP
, C

EG
 & 

MG
s, 
CS

B 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ca
pit
a/B

TP
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
nin

g 2
01
1/1

2 -
 an

nu
al 

bu
dg
et 
rev

iew
 /p
an
els

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Fe
bru

ary
 C
ab
ine

t re
po
rt  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Jo
int
 m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 th
e 

Ad
mi
nis

tra
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
-or

d. 
of 
ac
tiv
ity
 w
ith
 BT

B  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

C2
C2

CS
B 

As
 at
 Q
3 t
his

 ris
k r
em

ain
s t
he
 sa

me
. 

Ne
w 
me

diu
m-

ter
m 
bu
dg
et 
wil

l b
e 

ag
ree

d a
t fu

ll c
ou
nc
il w

hic
h i
de
nti
fie
s 

fur
the

r M
T s

av
ing

s b
ut 
wh

ich
 do

es
 

no
t c
los

e M
T f

un
din

g g
ap
. F

urt
he
r 

wo
rk 
wit

h o
ffic

ers
 an

d M
em

be
rs 
is 

the
ref

ore
 re

qu
ire
d. 

Further ActionsDir
. ri
sk
 re

gis
ter

s t
o i
nc
lud

e 
ris
ks
 to
 re

so
urc

ing
 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 

pro
jec

ts 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
-or

din
ati
on
 & 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

ac
tiv
ity
 w
ith
 BT

B  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Mo
bil
e &

 Fl
ex
ibl
e W

ork
ing

 
Pr
oje

ct 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

IA 
Re

vie
w 
of 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n i
n 

20
11
/12

    
    
    
    
    
    
 N
ew

 
joi
nt 
wo

rki
ng
 gr

ou
p w

ith
 

Me
mb

ers
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

60
%

D2
On

-G
oin

g 

Pa
ge
 17

83



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

17
Risk (Event)Ina

de
qu

ate
 O
H&

S 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
to 

en
su

re 
ap

pr
op

ria
te 

as
se
t m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
me

et 
du

ty 
of 

ca
re 

ob
lig

ati
on

s.

Cause(s)La
ck
 of
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
al 

ca
pa
cit
y a

nd
 ca

pa
bil
ity
 fo
r 

lon
g t
erm

 O
H&

S 
pro

gra
mm

e m
an
ag
em

en
t.

Ine
ffe
cti
ve
 as

se
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ov
er 

de
pe
nd
en
cy
 on

 ke
y 

co
ntr

ac
tor

s
Ne

w 
OH

&S
 le
gis

lat
ion

 fo
r 

Co
un
cils

.

Consequence(s)Re
pu
tat
ion

 da
ma

ge
.

HS
E p

ros
ec
uti
on
 an

d c
ivil

 
leg

al 
pro

ce
ed
ing

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 fin
an
cia

l 
pe
na
ltie

s.
Ina

bil
ity
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d d
eli
ve
r 

OH
&S

 se
rvi
ce
 to
 re

qu
ire
d 

sta
nd
ard

.
Fa

ilu
re 

to 
co
mp

ly 
wit

h 
leg

isla
tio
n (

ne
w 
an
d 

ex
ist
ing

).

D2
20
11
/12

1,2
, 3

Co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 Br

en
t C

ou
nc
il f
or 

OH
&S

 Se
rvi
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
rpo

rat
e H

&S
 C
om

mi
tte
e a

nd
 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
 H
&S

 G
rou

ps
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

As
be
sto

s M
an
ag
em

en
t  R

ev
iew

  
Ins

ura
nc
e i
n p

lac
e &

 KP
Is 
se
t.

As
be
sto

s &
 Le

gio
ne
lla
 M
gm

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Gr
ou
p i
n p

lac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

H&
S T

rai
nin

g P
lan

/Pr
og
ram

me
As

se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t P

lan
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

H&
 S 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n a
gre

ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Sta
ff d

ev
elo

pm
en
t (1

-2-
1s
, in

du
cti
on
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
Mo

nit
ori
ng
 of
 w
ork

for
ce
 pr

ofi
les

 w
ith
in 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 ac

tio
n t
ak
en

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 co

ntr
ac
tor

/co
ntr

ac
t p
erf

orm
an
ce
, e
.g.
 EA

S &
 O
H&

S. 
Sic

kn
es
s m

on
ito
rin
g

H&
S b

ud
ge
ts&

 ac
tio
n p

lan
s i
n p

lac
e.

Re
gu
lar
 re

vie
w 
of 
ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
ts 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ins

pe
cti
on
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 Pr

ov
isio

n o
f tr

ain
ing

 fo
r s
taf
f, m

an
ge
rs 
an
d m

em
be
rs.
 

C1
C1

To
m 

Wh
itin

g 
As

 at
 Q
3 t
he
 au

dit
 to
ol 
tria

l h
as
 be

en
 

co
mp

let
ed
 an

d t
he
 au

dit
 to
ol 
is 
be
ing

 
rol
led

 ou
t a
cro

ss
 th
e C

ou
nc
il. 
Th

e 
Po

licy
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

 re
vie

w 
is 
we

ll 
un
de
rw
ay
 w
ith
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

do
cu
me

nts
 ap

pro
ve
d a

t th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e H

ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet
y G

rou
p. 

Iss
ue
s h

av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d w

ith
 

reg
ard

 to
 st
atu

tor
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a

nd
 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 of
 w
ork

 eq
uip

me
nt.
 A 

wo
rki
ng
 gr

ou
p h

as
 be

en
 se

t u
p t
o 

res
olv

e t
he
se
.

Ro
llin

g p
rog

ram
me

 of
 po

licy
 & 

pro
ce
du
re 

rev
iew

s -
 as

be
sto

s, 
fire

, a
cc
ide

nts
, le

gio
ne
lla
, e
tc 

(20
11
/12

).
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 

int
ern

et/
int
ran

et 
OH

&S
 co

nte
nt 

(20
11
/12

)
Ch

ec
k a

sb
es
tos

 re
gis

ter
 

ag
ain

st 
ma

in 
as
se
t re

gis
ter

 to
 

ide
nti
fy 
all
 C
ou
nc
il b

uil
din

gs
 

wit
h a

sb
es
tos

. (O
cto

be
r 2

01
0 -

 
Re

po
rt t

o C
RS

G)
.

IA 
rev

iew
 of
 as

be
sto

s 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
wit

hin
 H
ou
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce
s (
No

v 2
01
0).

* H
SE

 
ins

pe
cti
on
 fo
llo
w 
up
 in
 Ju

ne
 

20
11
. A

ll H
SE

 no
tic
es
 no

w 
lift
ed
.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Fu
ll im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s i
n S

ick
ne
ss
 

Ab
se
nc
e  
an
d A

sb
es
tos

 
Ma

na
gm

en
t (H

ou
sin

g S
toc

k) 
IA 

rep
ort

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Fir
e M

gm
 ar

ran
gm

en
ts 
to 
be
 

as
se
ss
ed
/re

vie
we

d. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Se
lf-a

ud
itin

g s
oft
wa

re 
too

l 
(Ju

ne
 20

11
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
Re

cru
itm

en
t to

 ne
w 
H&

S t
ea
m 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 N
ew

 H
&S

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n a
gre

ed

40
%

Pa
ge
 18

84



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

18
All

Risk (Event)Ine
ffe

cti
ve
 po

liti
ca
l 

int
erf

ac
e (

inc
lud

ing
 

op
po

sit
ion

) / 
fai

lur
e t

o 
ma

int
ain

 go
od

 w
or
kin

g 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wi
th 

ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n a

nd
 

op
po

sit
ion

.

Cause(s)Ch
an
ge
 of
 le
ad
ers

hip
 / 

po
litic

al 
co
ntr

ol.
La
ck
 of
 M
em

be
r 

aw
are

ne
ss
 of
 co

un
cil 

fra
me

wo
rks

/pr
oc
es
se
s.

Consequence(s)Co
nfl
ict
ing

 pr
ior
itie

s -
 

ten
sio

ns
 be

tw
ee
n l
oc
al,
 

reg
ion

al 
an
d n

ati
on
al 

ag
en
da
.

Contingencies* M
ee
t w

ith
 Le

ad
er,

 C
hie

f 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
, C

SB
 an

d C
ab
ine

t.

Ne
w 
se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t 

str
uc
tur

e w
ill g

rea
ter

 su
pp
ort

 
Me

mb
ers

' n
ee
ds
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ris
k w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 
mo

nit
ore

d o
n a

n o
n-g

oin
g b

as
is 

D2

Further Actions

40
%

D3
20
11
/12

Re
gu
lar
 m
ee
tin
gs
 be

tw
ee
n L

ea
de
r &

 
De

pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 

(A
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 & 

Op
po
sit
ion

) a
nd
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e.

On
go
ing

 re
vie

w 
of 
Se

nio
r 

Of
fic
er/

Me
mb

er 
rol
es
 at
 Aw

ay
 D
ay
s.

Re
gu
lar
 m
ee
tin
gs
 be

tw
ee
n 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r a
nd
 po

rtfo
lio
 

ho
lde

rs.
Re

gu
lar
 Aw

ay
 D
ay
s w

ith
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

Me
mb

ers
 an

d S
en
ior
 O
ffic

ers
.

Re
gu
lar
 C
ab
ine

t b
rie
fin
gs
.

Inf
orm

al 
Ca

bin
et 
me

eti
ng
s.

CS
B L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

Le
ga
l S

erv
ice

s c
on
tin
ue
 to
 w
ork

 w
ith
 

the
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 G
rou

p o
n 

go
ve
rna

nc
e.

Qu
art

erl
y M

em
be
r b

rie
fin
gs
 an

d 
sh
ow

ca
se
s. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
nti
nu
ed
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h 
Le
ad
ers

hip
 G
rou

p t
o d

ev
elo

p a
nd
 

ma
int
ain

 go
od
 w
ork

ing
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip.

D2
Hu

gh
 Pe

art
Vie

w 
of 
CS

B o
n m

ain
tai
nin

g t
his

 ris
k 

on
 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

to 
be
 

inv
ite
d a

s p
art

 of
 Q
3 m

on
ito
rin
g.

Pa
ge
 19

85



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

19
All

Risk (Event)La
ck
 of

 co
mm

itm
en

t to
 

cli
ma

te 
ch

an
ge

 an
d t

o 
red

uc
ing

 ca
rb
on

 
em

iss
ion

s 

Co
rpo

rat
e c

arb
on
 re

du
cti
on
 

pla
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
:Fi
t p
rog

ram
me

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Lia
iso

n w
ith
 TP

 fo
r re

co
gn
itio

n 
& b

ac
kin

g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
du
cti
on
 to
 be

 a 
req

uir
ed
 

cri
ter

ia 
for

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ex
ist
ing

 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

res
ou
rce

s (
no
n-R

e:F
it) 
to 
be
 

ma
de
 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Aff
ord

ab
le 
Wa

rm
th 
pro

gra
mm

e  
    
    
  

No
ne

Cause(s)Un
pla

nn
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o 

ma
int
en
an
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Se
mi
-in
de
pe
nd
en
ce
 of
 

sc
ho
ols

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

La
ck
 of
 fo
cu
s o

n 
red

uc
tio
n i
n k

ey
 co

un
cil 

pro
ce
ss
es
 

Consequence(s)Inc
rea

se
d &

 av
oid

ab
le 

co
sts

 in
cu
rre

d d
ue
 to
 

ex
po
su
re 

to 
CR

C 
sc
he
me

 
(cu

rre
ntl
y £

25
0K

 pa
 an

d 
ris
ing

)   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ina
bil
ity
 to
 m
itig

ate
 ris

ing
 

me
diu

m-
ter

m 
en
erg

y 
co
sts

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ta
rge

ts 
no
t a
ch
iev

ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
un
cil 

as
se
ts 
red

uc
ed
 in
 

va
lue

 du
e t
o l
ac
k o

f 
ad
ap
tio
n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
pu
tat
ion

 da
ma

ge
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Me
mb

er/
po
litc

al 
cri
tic
ism

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

ContingenciesBu
ild
 in
cre

as
es
 in
 en

erg
y a

nd
 

CR
C 
co
sts

 in
to 
the

 M
TF

S

En
erg

y s
av
ing

 m
ea
su
res

 in
 pl
ac
e a

t 
Civ

ic 
Ce

ntr
e &

 D
ep
ot 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

CS
B &

 D
MT

 si
gn
-of

f o
f C

lim
ate

 
Ch

an
ge
 st
rat

eg
y  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

£2
M 
su
cc
es
sfu

l M
TF

S b
id 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
:Fi
t &

 G
LA

 fra
me

wo
rk 
in 
pla

ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Su
bm

itte
d 1

0/1
1 b

as
eli
ne
 fo
otp

rin
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

We
st 
Lo
nd
on
 bo

rou
gh
s l
iai
so
n 

C2
N/
A 
- 

Ne
w 

Ri
sk
 

Further Actions 

50
%

D3
Ap

r-1
2

Br
en

do
n 

Hi
lls
 

Pa
ge
 20

86



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r

20
Risk (Event)O

pp
or
tun

ity
 R
isk

    
    
    
 

Inc
rea

sin
g I

nc
om

e f
ro
m 

Sc
ho

ols
 &
 Pa

rtn
eri

ng
 

Op
po

rtu
nit

ies

Cause(s)Pu
rch

as
ing

 fre
ed
om

 of
 

ac
ad
em

ies
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ov

era
ll 

Co
un
cil 

Bu
dg
et 
an
d a

bil
ity
 

to 
su
bs
idi
se
 sc

ho
ols

 

Consequence(s)* E
nh
an
ce
d c

om
me

rci
al 

foo
tin
g  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* P
ote

nti
al 
lon

ge
r te

rm
 

pro
fits

 bu
t p
os
sib

le 
sh
ort

 
ter

m 
los

se
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* C
rea

tio
n o

f a
 cu

sto
me

r 
foc

us
se
d s

tra
teg

y  
    
    
   

* S
tra

teg
y f
or 

ma
rke

t 
gro

wt
h &

 ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 

ma
rke

t b
as
e t
o i
nc
lud

e 
the

 w
ide

r p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r   
    
    
    
 

* R
ed
uc
tio
n o

f s
erv

ice
 

ov
erh

ea
ds
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* In
cre

as
ed
 fo
cu
s o

n 
va
lue

-ad
din

g a
cti
vit
y &

 
cu
sto

me
r re

qu
ire
me

nts
 

Contingencies* 
Sc

ali
ng
 ba

ck
 of
 se

rvi
ce
s  
    
    
    
 

* L
ike

ly 
red

un
da
nc
ies

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ad
dit

ion
al 
Q3

 C
om

me
nta

ry 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Fe
es
 & 

Ch
arg

es
 R
ep
ort

 fo
r 

bu
dg
et-

se
ttin

g C
ab
ine

t in
clu

de
s 

a c
om

me
rci
al 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

ma
rke

ts 
wh

ich
 w
ill g

en
era

te 
an
 

inc
rea

se
 in
 in
co
me

 & 
sta

rte
d t
o 

sh
ift 
cu
ltu
res

 to
wa

rds
 co

st 
& 

inc
om

e a
wa

ren
es
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* P
roj
ec
t G

ov
ern

an
ce
 D
raf

ted
    
 

* P
roj
ec
t &

 re
lat
ed
 de

live
rab

les
 

wil
l re

po
rt i
nto

:   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

* M
on
thl
y C

SB
 Tr

an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 

rep
ort

ing
 cy

cle
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

* Q
rtly

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 cy

cle
    
    
    
    

* In
co
me

 w
ill f

ea
tur

e m
ore

 
str
on
gly

 in
 m
on
thl
y D

MT
s  
 

B3
2

* C
SB

 ha
s o

ve
rsi

gh
t  o

f th
e p

roc
es
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* G
oo
d u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e c
os
t 

ba
se
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* A
pp
oin

tm
en
t o
f a
n i
nte

rim
 

co
mm

erc
ial
isa

tio
n m

an
ag

er 
    
    
    
    
 

* L
on
g e

xp
eri

en
ce
 of
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 

sc
ho
ols

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 * 

Go
od
 an

d i
mp

rov
ing

 re
lat

ion
sh

ips
 

wit
h s

ch
oo
ls 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* S
up

po
rt 
for

m 
ce
ntr

al 
fin
an
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    

* A
ca
de
mi
es
 te

nd
eri

ng
 op

tio
ns

 
pa
pe
r b

ein
g d

raf
ted

    
    
    
    
    
    
 * 

Cr
ea
tin
g s

tru
ctu

red
 PI

D 
for

 fe
es
, 

ch
arg

es
 & 

co
mm

erc
ial
ati
on
 pr

oje
ct 

C3
N/
A

31
/12

/11
Ju
lie
 

Ald
ers

on
* O

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 co

ve
r a

ll m
ark

et 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 & 
wil

l b
ec
om

e a
 m
ore

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
Co

un
cil 

co
nc
ern

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* P
ro
gr
es
s: 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
* 

Ac
ad

em
y T

en
de

r C
om

ple
te 

    
    
  * 

Pr
ice

s s
ub
mi
tte
d f
or 

Ac
ad
em

y w
ork

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* L
es
so
ns
 in
lcu

de
 a 
ca
lcu

alt
ion

 
me

tho
do
log

y &
 AB

C 
ap
pro

ac
h  
    
  * 

Pr
icin

g s
tru

ctu
res

 ex
po
se
 hi
gh
 co

sts
 

of 
int
ern

al 
pro

vis
ion

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

* S
LA

 Pa
ck
 C
om

ple
te 

    
    
    
    
    
   

* 3
0 S

LA
s h

av
e b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d a
nd
 

pu
bli
sh
ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   *

 
Ne

w 
pri
cin

g s
tru

ctu
res

 fo
r m

an
y 

se
rvi
ce
s o

ffe
rin
g g

rea
ter

 cu
sto

me
r 

ch
oic

e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* S
tak

eh
old

er 
me

eti
ng
s a

rra
ng
ed
 fo
r 

1s
t F

eb
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

* S
tak

eh
old

er 
Me

eti
ng

s 
    
    
    
  * 

All
 H
ea
dte

ch
ers

 & 
Dir

ec
tor

s  
    
    
   *

 
He

ad
s E

xe
cu
tiv
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
   *

 
Sc

ho
ol 
Bu

sin
es
s M

an
ag
ers

    
    
   *

 
SL

A P
ac
k Q

&A
 Se

ss
ion

)   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* S
ee
 Ad

dit
ion

al 
Co

mm
en
tar

y A
sid

e  
    
    
   *

 

Further Actions* D
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
 

sta
ke
ho

lde
r r
ela

ted
 st

rat
eg

y  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

* In
clu

sio
n o

f s
tak

eh
old

er 
lia
iso

n  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

* R
ev
iew

ing
 of
 se

rvi
ce
s t
o 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
to 
cu
sto

me
rs 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* R
ev
iew

ing
 co

st 
ba

se
 in
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 
se
rvi
ce
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

* R
ev
iew

ing
 fe
es
 an

d c
ha
rge

s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

* H
igh

lig
hti
ng
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

cu
ltu

ral
 ch

an
ge

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

* D
em

on
str
ate

 th
e o

utc
om

es
 

of 
ch

an
ge

 

60
%

Pa
ge
 21

87



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)Op

po
rtu

nit
y R

isk
 

At
tra

cti
ng

 In
wa

rd
 

Inv
es
tm

en
t [M

ajo
r 

De
ve
lop

me
nt]

 - D
RA

FT
 

Cause(s)La
ck
 of
 cl
ea
r p

oli
cy
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 re
so
urc

e 
co
ns
tra

int
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
mp

eti
tio
n f
or 

Pla
ce
 & 

Fu
nd
ing

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Su
pp
res

se
d g

lob
al 

ec
on
om

y  
    
    
    
    
    

Fin
an
cia

l  p
res

su
re 

on
 

co
ns
um

er 
dis

po
sa
ble

 
inc

om
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    

Benefit(s)Cir
ca
. £
1B

 in
ve
stm

en
t 

po
ten

tia
l   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Sig
nif
ica

nt 
ca
pit
al 
rec

eip
t 

fro
m 
lan

d s
ale

s/j
oin

t 
ve
ntu

res
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

We
alt
h c

rea
tio
n a

nd
 

ec
on
om

ic 
gro

wt
h i
n t
he
 

loc
al 
ec
on
om

y  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Inc
rea

se
 in
 fo
otf
all
 & 

loc
al 

em
plo

ym
en
t   
    
    
    
    
  

Inc
rea

se
d h

om
e b

uil
din

g 
(in
cl.
 af
for

da
ble

 ho
me

s) 

ContingenciesAp
pe
al-
led

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ma
yo
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Co
rpo

rat
ion

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Lo
ca
l e
mp

loy
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

es
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Pie
ce
me

al/
su
b-o

pti
ma

l p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r la
nd
 di
sp
os
als

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
un
cil 

be
co
me

s a
 pr

im
ary

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
co
mp

an
y 

1.1
.13

An
dre

w 
Tre

he
rn 

D1
N/
A 

Ne
w 

Ris
k 

Further ActionsAA
P f

or 
H&

W 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ne
w 
Co

rpo
rat

e P
lan

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ou
ter

 Lo
nd
on
 Fu

nd
 (R

ou
nd
 2)

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

To
wn

 C
en
tre

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
pu
tat
ion

all
y a

nd
 st
rat

eg
ica

lly 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
sit
es
, in

clu
din

g 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 an

d l
an
d 

se
cu
riti
es
 (e

g K
od
ak
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

35
%

B1
 

21
All

So
un
d c

ore
 st
rat

eg
y/v

isio
n (

LD
F) 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Ne
w 
co
rpo

rat
e s

tru
ctu

re 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Po
sit
ive

 de
mo

gra
ph
ic 
pro

file
 fo
r 

inv
es
tm
en
t   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Str
on
g r

ep
uta

tio
n f
or 

Pla
ce
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ma
jor
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t P

an
el 
    
    
    
    
    
   

No
ne

Pa
ge
 22

88



No.

B2

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls
(In

 Pl
ac
e a

nd
 Ef

fec
tiv

e)

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Th

is 
Qu

art
er 

(af
ter

 
co

nt
ro
ls

)
Str

uc
tur

ed
 an

d d
isc

ipl
ine

d b
ud
ge
tar

y 

Ri
sk
 D
es
cri

pti
on

All

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Da
te

Ta
rg
et 

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g
Ri
sk
 O
wn

er
Co

ntr
ol 

Pr
og

res
s 

% 
(In

cl.
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n D

ate
)

Corporate 
Priority

Q3
 U
pd

ate
 &
 C
om

me
nta

ry

As
 at
 Q
3 t
he
 ris

k o
f n
ot 
de
live

rin
g o

n 
On

-G
oin

g A
cti
on
s 

90
%

D2
31
.03

.12
Ju

lie
 

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
(U
nd

erw
ay
 or

 Pl
an

ne
d)

D2

Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
La

st 
Qu

art
e

r
Risk (Event)Op

po
rtu

nit
y R

isk
 C
los

er 
su
pp
ort

 se
rvi
ce
 w
ork

ing
 

wit
h t
he
 em

erg
en
t C

lin
ica

l 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 G
rou

p t
o 

de
live

r in
teg

rat
ed
 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ith
 an

 
ad
dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e s

tre
am

 
(po

ten
tia
lly 

£4
M)

 flo
win

g 
to 
the

 C
ou
nc
il

Cause(s)Mo
de
rni
sa
tio
n o

f th
e N

HS
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

He
alt
h a

nd
 So

cia
l b
ill  

    
    
    
 

Lo
ca
lism

 ag
en
da
 (a

s 
op
po
se
d t
o t
he
 re

gio
na
l 

ag
en
da
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sh
are

d h
ist
ory

 an
d 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f w
ork

ing
 

tog
eth

er 
as
 pa

rtn
ers

Consequence(s)Mo
re 

int
eg
rat

ed
, e
ffic

ien
t 

an
d h

igh
er 

qu
ali
ty 

se
rvi
ce
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Co
un
cil'

s c
oll
ab
ora

tiv
e 

an
d c

om
me

rci
al 
sk
ill-
se
ts 

are
 de

ve
lop

ed
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Up
 to
 £4

M 
ad
dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Kn
ow

led
ge
 sh

ari
ng
 an

d 
clo

se
r re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 w
ith
 

pa
rtn

ers
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Co
un
cil'

s w
ide

r V
isio

n o
f 

its
elf
 em

po
we

red
    
    
    
  

Str
ate

gic
 m
om

en
tum

 
ma

int
ain

ed
 

Contingencies

22
2,3

Pr
es
en
tat
ion

 to
 C
SB

 (O
ct 
11
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Pr
es
en
tat
ion

 to
 G
Ps

 (S
um

me
r 1

1) 
 

He
alt
h I
nte

gra
tio
n G

rou
p i
n p

lac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

He
alt
h &

 W
ell
be
ing

 Bo
ard

 in
 pl
ac
e  

Co
un
cil 

sk
ill-
se
ts 
alr
ea
dy
 in
 pl
ac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

His
tor

y o
f s
ha
red

 w
ork

ing
 an

d 
co
lla
bo
rat

ion
 w
ith
 fu
nd
am

en
tal
 

se
rvi
ce
s a

lre
ad
y i
n p

lac
e  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Go
od
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 w
ith
 G
Ps

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Me
eti
ng
s a

nd
 w
ork

sh
op
 w
ith
 th
e 

He
alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be
ing

 Bo
ard

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

NW
 R
SO

 Pr
os
pe
ctu

s s
ub
mi
tte
d  
    
    
 

Me
mb

ers
 br

ief
ed
 on

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

su
pp
ort

 as
 pa

rt o
f re

gu
lar
 sc

he
du
led

  b
rie
fin
gs

Ra
tin
g a

nd
 ex

po
su
re 

rem
ain

 ov
era

ll 
un
ch
an
ge
d a

s a
t Q

3. 
Pr
og
res

s o
n 

co
ntr

ols
 un

de
rw
ay
 is
 in
 pr

og
res

s a
nd
 

on
-go

ing

D3
N/
A 

Ne
w 

Ri
sk
 

Further ActionsMe
eti
ng
s a

nd
 w
ork

sh
op
 w
ith
 

the
 H
ea
lth
 & 

We
llb
ein

g B
oa
rd 

pla
nn
ed
 (J
an
 20

12
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n f
or 

Au
tho

ris
ed
 

Pr
ov
ide

r s
tat
us
 (A

pri
l 2
01
2) 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Bu
ild
 on

 co
mm

erc
ial
isa

tio
n 

wo
rk 
be
ing

 do
ne
 w
ith
 sc

ho
ols

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 C
CG

 an
d 4

 ot
he
r 

Lo
nd
on
 bo

rou
gh
s (
Ja
n -

 M
arc

h 
20
12
) to

 de
ve
lop

 fu
ll b

us
ine

ss
 

ca
se
 on

 jo
int
 w
ork

ing
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

In 
dis

cu
ss
ion

 w
ith
 Br

en
t, 

Ea
lin
g, 
Ho

un
slo

w 
an
d 

Hil
lin
gd
on
 on

 po
ss
ibl
e j
oin

t 
ve
ntu

re 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

40
%

C2
No

v-1
2

Pa
ul 

Na
jsa

rek

Pa
ge
 23

89



90

This page is intentionally left blank



    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
AP

PE
ND

IX 
2 

Q3
 C
SB

 H
igh

-Le
ve
l S

tra
teg

ic 
Ri
sk
 R
ep

or
t –

 Se
izi
ng

 &
 Ex

plo
itin

g O
pp

or
tun

itie
s/C

om
me

rci
ali
sa
tio

n  
  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ri
sk
 

No
 

Ke
y R

isk
 

Op
po

rtu
nit

y  
Ri
sk
 

Ra
tin

g 
Co

ntr
ol 

St
rat

eg
y 

Ri
sk
 

Ap
pe

tite
  

Ke
y C

on
tro

ls 
  

Co
ntr

ol 
Pr
og

res
s 

Co
ntr

ol 
Ind

ica
tor

  
CS

B 
Ac

tio
n 

21
 

At
tra

ct
in

g 
In

wa
rd

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t [
M

aj
or

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 C

irc
a.

 
£1

B 
po

te
nt

ia
l] 

   
   

   
(A

T)
 

 
Tr

ea
t/E

xp
lo

it 
  

O
pe

n 
-

Se
ek

in
g 

� S
ou

nd
 c

or
e 

st
ra

te
gy

/v
isi

on
 (L

DF
) 

� A
AP

 fo
r H

ar
ro

w 
& 

W
ea

ld
st

on
e 

 
� N

ew
 c

or
po

ra
te

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
& 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
   

 
� M

aj
or

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
an

el
   

  
� S

tro
ng

 re
pu

ta
tio

n 
fo

r P
la

ce
 &

 p
os

iti
ve

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic 

pr
of

ile
 fo

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t t

o 
be

 m
at

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 
� O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

Fu
nd

 (R
ou

nd
 2

) &
 to

wn
 c

en
tre

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

� R
ep

ut
at

io
na

lly
 &

 s
tra

te
gi

ca
lly

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

ite
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 la

nd
 s

ec
ur

itie
s 

(e
g 

Ko
da

k)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

   
35

%
 

 
 

20
 

Sc
ho

ol
s' 

In
co

m
e 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
[p

ot
en

tia
lly

 £
1-

2M
 

in
co

m
e 

st
re

am
]  

   
 

(J
A 

& 
C

D)
   

 
Tr

ea
t/E

xp
lo

it 
O

pe
n 

-
Se

ek
in

g 
 

� C
SB

 o
wn

er
sh

ip
 &

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 &

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
� C

en
tra

l f
in

an
ce

 s
up

po
rt 

& 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

p 
� I

nt
er

im
 C

om
m

er
cia

lis
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 in
 p

la
ce

  
� L

on
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 w
or

kin
g 

wi
th

 s
ch

oo
ls 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

m
at

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

  
� A

ca
de

m
y 

te
nd

er
 c

om
pl

et
e 

& 
SL

A 
pa

ck
 c

om
pl

et
e 

� S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 s
tra

te
gy

 (i
nc

l. 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n)
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
  

� C
os

t b
as

e 
re

vie
w 

to
 c

re
at

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r p

ric
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
� S

tru
ct

ur
ed

 fe
es

 &
 c

ha
rg

es
 P

ID
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
  

  
60

%
 

 
 

22
 

Su
pp

ly 
of

 s
er

vic
es

 to
 

th
e 

Cl
in

ica
l 

Co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 

G
ro

up
  [

up
 to

 £
2-

4M
 

in
co

m
e 

st
re

am
] (

PN
) 

 
Tr

ea
t/E

xp
lo

it 
O

pe
n 

-
Se

ek
in

g 
� P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

to
 C

SB
 &

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 G

Ps
  

� G
oo

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 G

Ps
  

� H
ea

lth
 In

te
gr

at
io

n 
G

ro
up

 &
 H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
s 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
on

-g
oi

ng
 d

isc
us

sio
ns

 w
ith

 th
es

e 
 

� C
ou

nc
il s

ki
ll-

se
ts

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 c
an

 b
e 

m
at

ch
ed

 
� H

ist
or

y 
of

 s
ha

re
d 

wo
rk

in
g/

cu
ltu

re
 &

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l s

er
vic

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
m

at
ch

ed
 

� B
ui

ld
 o

n 
co

m
m

er
cia

lis
at

io
n 

wo
rk

 b
ei

ng
 d

on
e 

wi
th

 s
ch

oo
ls 

 
� W

or
kin

g 
wi

th
 C

CG
 a

nd
 4

 o
th

er
 L

on
do

n 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 fu
ll 

bu
sin

es
s 

ca
se

 o
n 

jo
in

t w
or

kin
g 

 
� I

n 
di

sc
us

sio
n 

w
ith

 B
re

nt
, E

al
in

g,
 H

ou
ns

lo
w 

an
d 

Hi
llin

gd
on

 o
n 

po
ss

ib
le

 jo
in

t v
en

tu
re

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

  
40

%
 

 
 

 RI
SK

 IN
DI
CA

TO
R 
TH

IS
 Q
UA

RT
ER

  
CO

NT
RO

L 
IN
DI
CA

TO
R 
TH

IS
 Q
UA

RT
ER

  
 

Op
po
rtu

nit
y/B

en
efi
t R

ea
lisa

tio
n/P

ote
nti
al 
 In
cre

as
ing

    
No

 Pr
og
res

s O
n C

on
tro

ls 
(or

 N
o C

on
tro

ls)
  

 

 
Op

po
rtu

nit
y/B

en
efi
t R

ea
lisa

tio
n P

ote
nti
al 
No

 C
ha
ng
e  

Pr
og
res

s M
ad
e o

n C
on
tro

l Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n  

 

 
Op

po
rtu

nit
y/B

en
efi
t R

ea
lisa

tio
n P

ote
nti
al 
De

cre
as
ing

  
All
 C
on
tro

ls 
Im
ple

me
nte

d  
 

 

  

   
  
 

91



92

This page is intentionally left blank



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 1 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This annual statement of risk appetite is drawn up by the Council in line with best 

professional practice in corporate governance as reviewed by the Financial Reporting 
Council [FRC] further to the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code [2010] 
Section C: Accountability; wherein the Executive [the Cabinet] is responsible on an annual 
basis for “determining the nature and the extent of the significant risks it is willing to take in 
achieving its strategic objectives”. It is generally recognized that a statement of risk appetite 
fulfils this requirement. 

 
1.2 The best practice corporate governance requirement to produce this statement applies 

further to the Code to both private and public sector organisations in the UK.    
 
1.3 It is intended that Cabinet review and approve to ensure that the risks the Council is willing 

to take to achieve the corporate plan are measured, consistent and compatible with the 
Council’s capacity to bear and manage risk and do not expose the Council, or its 
stakeholders, to an unknown, unmanaged or unacceptable degree of risk exposure.  

 
1.4 This statement of risk appetite is also to be read and understood in conjunction with the 

Council’s risk management strategy which is reviewed annually and which was approved 
for 2012-13 by Cabinet in October 2011. The approved statement of risk appetite will be 
incorporated into the risk management strategy.  

 
2. DEFINITION OF RISK APPETITE  
 
2.1 The risk appetite of the Council can be defined as “the amount and type of risk that an 

organisation [the Council] is prepared to seek, accept or tolerate” (Source: British Standard 
on Risk Management BS31100 2008) or similarly, “The amount of risk that an organisation 
is willing to seek or accept in the pursuit of its long term objectives” (Source: Institute of 
Risk Management: Risk Appetite and Tolerance; Guidance Paper 2011). 

 
2.2 Risk is defined “as a barrier to the achievement of strategic objectives” and risk 

management as “the process of understanding and managing the risks that an organisation 
is inevitably subject to in attempting to achieve its corporate objectives” (CIMA Official 
Terminology 2005). Risks can be seen not only as the more conventional threat or hazard 
type risks, they can also take the form of positive risk opportunities, or benefits to be 
exploited or innovated by the Council and its partners in entrepreneurial terms which can 
enhance, increase and accelerate the achievement of its objectives.   

 
2.3 The Council’s statement of risk appetite has two aspects to it. This is firstly to clearly and 

fully state and quantify, and also to disclose to its stakeholders, the nature and extent of the 
key risks it is taking on and is willing to embrace (or to exploit) as part of the delivery of the 
corporate plan. This can be seen as its inherent or “gross” risk acceptance during the year.  

 
2.4 Secondly, it is to clearly set an organisational policy within the Council, also communicated 

to its stakeholders and officers, in regard to what quantifiable level of risk exposure it is 
prepared to retain after control and mitigation action has been taken in relation to these 
risks, and after which point, no further action or mitigation will be undertaken by the Council 
in regard to the exposure. This can be seen as its residual or “net” risk exposure during the 
year. 

 

93



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 2 

2.5 Generally organisational attitudes to risk, including public sector organisations, can be said 
to range across a spectrum of attitudes and appetites, ranging from Low Risk or risk- 
averse appetites at one end of the scale (here there is avoidance of any form of risk and 
uncertainty as a key organizational objective) through to an intermediary Medium Risk or 
cautious approach to risk (here the organisation’s preference is for safe delivery options 
that have a low degree of inherent risk) then ranging to a High Risk or risk-seeking  
position (the organisation is innovative and chooses service delivery options offering higher 
customer satisfaction/quality despite greater inherent risk in these activities). 

 
2.6 It is important to note that gross risk appetites may often vary across different types of risk 

at different times, and may even vary across directorates in these terms and that an 
organisation’s overall gross risk appetite is often a composite or aggregate of these 
different risk appetites.  

 
2.7 The range or spectrum of risks comprising significant risk is commonly defined as being 

made up of five major categories of risk - strategic, financial, service delivery/business risk, 
legal and finally reputation risks. These are outlined in greater detail below. 

 
3. THE COUNCIL’S RISK APPETITE IN 2012-13 
 
3.1 During 2012-13 the Council will have in the main an overall and informed cautious appetite 

for taking significant risk to achieve the corporate plan and for delivering council services in 
support of this. Where significant risks arises the Council and its officers will take effective 
control action to mitigate these risks to minimal and safe levels of net residual risk exposure 
for stakeholders.  

 
3.2 However it is to be noted that whilst the Council will maintain its overall informed cautious 

approach, it will have areas within this where a higher level of risk will be taken such as in, 
for example, in supporting innovation in service delivery. These will be offset by areas 
where it maintains a lower than cautious appetite such as in, for example, matters of 
compliance with law and public confidence in the Council, so leading to its overall and 
informed cautious position on risk. 

 
3.3 The Cabinet also accepts in regard to the taking of risk that there may often be early failure 

and set-back in the longer term process of obtaining the returns and outcomes from 
delivery of the corporate plan, particularly in regard to developing new and innovative 
processes at the Council necessary to achieve the plan.  

 
3.4 The Cabinet will therefore be supportive to all council officers in the taking of necessary, 

calculated and measured risk in order that the objectives the Council has set for itself in the 
corporate plan can be achieved during this time of increasing financial austerity, challenge 
and change.  

 
3.5 The nature and main types of significant risk as mentioned above that the Council will take 

on as part of its risk portfolio in 2012-13 will be as follows:-  
 
   (a). Strategic Risk 
   (b). Financial Risk   
   (c). Service Delivery/Business Risk   
   (d). Legal and Compliance Risk  
   (e). Reputation Risk  
 

94



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 3 

3.6 These risks can be defined as follows:-   
 
 Strategic Risk  
 This is the risk arising from the possible consequences of strategic decisions taken by the 

Council, or the risk of a failure to achieve corporate priorities, and should be identified and 
assessed at the Executive and senior management level of the Council. 

 
 Financial Risk  
 This is the risk of changes in the Council’s financial condition and circumstances, such as 

for example, in its balance sheet assets and liabilities, its funding, income and spending 
levels.    

 
 Service Delivery/Business Risk   
 This is the risk arising from the nature of the Council’s business and operations, for 

example, the risk of a failure to deliver statutory or other services to residents, to fail to 
provide required quality in services, or to fail to provide appropriate services in the event of 
an emergency.  

  
Legal and Compliance Risk  

 This is the risk of successful legal action being taken against the Council, or of the Council 
breaching law in its activities and operations, and is also the risk of losses, possibly fines, 
and other sanctions arising from non-compliance with laws and regulations.   

 
 Reputation Risk 
 This is the risk of a significantly adverse or damaging perception of the Council by the 

general public and Harrow residents. 
 
3.7 The Council’s appetite for these risks on a net residual risk basis can thus be shown 

graphically in overall summary terms as follows:-  
 
Diagram 1: Council Net Residual Risk Appetite for Significant Risk in 2012-13 

 

   
 

              Net Residual Risk Appetite for Significant Risk 

 
 
 

 
Low 
  
 Med  

 
 

High 

Strategic 
Risk 

Financial
Risk 

Service 
Delivery Risk Compliance

Risk 
Reputation

Risk 

Significant Risk 

Ri
sk
 A
pp

eti
te 

Le
ve
l 

95



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 4 

4. THE CORPORATE PLAN AND THE NATURE AND MAIN TYPES OF SIGNIFICANT 
RISK BEING TAKEN ON BY THE COUNCIL IN 2012-13  

 
4.1 Harrow Council provides a wide range of services that improve the quality of life for 

residents, support vulnerable people and which enhance community cohesion.  Over the 
last five years, the quality of those services has improved from in some areas being lower-
quartile in terms of Councils in London to being awarded the title of best achieving Council 
in the UK in the Municipal Journal awards in June 2011.  The Council’s key risk 
management challenge is to maintain and advance its excellent services while at the same 
time managing significant reductions in its spending power.  The Council’s corporate 
priorities are: 

 
• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe; 
• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads; 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need; and 
• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and businesses;  

 
4.2 These will help the Council decide how to best allocate and manage its reducing resources. 

The Council will work in strong collaboration with its partners and in its communities in 
demonstrating its vision: Working Together; Our Harrow, Our Community. During 2012-13 
and beyond the Council will continue to look for efficiency savings to meet the exacting 
financial targets set by Government.  As well as looking at all services to seek better ways 
of achieving agreed outcomes, the scale of the savings required has placed additional 
emphasis on the need for transformational change, that is, changing completely the way in 
which the Council delivers its services and how it involves it partners.  The landscape and 
range of transformational change includes: 

 
• consideration of the Council’s growing role as a commissioning organisation;  
• implementing earlier interventions to improve the quality of life of, for example, 

vulnerable adults and children ,families with complex needs, and reducing their call 
on public services;  

• Participating in schemes to reduce re-offending to reduce the social cost of crime; 
• Developing common assessment and service signposting with partners to improve 

access to services and reduce the costs of multiple assessments; 
• Reducing the number of public buildings used to deliver services in Harrow  
• Considering a common combined access point for more if not all public services. 

 
4.3 The appetite for significant risk as defined above, on a “gross” or inherent risk basis, and on 

a directorate by directorate basis (this produced further to direct engagement of corporate 
directors on their directorate’s risk appetite) is outlined below:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 5 

Diagram 2: Appetite for Acceptance of Strategic Risk  
 

Strategic Risk Appetite

A d u
l t s  &

 H o
u s i n

g  

C h i
l d r e

n ' s  
S e r
v i c e

s  

C o m
m u
n i t y
 a n
d  E
n v i r
o n m

e n t  

P l a
c e  S

h a p
i n g  

L e g
a l  a

n d  
G o v

e r n
a n c
e  

C h i
e f  E

x e c
u t i v
e ' s  

C o r
p o r
a t e
 F i n

a n c
e  

Directorates

Ri
sk
 A
pp

eti
te

High

Med

Low

  
 
 
Diagram 3: Appetite for Acceptance of Financial Risk   
 
 

Financial Risk Appetite

Ad
ult
s &

Ho
us
ing
 

Ch
ild
ren

's
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

un
ity

an
d

En
vir
on
me

nt 

Pla
ce

Sh
ap
ing
 

Le
ga
l a
nd

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Ch
ief

Ex
ec
uti
ve
's 

Co
rpo

rat
e

Fin
an
ce
 

Directorate

Ri
sk
 A
pp
eti
te

High

Med

Low

  
 
 
 
 

 

97



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 6 

Diagram 4: Appetite for Acceptance of Service Delivery Risk  
 

Service Delivery Risk Appetite
Ad
ult
s &

Ho
us
ing

 

Ch
ild
ren

's
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

un
ity

an
d

En
vir
on
me

nt 

Pla
ce

Sh
ap
ing

 

Le
ga
l a
nd

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Ch
ief

Ex
ec
uti
ve
's 

Co
rpo

rat
e

Fin
an
ce
 

Directorate

Ri
sk
 A
pp
eti
te

Low

High

Med

  
 

Diagram 5: Appetite for Acceptance of Legal and Compliance Risk  
 

Appetite for Legal and Compliance Risk

Ad
ult
s &

Ho
us
ing

 

Ch
ild
ren

's
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

un
ity

an
d

En
vir
on
me

nt 

Pla
ce

Sh
ap
ing

 

Le
ga
l a
nd

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Ch
ief

Ex
ec
uti
ve
's 

Co
rpo

rat
e

Fin
an
ce
 

Directorate

Ri
sk
 A
pp
eti
te

High

Med

Low

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 7 

Diagram 6: Appetite for Acceptance of Reputation Risk   
 

Appetite for Reputational Risk

Ad
ult
s &

Ho
us
ing

 

Ch
ild
ren

's
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

un
ity

an
d

En
vir
on
me

nt 

Pla
ce

Sh
ap
ing

 

Le
ga
l a
nd

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Ch
ief

Ex
ec
uti
ve
's 

Co
rpo

rat
e

Fin
an
ce
 

Directorate

Ri
sk
 A
pp
eti
te

Med

High

Low

  
4.4 The Council’s appetite for significant risk when collaborating with its partner organisations 

can be shown below:- 
 
Diagram 7: Our Partnership Appetite for the Acceptance of Significant Risk  

 

 

Partnership Appetite for Significant Risk

Strategic
Risk 

Financial
Risk 

Service
Delivery Risk 

Legal and
Compliance

Risk 

Reputational
Risk 

Type of Risk

Ri
sk
 A
pp
eti
te

Low

Med

High

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 8 

4.5 The above risks are normal and consequential for the Council in conducting its business 
and delivering services across its directorates. They are generated in strategic and 
business terms by the ambition for and the delivery of the corporate plan and organisational 
transformation, and exist with strong reference to the now challenging macroeconomic and 
microeconomic environment in the UK, including centrally the levels of government funding 
and required spending reductions in the public sector. These factors have increased the 
level of total business risk required to be taken on by the Council in order to deliver its 
corporate plan.  

 
4.6 Consequently in 2012-13 the Council will be accepting and taking on additional and 

increased levels of inherent risk than in previous years and in this respect now has a higher 
gross risk acceptance appetite.  

 
4.7 However it believes that over 2012-13 and beyond, it has the leadership, resilience, 

financial discipline, organisational capacity, capability and control environment in place to 
enable it to safely bear this higher level of risk and to manage and mitigate it downwards to 
appropriate and acceptable levels of net residual risk exposure consistent with a local 
authority.   

 
5. NET RISK LEVELS TO BE RETAINED BY THE COUNCIL IN 2012-13 
 
5.1 Whilst the different types of risk above will commonly have different risk appetites and the 

appetites may vary from directorate to directorate, it is rare for any significant risk facing the 
Council to be purely composed of just one type of risk above, or to relate solely in impact to 
just one directorate. Most significant and large scale risks will be commonly composed of 
several risk dimensions and often have a relationship and inter-dependency in impact and 
likelihood terms with other risks and directorates.  

 
5.2 The unifying factor in the Council’s key, potentially large-scale and significant risks, are that 

they are inter-related in this way and form part of a wider collection of risks and risk  
exposure to the Council.  

 
5.3 Management of this key exposure is most effective and efficient when undertaken in 

common and collective terms, rather than on an individual risk by risk basis or appetite by 
appetite basis varying across different directorates. For this reason all of the above Council 
significant risk types will be subject to the same managed down net risk appetite level, 
which will itself be risk-based, and will be driven by the significance and scale of the risk 
concerned and whether that significance is high, medium or low.  

 
5.4 As mentioned above net risk is the final level of exposure of unguarded and unprotected 

risk the Council is willing to take and so at this point exercise the “do-nothing” option in 
regard to the risk.  

 
5.5 The Council’s net risk appetite for negative threat risks (as opposed to positive opportunity 

risks) is shown below by the bolded risk appetite/target risk rating line in the Council’s 
standard risk register template attached at Annex A of this Appendix :-  

 
 
 
 
 
 

100



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 9 

Diagram 8: Risk Appetite for Negative Threat Risks 
  

Council Risk Register Template  

Risk Likelihood  
A Very High           
(>80%) 

 
 

 
Risk A  

  

B High                       
(51-80%) 

 Risk C  Risk B 

C Significant          
(25-50%) 

 
 

Risk D   

D  Low            
(10-24%) 

 
 

    

E Very Low             
(3-9%) 

 
 

  Risk E 

F Almost Impossible 
(0-2%) 

 
 

Risk F   

 
 
Risk Impact  

4. Negligible   
Impact or 
Benefit  

3.Marginal 
Impact or 
Minor 
Benefit  

2.Critical 
Impact or 
Major 
Benefit  

1.Cata-
strophic 
Impact or 
Exceptional 
Benefit  

                                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                         Line of Risk Appetite/Target Risk Rating                  
 
5.6 All risks which appear above the risk appetite line are deemed unacceptable to be carried 

by the Council in residual or target risk terms and will require management review and 
action by officers of the Council. Management must ensure control action taken is 
sufficient, balanced and comprehensive enough to achieve the target risk appetite rating. In 
the above example Risks A and B are unacceptable. Risks at an exposure below the line 
are deemed acceptable. In the above example Risks C, D, and E are deemed acceptable.  

 
5.7 However in the area beneath the line, in which risks are acceptable, if there is any marked 

or significant variation or distance from the actual line of risk appetite then this could lead to 
the risk being disproportionately over managed to a level which is again effectively outside 
of the Council’s risk appetite. In the above example Risk F has been over managed. This is 
because a marginal or relatively scale small risk should it impact has been managed in 
resource terms to an almost impossible level of likelihood and this is disproportionate to the 
risk being faced.   

 
5.8 The Council thus recognizes that all risks should not be managed to the same extent but it 

should be noted further to the line of risk appetite that all significant risk (ie critical or 
catastrophic) will in all circumstances where possible be managed down to a low or very 
low net target risk exposure. Where, however, the risk is deemed to be of lesser scale than 
critical or catastrophic, a higher degree of residual risk exposure and lesser levels of 
mitigation (enabling a higher degree of measured and entrepreneurial risk-taking in 
business terms by officers) will be encouraged further to the pursuit of our corporate 
priorities. 

 
5.9 Where a residual or target risk level is in excess of the risk appetite exposure of the Council 

as indicated above, the risk must further to the Council’s risk management strategy be 

101



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 10

escalated to the next management level for discussion, as part of normal risk reporting, e.g. 
department to division, division to directorate, improvement board to directorate level 
(project risks to the relevant project or programme and/or directorate boards) and, 
ultimately, from directorate level to the Corporate Strategic Board (CSB) of the Council. The 
framework for the reporting and escalation of risks within the Council is based on the 
organisational structure and normal reporting lines. As part of the escalation process, the 
next management level of the Council will be alerted to the risk and will therefore review 
and reassess it in terms of its impact and likelihood on the achievement of objectives at that 
next level and will take action as appropriate. This may mean:- 

 
• managing the risk directly in terms of its mitigation and control  
• adjusting the level of risk they judge suitable for the level below to manage 
• transferring the risk, if possible, appropriate, or cost effective to do so  
• changing the activity giving rise to the risk or exiting the activity giving rise to the risk 

 
5.10 The Council’s risk appetite for positive opportunity risks will similarly be risk-based and 

shown below with reference to the standard risk register template:-  
 
Diagram 9: Risk Appetite for Positive Opportunity Risks 

  
Council Risk Register Template  

Likelihood  
A Very High           
(>80%) 

 
 

 OPP C  
B High                       
(51-80%) 

OPP F   OPP D  
C Significant          
(25-50%) 

 OPP E OPP A  
D  Low            
(10-24%) 

 
 

  OPP B 
E Very Low             
(3-9%) 

 
 

   

F Almost 
Impossible (0-
2%) 

 
 

   

 
Impact  

4.  Negligible   
Impact or 
Benefit 

3.Marginal 
Impact or 
Minor Benefit  

2. Critical 
Impact or 
Major Benefit  

1.Cata-
strophic 
Impact or 
Exceptional 
Benefit  

           
                                     Line of Risk Appetite/Target Risk Rating for Positive Risk Opportunities             
 
5.11 All opportunities which appear below the risk appetite line are not being fully exploited and 

will require management action by officers of the Council in order to more fully exploit them 
and move them to a position of realization. In the above example Opportunities A and B are 
unacceptable for this reason. Opportunities managed to a level above line are deemed 
acceptable because they are being exploited in line with the Council’s opportunity risk 
appetite. In the above example Opportunities C, D and E are deemed acceptable.  

 

102



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 11

5.12 However it is to be noted, as in principle with negative threat risks, that in the areas above 
the line, if there is any marked or significant variation or distance from the actual line of 
opportunity risk appetite, then that opportunity is being over managed. Opportunity F in the 
example above is being over-exploited as it has been managed to high level of likelihood 
when it offers only a negligible benefit or reward relative to other opportunities and this is 
disproportionate.  

 
5.13 In this way management should endeavour to stay above but close to the line of 

opportunity risk appetite and should prioritise larger scale opportunities which have a 
reasonable prospect of success over smaller scale opportunities which may have higher 
levels of likelihood. 

 
5.14 Where a positive risk opportunity is indicated as being managed outside of the Council’s 

risk appetite then this will be escalated as part of normal risk reporting processing to the 
next management level for review and action as outlined above in regard to negative threat 
risks.  

 
5.15 As outlined above, overall the Council’s net residual risk appetite for its key and significant 

risks in 2012-13 is cautious in broad risk terms as shown below:- 
 

Diagram 10: Council Net Residual Risk Appetite for Significant Risk in 2012-13 
 

   
6. DUTY OF OFFICERS 
 
6.1 All of the Council’s elected Members and its staff and officers, including when they are 

working in partnership with other organisations, have a general duty and responsibility as 
part of their actions and agencies on behalf of the Council to manage risk as an integral 
part of their role, which includes ensuring they comply at all times with the framework and 
provisions of the risk appetite of the Council as outlined in this document. 

 
 
 
 

              Net Residual Risk Appetite for Significant Risk 

 
 
 

 
Low 
  
 Med  

 
 

High 

Strategic 
Risk 

Financial
Risk 

Service 
Delivery Risk 

Legal and
Compliance

Risk 
Reputation

Risk 

Significant Risk 

Ri
sk
 A
pp

eti
te 

Le
ve
l 

103



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                            
 

 12

7. MONITORING OF ORGANISATIONAL COMPLIANCE   
 
7.1 Compliance with this risk appetite statement will be regularly monitored and reported on an 

on-going basis to CSB by the corporate risk management function as part of normal risk 
reporting, supported by the Corporate Risk Steering Group (CRSG), the Council’s 
directorate-wide risk champion’s forum, acting in its monitoring and challenging role in 
regard to risk management arrangements.  

 
7.2 Compliance will also be further monitored by the GARM committee of Members who 

monitor and challenge risk management activities and progress at the Council.  
 
7.3 Compliance will also be audited by the Council’s internal audit function and also as part the 

Council’s arrangements for production of the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
 

104



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                             
 

 13

Standard Risk Register Template                   Annex A 
 

RISK RIGISTER  
 
            

   
Review Date: 
Next Review Date:   
 
Risks 
1.   
2.  
3.  
4.  
5.   
6.  
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIKELIHOOD
A Very 
High           
(>80%)
B High                       
(51-80%)

C 
Significant            
(25-50%)

D  Low           
(10-24%)

(10-24%)

E Very 
Low             
(3-9%)

1 
Catastrophi
c Impact / 
Exceptiona
l BenefitIMPACT

4 
Negligible 
Impact / 
Benefit

3 
Marginal 
Impact / 
Minor 
Benefit

2       
Critical 
Impact / 
Major 
Benefit

105



HARROW COUNCIL STATEMENT OF RISK APPETITE 2012-13                     APPENDIX 3                             
 

 14

Standard Risk Register Template            Annex A (Cont’d) 
 

Ri
sk
 N
o. 

 
Ob

jec
tiv

e N
o. 

Risk Description Controls 
(in place and effective) 

Risk 
Rating 
This 
Qtr 
(after 
contro
ls) 

Risk 
Rating 
Last 
Qtr 

Controls  
(underway or planned) 

Control 
Progress 

%  
Target 
Risk 
Rating 

Target 
Risk Date Risk Owner 

 

Ris
k (
Ev

en
t) 

 

 

Ca
us
e(s

) 

 

Fu
rth

er 
ac
tio
ns
 

 

 

 

Co
ns
eq
ue
nc
e(s

) 

 

   

Co
nti
ng
en
cie

s 

 

 
 
 

   

 

106



 

 
 
REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE AUDIT 
AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

29 March 2012  

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT  
Insurance Risks  
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Exempt: 
 

No, except for Appendix 2, which is 
exempt on the grounds that it contains 
“exempt information” under paragraph 3 
of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) in 
that it contains information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information).  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 – Claims Analysis 
Appendix 2 – Actuarial Report (Exempt) 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report provides information on the Council’s current insurance 
arrangements, including self-funding and fund performance, and outlines the 
main insurable risk exposures faced by the Council. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 107 to 118 

107



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The Insurance Service 
 
2.1 The Insurance Service comprises a team of three officers, who strive to 

deliver an efficient, economic and high quality service that meets 
customer needs, corporate priorities and statutory requirements.    

 
2.2 The main aims and areas of responsibility of the service are: 
 

• To provide a commercial insurance service, including the 
maintenance and development of an extensive insurance 
programme   

 
• To provide a comprehensive claims handling service to internal 

and external customers 
 

• To provide advice and guidance to the Council on all insurance 
matters 

 
• To work in partnership with all departments to manage and 

reduce the Council’s exposure to insurable risk 
 
2.3 The service arranges insurance for property valued in excess of £1bn; 

over 300 commercial vehicles; and significant liability exposures.    
 

2.4 Over 600 claims are received each year and annual claims expenditure 
exceeds £1m.   

 
Policy Cover 
 
Property Insurance 
 
2.5 The Council’s Property insurance policy is underwritten by Zurich 

Municipal and is subject to a two-year long-term agreement, which 
expires on 31 March 2014. 

 
2.6 There are three classifications of property under the policy, namely 

general properties, housing properties, and education properties. 
 
2.7 General properties are insured to the sum of £164m; housing 

properties to £566m; and education properties to £349m. 
 
2.8 Academies are not insured under the Council’s central insurance 

arrangements, as they cannot benefit from the Council’s self-insurance 
provision under UK insurance law. 

 
2.9 Under the terms of the policy a £200,000 policy excess applies to each 

and every claim. 
 

108



 

2.10 Subject to the policy excess, cover is provided for Fire; Explosion; 
Aircraft; Malicious Damage (including Riot & Civil Commotion); 
Earthquake; Storm or Flood; Escape of Water; Impact; Escape of 
Water from Automatic Sprinkler Installations; Subsidence; Theft; 
Accidental Damage; and Damage to Fixed Glass. 

 
2.11 Insurance is also arranged for Business Interruption, covering 

increased cost of working, loss of gross revenue, or loss of rent 
receivable resulting from damage to premises arising from the perils 
specified in paragraph 2.10. 

2.12 For general and housing properties, claims for Fire; Lightning; 
Explosion; and Aircraft below the policy excess are met from the 
Council’s internal insurance provision, subject to a £50 excess. 

 
2.13 All claims below the policy excess for education properties arising from 

any of the perils specified in paragraph 2.10 are met from the Council’s 
internal insurance provision.  A £250 excess is charged to schools in 
respect of each loss.  

 
2.14 The policy is subject to an annual aggregate of £1,000,000.  All claims 

within a policy year, irrespective of whether they are below the policy 
excess, count towards the annual aggregate and once this has been 
exceeded any further claims within the policy year will be met by 
insurers.   This is therefore the maximum financial liability attaching to 
the Council for all property claims in any one policy year, thus providing 
financial stability to the Council.   

 
2.15 Separate insurance is held in respect of Terrorism, which is currently 

arranged with Aon Ltd.  All of the Council’s general, housing and 
education properties are declared to the insurers and the limit of 
indemnity in respect of all claims in any one policy year is £35m. 

 
Liability 
 
2.16 The Council’s Liability insurance policy is underwritten by Zurich 

Municipal and is subject to a two-year long-term agreement, which 
expires on 31 March 2014. 

 
2.17 The policy covers Public Liability; Employers’ Liability; Professional 

Errors & Omissions; Libel & Slander; and Land Charges. 
 
2.18 Public Liability insurance covers claims for compensation made against 

the Council by third parties for accidental bodily injury, illness or death, 
and accidental loss of, or damage caused to, property.  Payment of 
compensation under the policy is not automatic; it depends on a 
claimant showing that the Council has been negligent. 

2.19 Employers’ Liability insurance covers claims for compensation for injury 
or disease suffered by anyone under a contract of service or 
apprenticeship with the Council arising out of and in the course of their 
employment.  It also covers costs and expenses incurred in the 
defence of any prosecution brought or made against the Council in 

109



 

respect of a breach of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 or 
any prosecution under the Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate 
Homicide Act 2007.  Again, payment of compensation under the policy 
is not automatic; it depends on a claimant showing that the Council has 
been negligent. 

2.20 Professional Errors & Omissions insurance covers the Council for all 
sums it may become legally liable to pay to a third party for financial 
loss arising as a result of a wrongful act committed or alleged to have 
been committed by a councillor or employee in or about or as a 
consequence of their statutory duties arising out of the business.  It 
also provides automatic cover for services carrying out works of a 
professional nature, such as providing advice, design or specification, 
outside of their statutory duty or powers, except for Architectural; 
Design and Build; and Treasury Management, which are subject to a 
requirement to declare these services individually. 

2.21 The Public and Employers’ Liability and Professional Errors & 
Omissions insurance is subject to a £50m limit of indemnity and a 
£300,000 policy excess, however claims below the excess are met 
from the Council’s internal insurance provision. 

 
2.22 Libel & Slander insurance provides cover for all sums that the Council 

becomes legally liable to pay as damages awarded in libel or slander 
actions arising out of and in the course of the official duties of 
employees.  It also extends to cover councillors in the course of their 
official duties on behalf of the Council, however this extension is 
subject to a co-insurance clause requiring councillors to meet the first 
10% of the cost of any claim.  The policy is subject to a £5m limit of 
indemnity and a £300,000 policy excess, however claims below the 
excess are met from the Council’s internal insurance provision. 

2.23 Land Charges insurance provides cover for claims made by third 
parties in respect of financial loss arising from or in consequence of 
any act or omission of the Council or its employees in the provision of 
information concerning land or buildings in respect of which the Council 
is required to maintain a register or other records.  The limit of 
indemnity is £5,000,000 for any one claim or total of all claims in the 
policy year and the policy is subject to a £300,000 excess, however 
amounts of compensation awarded within this excess are paid from the 
Council’s internal insurance provision. 

2.24 The policy is subject to an annual aggregate of £2,000,000, which is 
the maximum financial liability attaching to the Council for all liability 
claims in any one policy year.   

 
Motor 
 
2.25 The Council’s motor insurance policy is underwritten by Zurich 

Municipal and is subject to a two-year long-term agreement, which 
expires on 31 March 2013. 

 

110



 

2.26 Cover is arranged on a comprehensive basis and is subject to a 
£100,000 policy excess.  Claims below the excess are met from the 
Council’s internal insurance provision. 

 
2.27 The policy is subject to an annual aggregate of £350,000, which is the 

maximum financial liability attaching to the Council for all motor claims 
in any one policy year. 

 
Other  
 
2.28 The Council also arranges insurance for Computer All Risks; Works in 

Progress; Money; Crime; Personal Accident; and Business Travel. 
 
Self-Funding 
 

 2.29 As outlined above, in line with most local authorities Harrow Council 
has a mix of external and internal insurance cover.  The balance 
between these arrangements is constantly reviewed against claims 
statistics to ensure that the Council achieves best value, whilst 
remaining adequately protected.  

2.30 The level of excess is set on a prudent basis in line with similar local 
authorities and recognised best practice.  

 2.31 Claims below the policy excesses that are met from the Council’s 
internal insurance provision are handled subject to the same terms and 
conditions as the external insurance policies.  

 2.32 Claims for damage to third party property caused by the influence of 
the roots of Council trees are entirely self-funded. 

Fund Performance 
 
2.33 The Council’s insurance provision is subject to an independent 

actuarial review, which takes place every three years. 
 
2.34 The latest actuarial review was commissioned in late 2011 to assess 

the fund position at 31 March 2011. 
 
2.35 The fund balance as at 31 March 2011 was £5.2m. 
 
2.36 The review concluded that once all current and future claims from the 

policy years 1995/96 to 2010/11 have settled it is estimated that £4.6m 
of claims payments will have been made from the fund after 31 March 
2011.  The fund’s position has therefore remained stable with a modest 
surplus, however this does not take into account ‘bad years’ of 
potential claims and the actuary’s view is that contributions to the fund 
should increase. 

 
2.37 In addition, the review does not examine the extent of the Council’s 

potential liability in the event that the Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) 
scheme of arrangement is triggered; a further review will be 
commissioned in this regard. 

 

111



 

2.38 A copy of the actuary’s report is attached as Appendix 2 (Part II report). 
 
Main Exposures 
 
2.39 Tree related subsidence is one of the Council’s main exposures in 

terms of risk.  Approximately 95% of the borough’s urban areas are 
situated on London Clay, which is a key factor in tree related 
subsidence claims when combined with a period of dry weather.  Large 
areas of the UK are currently experiencing drought conditions and the 
South East has recently been given official drought status by the 
Environment Agency.  These conditions are likely to give rise to an 
increase in the number of tree related subsidence claims made against 
the Council.  To mitigate this risk, the Insurance Service has 
commenced a project to reduce the cost of these claims through 
improved cross-Council working. 

 
2.40 Schools represent another major exposure to the Council.  Arson is a 

significant risk with national statistics showing around 75% of school 
fires being started deliberately.  The majority of arsons in schools take 
place in London and the South East.  The Council’s insurers actively 
seek to reduce the risk through means such as chairing the Arson 
Prevention Bureau’s School Working Group and the introduction of an 
Arson Combated Together (ACT) toolkit for schools. 

 
2.41 Highways continue to be a main exposure for the Council, accounting 

for the majority of Public Liability claims payments.  Currently 
approximately three quarters of highways related claims are defended, 
however in the event that highway maintenance is reduced the number 
of claims successfully defended would decline. 

 
2.42 Although less costly than Public Liability claims, Motor claims are 

another key exposure to the Council accounting for 41% of all claims 
received.  Fraud involving staged or induced road traffic accidents is on 
the increase together with rising numbers of credit hire claims from 
third parties.  The Insurance Service works closely with Fleet Managers 
and in conjunction with external solicitors and claims handlers to 
reduce the incidence and cost of these claims. 

 
Claims Handling 
 
2.43 A variety of procedures are in force for the handling of claims made by 

and against the Council, dependent on the type and cost of claim. 
 
2.44 All injury claims are handled by external claims handling agents.  In 

accordance with the terms of the contract the claims handling agents 
are required to seek the Council’s authority to settle any claim. 

 
2.45 Non-injury Liability claims, Motor claims, and Property claims are 

handled by the Council’s in-house insurance team. 
 
2.46 Senior staff within the Insurance Service have extensive insurance 

experience in both local authorities and insurance companies and hold, 

112



 

or are progressing towards, Chartered Insurance Institute 
qualifications. 

 
2.47 In relation to those claims handled in-house, the services of loss 

adjusters are commissioned for the majority of claims exceeding 
£5,000. 

 
2.48 All claims are handled strictly on the basis of legal liability in 

accordance with established insurance principles, case law and 
legislation. 

 
Claims Analysis 
 
2.49 The total number of claims against the Council peaked in the 2006/07 

policy year.  With the exception of 2010/11, which saw an increase 
resulting from the harsh winter, claim numbers have been falling 
steadily since the 2008/09 policy year.  Chart 1 of Appendix 1 refers. 

 
2.50 Based on claims received for incidents occurring after 1st April 2009, 

Public Liability claims account for 50% of all claims received; 41% of 
claims fall under the Motor insurance; 7% are Property claims; and 2% 
are Employers’ Liability claims.  Chart 2 of Appendix 1 refers. 

 
2.51 In terms of financial cost to the Council, Public Liability claims account 

for 65% of all claim payments; Motor settlements form 18% of all 
payments; Employers’ Liability account for 9% of claim payments; and 
Property for 8%.  Chart 3 of Appendix 1 refers. 

 
2.52 The top three causes, accounting for 68% of Public Liability claims for 

incidents from 1st April 2009 to date, are potholes (31%), paving trips 
(23%) and tree related subsidence (14%).  Chart 4 of Appendix 1 
refers. 

 
2.53 The top causes in terms of financial cost to the Council are paving trips 

(35%) and tree related subsidence (30%).  Chart 5 of Appendix 1 
refers. 

 
2.54 Analysis from the recent actuarial review illustrates that 2 – 3 

Employers’ Liability claims are received per 1,000 headcount.  The 
average cost per claim is £10,000, equating to £25 - £30 per head.  
This is in line with other authorities. 

 
2.55 Public Liability accounts for 1 – 1.5 claims per 1,000 population.  The 

average cost per claim was £1,500 in earlier policy years, increasing to 
£2,500 - £3,000 in later years in view of increasing cost pressures.  
This equates to £2.50 per head of population, which is in line with other 
authorities. 

 
2.56 78% of Public Liability claims and 52% of Employers’ Liability claims 

submitted against the Council are successfully repudiated. 
 
  
 

113



 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
There is no further information to be provided beyond section 2 of this report. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
In 2012/13 the total cost to the Council of the insurance programme, including 
contributions to the internal provision, is £2.1m. 
 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 
The Insurance Service is a corporate function, which supports all Council 
services and schools in delivering the corporate priorities. 
 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Jennifer Hydari x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 19 March 2012 

   
 
 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Karen Vickery, Service Manager – Insurance 
Tel:   0208 424 1995 (ext. 2995) 
 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114



 

 
Appendix 1 
 

 
Chart 1 
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

No
. o

f C
la
im

s

2 0
0 5 /
0 6

2 0
0 6 /
0 7

2 0
0 7 /
0 8

2 0
0 8 /
0 9

2 0
0 9 /
1 0

2 0
1 0 /
1 1

2 0
1 1 /
1 2

Policy Year

No of Claims by Policy Year

  
 
 
 
Chart 2 
 

Number of Claims by Class of Business 
April 2009 - March 2012

Employers Liability
Motor Vehicle Fleet
Property
Public Liability

  
 
 

115



 

 
 
Chart 3 
 

Cost of Claims by Class of Business  
April 2009 - March 2012

Employers Liability
Motor Vehicle Fleet
Property
Public Liability

  
 
 
Chart 4 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

No
. o

f C
la
im

s

A c c
i de
nt  O

n C
oun

c i l  
P r e

m s

A c c
i de
nt a
l  D
am
age

P ot
hol
e/ C

ar r
i ag
ew
ay

C a
r  P
ar k
 E q

ui p
m e
nt

C h
i l dr
en'
s  P
l a y
gr o
und

C o
unc

i l / C
ont
r ac
t o r  
W o

r k s

E du
c at
i on
 S u
per
v i s
i on

E r r
or s
 &  O

m i s
s i o
ns

F al
l en
 T r e

e /  
B r a

nc h
H o
us i
ng

S ev
er e
 W e

a t h
er

S t r
i m m

er
T r e

e R
oot
s

T r e
es  
-  O
t he
r

P av
i ng
 T r i
ps

Number of Claims by Cause

  
 
 

116



 

 
 
Chart 5 
 

0.00
20,000.00
40,000.00

60,000.00
80,000.00

100,000.00
120,000.00

140,000.00
160,000.00
180,000.00

Co
st
 o
f C

la
im

s
A c c

i d e
n t  O

n  C
o u n

c i l  
P r e

m s

A c c
i d e
n t a
l  D
a m
a g e

P o t
h o l
e / C

a r r
i a g
e w
a y

C a r
 P a
r k  E

q u i
p m
e n t

C h
i l d r
e n '
s  P
l a y
g r o
u n d

C o
u n c

i l / C
o n t
r a c
t o r  
W o

r k s

E d u
c a t
i o n
 S u
p e r
v i s i
o n

E r r
o r s
 &  O

m i s
s i o
n s

F a l
l e n
 T r e

e  /  
B r a

n c h
H o
u s i
n g

S e v
e r e
 W e

a t h
e r

S t r
i m m

e r
T r e

e  R
o o t
s

T r e
e s  
-  O
t h e
r

P a v
i n g
 T r i
p s

O t h
e r

Cost of Claims by Cause

  

117



118

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 
REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

29 March 2012 

Subject: 
 

Draft Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive 
Julie Alderson, Interim Corporate Director  
Resources 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix1: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
 
This report sets out the draft Internal Audit plan for 2012/13 
 
Recommendations:  
The Committee is requested to: 
 

(a) Note the process employed to develop the plan.  
 
(b) Consider and comment on the draft plan, in particular to provide the 

Committee’s view on risk to assist with prioritising and developing the 
final plan. 

 
 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 119 to 128 

119



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\9\AI00076994\$3pxtoao2.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Background 
 
1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit requires the Audit 

Committee (GARM) to approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Plan. 
 
Plan Development 
 
1.2 This report sets out the draft Internal Audit annual plan of work for 

2012/13 (Appendix 1). A top-down approach was adopted to the 
development of the audit plan in –line with the recommended CIPFA 
practice.  

  
1.3 The first draft of the plan was developed after consideration of the risk 

maturity of the organisation; a review of the Council’s Corporate Plan 
2012/13; a review of the current Corporate Risk Register; a review of 
previous Internal Audit work covering the Council’s internal controls; a 
review of previous Internal Audit coverage of key areas, the External 
Audit plan and after seeking the opinion of the Finance Business 
Partners on key areas of financial risk. 

 
1.4 Consultation then took place with the Chief Executive; Corporate 

Directors, including the S151 Officer, Directorate Management Teams 
(senior managers) and specific middle managers, as appropriate, to 
seek views on which areas are considered high risk and to develop the 
audit approach.    

 
1.5 Consultation will be undertaken with the External Auditors on 16th March, 

the Corporate Strategy Board (CSB) on 28th March, this Committee on 
29th March and further consultation with the S151 Officer before the plan 
is finalised. 

 
1.6 Once the consultation process is complete a risk assessment will be 

undertaken to rank the projects on the plan, based on materiality and 
risk, as high, medium or low along with an estimate of the internal audit 
resources required to undertake each proposed audit review, based on 
the suggested scope of each review.   This information will be used to 
produce the final Internal Audit plan which will focus on high risk ranked 
areas. 

 
Plan Structure 
 
1.7 The projects set out in the plan are grouped under the following 

headings: 
 

• Reliance/Assurance Reviews 
• New/Developing Risk Areas 
• Corporate Risk Based Reviews 
• Directorate Risk Based Reviews 

120



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\9\AI00076994\$3pxtoao2.doc 

• Support, Advice and Follow-up 
 
1.8 Included under the Reliance/Assurance Reviews is the work undertaken 

on the Council’s core financial systems which the council's external 
auditors, Deloitte LLP, rely on to inform their risk assessment that guides 
the external audit approach.  This grouping also covers audit work that 
contributes to assurance required for the organisation’s annual review of 
governance. 

 
1.9 Projects grouped under the heading New/Developing Risk Areas cover 

professional audit advice on risk and control in new and developing 
areas and supports the Council’s priorities of modernising the Council 
and protecting frontline services. 

 
1.10 Corporate Risk Based Reviews are reviews that will have impact across 

the Council and involve sample testing across the council with the aim of 
increasing transparency, consistency and compliance. 

 
1.11 The group headed Directorate Risk Based Reviews covers suggested 

reviews specific to directorates, a number of which are linked to the 
Corporate Risk Register and corporate priorities. 

 
1.12 And finally under the grouping Support, Advice and Follow-up a small 

allowance has been made for providing ad-hoc professional audit advice 
throughout the year, for investigating suspected irregularities and for 
following up the implementation of agreed audit recommendations.  

 
1.13 Next to each risk based review on the draft plan is an indication of the 

main driver of the review identified in the planning process i.e. the 
Corporate Risk Register; the Corporate Priorities/Plan; Internal Audit 
(based on cumulative audit knowledge); management; Corporate 
Finance or a combination of these.   

 
Financial Implications 
 
1.13 The functions of the Internal Audit service are delivered within the 

budget available. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
1.14 The work of Internal Audit supports the management of risks across the 

council and the Internal Audit Annual Plan is developed from the review 
of the Corporate Risk Register and the Corporate Plan and risks 
identified by management. 

 
 
Equalities implications 
 
1.15 None. 
 
 
 

121



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\9\AI00076994\$3pxtoao2.doc 

Corporate Priorities 
 
1.16 The work of Internal Audit supports the corporate priorities as described 

above. 
 
 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 19 March 2012 

   
 
 

   
 

Name: Hugh Peart √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 19 March 2012 

   
 

 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson – Service Manager Internal Audit ext. 2420 
 
 
Background Papers: Corporate Risk Register (presented elsewhere on 
the agenda)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

122



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 
 

RELIANCE/ASSURANCE REVIEWS 
 
Core Financial Systems Reviews  
 
These reviews are designed to confirm the presence, or otherwise, of critical high level controls 
within each of the council’s core financial systems.  They are undertaken as part of a 3 year 
cycle in which each system will be reviewed at least once to satisfy the requirements of the 
External Auditors and to enable them to place reliance on the work of Internal Audit to inform 
their risk assessment that guides the external audit approach. Coverage of each system is 
assessed annually having regard to a range of risk factors including changes to systems and 
key personnel.  For 2011/12 the key controls in the following systems will be reviewed, 
managers will be asked to update systems notes and walkthrough tests will be undertaken to 
confirm systems in operation:   
 

• Housing Rents + reconciliation of tenants rental control account (MJ)  
• Corporate Accounts Payable )  To cover split between Shared Services &  
• Corporate Accounts Receivable )   Access Harrow 

 
In addition for the following systems managers will be asked to update systems notes, 
undertake a control risk self assessment and walkthrough tests will be undertaken to confirm 
systems in operation: 
 

• Payroll 
• Council Tax 
• Treasury Management  
• Housing Benefits + impact of decreased internal checks  
• Business Rates  

 
These reviews will be undertaken in Quarter 1 of the financial year to enable the External 
Auditor to utilise them to inform their risk assessment that guides the external audit approach for 
work on the 2011/12 accounts.  At the conclusion of this work on the Council’s core financial 
systems an assurance statement will be produced for the Chief Finance Officer and inclusion in 
the Annual Governance Statement.  Work from the 2011/12 plan on the Capital Programme 
will also be utilised for this purpose and the Capital Programme will form part of the core 
financial systems work from 2012/13.  
 
Assurance Mapping  
Working with Risk Management and the Corporate Governance Group to complete the 
assurance mapping exercise.  Assurance mapping facilitates the identification of any gaps in 
the risk management process. It is a streamlined approach that maps the assurance coverage 
against the organisation’s risks.  Assurance mapping allows risk owners to identify if numerous 
different groups or individuals are repeating assurance activities. It also highlights the need for 
additional assurance activities for risks with inadequate coverage and provides a better 
understanding of the roles and scope of the work undertaken by the various assurance 
providers within the organisation. 
 
Management Assurance 
Review and stream-lining of the assurance areas for the 2011/12 exercise making use of 
alternative assurance provision; co-ordination of the 2011/12 exercise; follow - up of action 

123



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

planned and the revision of the management assurance exercise for 2012/13 in light of the 
outcomes of the assurance mapping exercise. 

 
Corporate Governance  
Organisation of the Corporate Governance Working Group; collection of governance evidence 
to support the annual review of governance; co-ordination and drafting of the 2011/12 Annual 
Governance Statement and support for the Corporate Governance Group and the Governance, 
Audit and Risk Committee.  The Corporate Governance Group will also be considering 
governance arrangements for new delivery models and advising CSB on the development of 
appropriate governance arrangements.  
 
Corporate Strategic Risk Group (CSRG) 
Attendance and contribution to the Strategic Risk Group, to assist the Council in embedding and 
enhancing the risk management process to ensure that risk is actively managed, so that the 
Council can achieve its objectives, take advantage of opportunities and serve Harrow’s 
community better. 
 
Information Governance Board  
Attendance and contribution to the Information Governance Board to ensure that the Council 
has effective policies and management arrangements covering all aspects of Information 
Governance; to support the development of Information Governance standards; to ensure 
compliance with Information Governance requirements placed on the Council, to monitor the 
effectiveness of Information Governance Policies, including undertaking audits and 
assessments and to ensure all relevant risks are recorded in the Council’s corporate risk 
register. 
  
 
 
PROFESSIONAL ADVICE ON NEW AND DEVELOPING AREAS 
 
IT Working Group (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Internal Audit) 
Attendance and contribution to the IT Working Group to evaluate the impact of potential 
changes from the perspective of risk and control and to highlight issues to the project team for 
management. 
 
Business Support Hub (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Internal Audit/Corporate Finance) 
To provide professional audit advice covering risks and internal controls within processes for 
refunds, requisitioning, goods receipting, and cash payment systems.  
 
Integration of Public Health (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Internal Audit) 
To provide professional audit advice on the integration of Public Health into the Council 
covering risk; internal control and good governance. 
 
Localisation of Council Tax Support (Corporate Risk 10 & Management) 
To feed into the project providing audit support on the development of internal control processes 
to ensure risk is minimised. 
 
Social Fund Project (Corporate Risk 10 & Management)  
Feeding into system development, cash payments system + assess impact on cashiers 
 
 

124



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

Modernising Terms and Conditions of Employment (Corporate Priorities/Plan & 
Management) 
To receive and review project minutes and to provide Internal Audit support and professional 
advice on risk and control. 
 
Access Harrow (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Internal Audit) 
Professional advice on risk and internal control as processes are reviewed using lean principles 
and streamlined. 
 
Shop4Support (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Management) 
To provide risk and control advice on the development of a financial payment process for the 
Shop4Support on-line social care shopping portal. 
 
Benefit Reform (Corporate Risk 10 & Management) 
To provide professional audit advice on the systems to be developed in response to Benefit 
Reform.   
 
 
CORPORATE RISK BASED REVIEWS 
 
 
Financial Regulations (Internal Audit) 
A review to ensure that the regulations are fit for purpose, robust, transparent, reflect best 
practice and the needs of the Council.  The review will also consider ways of improving 
compliance across the Council. 
 
Petty Cash/Cash Payments (Internal Audit & Management) 
To ensure that processes are consistent and robust across the Council and that regulations are 
being complied with.  
 
Data Quality (Internal Audit & Management) 
To be covered as part of audit reviews where relevant plus a review of the policy to ensure that 
it reflects the Data Quality Standards and that relevant officers are aware of it. 
 
Budget Setting (Corporate Risk 2)  
To review the budget setting process to ensure that the process mitigates risk effectively.  The 
review will cover budget ownership; use of historical data; Budget Manager engagement; the 
sign off process, how well budgets reflect service requirements; flexibility within the ‘bottom line’ 
and the role and accountabilities of the Budget Manager, the relevant Divisional 
Director/Corporate Director and  the Finance Business Partner/Corporate Finance.  
 
Budget Monitoring (Corporate Risk 2)  
To review the budget monitoring process covering the role and accountabilities of the Budget 
Manager, the relevant Divisional Director/Corporate Director and  the Finance Business 
Partner/Corporate Finance; the KPO6 process including timeliness; authorisation of expenditure 
from other budgets; journals (authorised both within and outside of Finance) and  reporting. 
 
Duplicate Payments (Internal Audit) 
Weakness highlighted during a 2011/12 review caused by duplicate suppliers set up on SAP + 
weak control over authorisation.  Testing across the Council will be undertaken to assess extent 
of issue. 
 

125



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

Implementation of Efficiency Savings (including procurement) (Corporate Risk 2, 7, 16) 
Mid-year check on the implementation and management of proposed efficiencies and 
procurement savings.  Detrimental impact on MTFS if not achieved.  If another process is in 
place to check progress then IA to review the process to ensure it is robust.    
 
Transformation – Protocol for Managing Organisational Change (Corporate Risk 5 & 6) 
Review of the protocol’s ‘fitness for purpose’, benchmarking against recognised good practice 
and benchmarking with other authorities. To cover compliance with protocol across the Council 
and ‘lessons learnt’ from previous projects. Trade Union opinion also to be considered. 
 
Project Management (Internal Audit) 
Review sample of projects (both major and local) to ensure mandatory project management 
methodology in use and how this adds value and to assess the use of the project management 
tool (Verto)  
 
Income/Debt recovery (Corporate Risk 2) 
A review of the Council’s debt recovery policy and processes to ensure a consistent/joined up 
approach is taken across the organisation. To include a sample check of income streams 
across the Council to ensure that the processes for recording at point of receipt, banking and 
recording in the SAP system are robust; that the cost of income collection is known and justified 
and that  write-offs are appropriate.   
 
Management of Long term Sickness (Management) 
Sample check of case handling across organisation to ensure that management is robust and 
in-line with corporate standards and a review of reporting processes/monitoring within 
Directorates. 
 
Contract Monitoring (Corporate Priorities/Plan) 
A review of contract monitoring processes in place for Corporate Contracts covering the 
adequacy, application and effectiveness of processes in place. 
 
 
 
DIRECTORATE RISK BASED REVIEWS 
 
CHILDREN & FAMILIES 
 
SCHOOLS  
 
Financial Control & Governance Reviews (Internal Audit) 
Following the demise of FMSiS and the introduction of the less robust Schools’ Financial Value 
Standard (SFVS) Internal Audit will embark on a three year programme of school reviews 
covering the adequacy, application and effectiveness of financial controls and governance 
procedures in place.  The annual SFVS self assessments undertaken by schools will be utilised 
as part of the annual risk assessment process to determine which schools will be reviewed by 
Internal Audit each year with the aim of covering each school at least once within the next three 
years.  In conjunction with Schools Financial Services Team Internal Audit will monitor the self 
assessments provided by schools and provide appropriate assurance to the S151 officer to 
facilitate the sign off of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) CFO Statement. 
 
 
 

126



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery (Corporate Risk 12)  
To be picked up during the review of the annual SFVS self assessments, to obtain evidence 
from schools that adequate arrangements are in place. 
 
COMMUNITY, HEALTH & WELLBEING 
 
Client Finances (Internal Audit/Corporate Finance) 
Review of the process for managing Client Finances to ensure robust financial controls are in 
place to mitigate the risks of loss, fraud and error. 
 
Fairer Charging (Corporate Priorities/Plan & Management) 
A review of the financial assessments for chargeable social care services carried out by the 
Joint Assessment Team to ensure client contributions to services are accurate; in line with 
Council policy and assessment is timely. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENT 
 
Property Maintenance (Strategic Risk 17) 
A review of planned maintenance for Council owned buildings to ensure that the frequency and 
quality of cyclical maintenance is appropriate to mitigate significant risks e.g. Health & Safety, 
Corporate Manslaughter, reputation. 
 
Highways Contract (Management) 
A follow-up of the management of the Highways Contract to cover new ways of working being 
developed. 
 
 
PLACE SHAPING 
 
Commercial Rents/Asset Management (Corporate Risk 3)  
Are we managing leases/assets in the most appropriate way for the current economic climate 
and in a way that will encourage economic growth in the borough.  The review will also cover 
write offs. 
 
Planning Enforcement (Internal Audit) 
Review of adequacy, application and efficiency of controls in place to mitigate risk. 
 
Long Term Economic Growth in The Borough (Corporate Risk 3) – A whole risk approach 
Assess the effectiveness of the controls in place mitigating the risk that the Council fail to 
achieve long term economic growth in the borough.  To begin with a joint review of the controls 
identified as mitigating this risk on the Corporate Risk Register involving Internal Audit, Risk 
Management and Place Shaping Management.                                                                      
 
RESOURCES 
 
Concessionary Travel (Management) 
To review the process within Access Harrow to ensure that they are robust and to review the 
clarity of the accountability for the service.  
 
 
 

127



 

IA Plan 12/13 Draftv6 – 19/03/12 

Information Management /Security (c/f from 2011/12) 
A review covering adequacy of and compliance with policies, mitigation of risk, communication 
and engagement with staff and effectiveness of controls in place. 
 
CAPITA (Corporate Finance) 
Transparency of payments and profit element – to be covered by IA reviewing evidence and 
providing assurance.  
 
Pensions (Internal Audit) 
Review of the pension process to ensure adequacy, application and effectiveness of controls in 
place to mitigate risk. 
 
 
 
 SUPPORT, ADVICE & FOLLOW-UP 
 
An allowance will be made in the plan for support and advice to managers across the Council  
and for the development of the Internal Audit service: 
 
Suspected Financial Irregularities + Control Reviews  
Guidance will be provided, in liaison with CAFT, to managers undertaking investigations and 
specific investigations will be undertaken on behalf of managers. Plus system control reviews 
will be undertaken where weaknesses  have been identified as a result of fraud. 
 
Professional Advice  
Professional advice will be provided to managers, as required, on risk and control 
management/issues with particular emphasis being given to providing control advice for Lean 
Review outcomes. 
 
Follow-up  
Follow-up of Red and Amber reports to ensure implementation of agreed audit 
recommendations. 
 
 

128



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
  

Date of Meeting: 
 

29 March 2012 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Future 
Appointment of the External Auditors 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting,  Assistant Chief Executive 
Julie Alderson, Interim Corporate Director 
Resources  
 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: Strategy for making auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 and future years 
Appendix 2: The process for audited bodies to 
object to a proposed auditor appointment 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the Audit Commission’s strategy for making auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 and future years and the process for audited bodies 
to object to a proposed auditor appointment. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 129 to 152 

129



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\9\AI00076996\$lozhfiag.doc 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1.1   In August 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government announced plans to disband the Audit Commission and to 
allow local public bodies to appoint their own auditors. At the same time, 
he indicated his intention to transfer the Commission’s in-house Audit 
Practice (the Audit Practice) to the private sector and, in due course, to 
abolish the residual element of the Commission.  

 
1.2 At its meeting in July 2011, the Audit Commission Board agreed to 

undertake a procurement exercise.  The objectives of the procurement 
exercise was to transfer successfully to the private sector the audit work 
currently delivered by the Audit Practice, so as to maximise value for 
money. 
 

1.3 The Commission have decided, in consultation with Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG), to award five-year 
contracts. The strategy (Appendix 1) sets out the basis on which the 
process of developing, consulting on and formally making auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 and future years will be carried out. 

 
1.4 The objectives of the appointment process is to ensure that: 

■ an ‘interim’ auditor is appointed in accordance with section 3 of the 
Audit Commission Act 1998 (the Act) by 1 April 2012; 
■ a ‘permanent’ auditor is appointed to all principal bodies within the 
Commission’s audit regime from 1 September 2012; and 
■ there is a smooth and efficient transfer from the outgoing to the 
incoming auditor. 

 
1.5 On the 6th March 2012 the Audit Commission issued an update on the 

outcome of the procurement exercise to outsource the work of the 
Commission's in-house audit practice and on the process for making 
auditor appointments for 2012/13 and subsequent years.  This update 
confirmed that: “Where a body is currently audited by an auditor from the 
Commission's in-house Audit Practice, we will propose as the appointed 
auditor the firm that was awarded the contract in each area, unless there 
are good reasons that to do so would be inappropriate. Where a body is 
currently audited by a firm, we propose to extend that appointment. In all 
cases we will be consulting on the appointment of the firm - which in law 
will be the appointed auditor - not the individual engagement lead.” 

 
1.6 For Harrow this means that the Audit Commission will be proposing that 

Deloitte LLP be appointed as both the Council’s ‘interim’  (1 April 2012 – 
31st August 2012) and ‘permanent’ auditor (1st September 2012 – 31st 
August 2017).   

 
1.7 In May 2012 the Director, Audit Policy and Regulation (APR) will formally 

consult audited bodies on the proposed auditor appointments.  The 
process for audited bodies to object to a proposed auditor appointment 
is outlined in Appendix 2. 

130



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\9\AI00076996\$lozhfiag.doc 

 
1.8 Subject to the Parliamentary timetable, local public bodies will not be 

able to appoint their own auditors until 2017/18 at the earliest as the 
Audit Commission has decided, following consultation, to award 
contracts for five years.  Until the Audit Commission Act 1998 is 
replaced by new primary legislation, the current legal framework under 
which the Commission is responsible for making auditor appointments 
will remain in place. 

 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
1.9 Updates will be included on future GARM Committee agendas as 

appropriate. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
1.10 The financial implications will be known and considered during the 

formal consultation. 
 
Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
1.11 None. 
 
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
1.12 N/A 
 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 19 March 2012 

   
 
 
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson, Service Manager Internal Audit ext. 2420 
 
Background Papers:  Attached as appendices 
 
 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Strategy for 
making auditor 
appointments for 
2012/13 and 
future years
January 2012 

133



 
 

The Audit Commission is a public corporation set up in 

1983 to protect the public purse.

The Commission appoints auditors to councils, NHS 

bodies (excluding NHS Foundation trusts), police 

authorities and other local public services in England, 

and oversees their work. The auditors we appoint are 

either Audit Commission employees (our in-house Audit 

Practice) or one of the private audit firms. Our Audit 

Practice also audits NHS foundation trusts under 

separate arrangements.  

We also help public bodies manage the financial 

challenges they face by providing authoritative, 

unbiased, evidence-based analysis and advice. 

 

134



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

1

 
 

Contents 

Introduction ........................................................................................................2

Background...................................................................................................2

Purpose of this document .............................................................................3

Objectives of the appointment process.........................................................3

Evolution of the strategy ...............................................................................4

The legal background........................................................................................5

The Audit Commission Act 1998 ..................................................................5

Future arrangements ....................................................................................6

The process of making auditor appointments for 2012/13 ............................7

Interim appointments ....................................................................................7

The process of consulting on permanent 2012/13 auditor appointments .....8

Making the appointment .............................................................................11

Timetable ..........................................................................................................12

Appendix 1: The Appointments Panel ...........................................................13

Terms of reference .....................................................................................13

Membership ................................................................................................13

Reporting arrangements .............................................................................14

Appendix 2: The auditor appointment process.............................................15
 

135



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

2

 
 

Introduction 

Background

1 In August 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced plans to disband the Audit Commission (the 
Commission). At the same time, he indicated his intention to transfer the 
Commission’s in-house Audit Practice (the Audit Practice) to the private 
sector and, in due course, to abolish the residual element of the 
Commission.  

2 The Commission worked closely with the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG) and their external advisors on developing 
and evaluating the options. 

3 Ministers subsequently concluded that the option for achieving such a 
transfer, which offered the best value for money, as well as being the 
quickest and, in their view, the most straightforward, was to outsource the 
70 per cent of audits of principal bodies currently delivered by the Audit 
Practice from the 2012/13 audit year, by means of a public procurement 
exercise.  

4 At its meeting in July 2011, the Commission Board agreed to undertake 
the procurement exercise.  

5 The objectives of the procurement exercises are to transfer successfully 
to the private sector the audit work currently delivered by the Audit Practice, 
so as to maximise value for money, by:  
  securing the provision of high quality audit services at the best prices 

possible; and  
  minimising the costs of redundancy that may otherwise fall on DCLG, by 

maximising the extent to which audit staff in the Audit Practice transfer 
to successful bidders under Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). 

6 The procurement was also designed to allow, so far as consistent with 
these objectives, a range of firms to bid, to support market plurality during 
the period of transition to new audit arrangements. 

7 The value of the work being outsourced is c£90 million per annum in ten 
Lots, ranging in size from £5 million to £12 million, covering all types of 
audited body in a defined geographical Contract Area. 

8  The Commission is also procuring limited assurance audit services for 
all small local public bodies, to a total value of £2.8 million per annum.  

9 Firms invited to tender were invited to quote prices for contracts of both 
three and five years’ length.  

136



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

3

 
 

 

10 The Commission will decide, in consultation with DCLG, whether to 
award three or five-year contracts. 

11 Decisions about the length of the contracts to be awarded will be linked 
to the government’s timetable for the introduction of, and transition to, new 
local public audit arrangements, and for the disbandment of the 
Commission. In this respect, DCLG has indicated that it will wish to consider 
the potential trade-off between value for money and the benefits of the 
proposed new local public audit arrangements (including local auditor 
appointment). 

12 As a contingency, the Commission will have the right to extend the 
contracts, once awarded, for up to three further years. 

13 The timetable for the procurements provides for contracts to be let to 
new providers by 1 April 2012. This will give the Commission time to 
manage the process of making new statutory auditor appointments for 
2012/13 with effect from 1 September.  

14 The Commission envisages that most Audit Practice staff in each lot 
area will transfer to the successful bidders under the TUPE regulations at 
midnight on 31 October 2012.  

Purpose of this document 

15 This strategy sets out the basis on which the process of developing, 
consulting on and formally making auditor appointments for 2012/13 and 
future years will be carried out.  

16 It applies only to the first round of auditor appointments to principal 
bodies to be made following the completion of the procurement exercise. 
These appointments will be for either a three or five-year period.  

17 There will be a separate process for developing, consulting on and 
formally making any changes to auditor appointments that may become 
necessary in future years, including the appointment of auditors to the new 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups from 2013/14.  

18 There will also be a separate process for appointing auditors to small 
bodies, for which auditor appointments will be made on a county area basis. 

Objectives of the appointment process 

19 The objectives of the appointment process are to ensure that: 
  an ‘interim’ auditor is appointed in accordance with section 3 of the 

Audit Commission Act 1998 (the Act) by 1 April 2012;  
  a ‘permanent’ auditor is appointed to all principal bodies within the 

Commission’s audit regime from 1 September 2012; and 
  there is a smooth and efficient transfer from the outgoing to the 

incoming auditor. 

137



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

4

 
 

Evolution of the strategy 

20 This strategy has been developed in the light of the practical knowledge 
and experience of the Commission in running previous appointment 
processes.  

21 The strategy was formally adopted on behalf of the Commission Board 
by its Appointments Panel at its meeting on 5 January 2012. 

138



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

5

 
 

The legal background 

The Audit Commission Act 1998 

22 The appointment of auditors to local public bodies under section 3 of the 
Act is arguably the Commission’s core statutory function. Under the 
Commission’s governance framework, decisions on the appointment of 
auditors are reserved to the Commission Board.   

23 Section 3(3) of the Act states: 

Before appointing an auditor or auditors to audit the accounts of a 
body other than a health service body the Commission shall consult 
that body. 

24 In addition, the Commission has always consulted all local public 
bodies, including health service bodies, on the appointment of their auditor 
and it will continue to do so. 

25 It is important to emphasise that the statutory duty to consult, and the 
right of local government bodies to be consulted, does not equate to audited 
bodies having a choice or veto over the appointment of their auditors. The 
final decision on the appointment of auditors must rest with the Commission.  
Clearly, however, in proposing auditor appointments, and in responding to 
representations made by audited bodies following consultation, the 
Commission must follow due process and act reasonably. 

26 Section 3(1) of the Act enables the Commission to appoint either: 
a. an officer of the Commission – ie a District Auditor or senior audit 

manager; 
b. an individual who is not an officer of the Commission; or 
c. a firm of individuals who are not officers of the Commission. 

27 Following the outsourcing of the Audit Practice, the Commission 
proposes only to appoint firms in accordance with section 3(1)(c).  

28 The statutory consultation under section 3 will therefore be on the 
appointment of the firm, which in law will be the appointed auditor. This is 
different to the process where we have appointed officers of the 
Commission, where it is the individual concerned who is the appointed 
auditor. Once a firm has been appointed, the identity of the engagement 
lead is a matter for discussion between the firm and the audited body. 
However, all of a firm’s engagement leads have to be approved in advance 
by the Commission, as having sufficient appropriate experience and 
expertise. 

29 In the case of strategic health authorities and NHS primary care trusts, 
we have agreed with the Department of Health that where the current 

139



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

6

 
 

appointed auditor (District Auditor or senior audit manager) and/or their 
second in command (audit manager) transfers to a firm under TUPE, the 
firm will be contractually obliged to nominate those individuals to continue in 
post until at least the completion of the 2012/13 audit unless specific 
circumstances prevent this.   

30 The Commission’s contractual arrangements with firms are such that 
there will always be more than one firm that could be appointed as auditor 
to any individual body. Where an audited body is able to put forward good 
reasons why the auditor proposed by the Commission should not be 
appointed, we will consider those representations carefully and, in the light 
of those representations, decide whether to propose an alternative auditor.  

Future arrangements 

31 In August 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced plans to disband the Commission and to allow local 
public bodies to appoint their own auditors. The government consulted on its 
proposals in March 2011. 

32 In the Government Response to the Future of Local Audit Consultation, 
published by DCLG in January 2012, the government indicated that it 
proposes to publish a draft Bill for pre-legislative scrutiny in Spring 2012. 
This will allow for examination and amendments to be made, in advance of 
the introduction of an Audit Bill as soon as Parliamentary time allows. The 
government has also confirmed that it intends such future legislation to 
provide for local public bodies to have a statutory duty to appoint their own 
auditors. 

33 Subject to the Parliamentary timetable, local public bodies will not be 
able to appoint their own auditors until 2015/16 at the earliest, or 2017/18 if 
the Commission decides, following consultation, it should award contracts 
for five years. 

34 Until the Audit Commission Act 1998 is replaced by new primary 
legislation, the current legal framework under which the Commission is 
responsible for making auditor appointments will remain in place. 

 

140



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

7

 
 

The process of making auditor appointments 
for 2012/13 

Interim appointments 

35 The great majority of current auditor appointments are due to expire 
upon completion of the audit of the accounts for the 2011/12 financial year. 
This is the case both where the appointed auditor is a firm and where the 
appointed auditor is an officer of the Commission from the Audit Practice. 

36 As the contracts arising from the procurement exercise to outsource the 
work of the Audit Practice will not commence until 1 April 2012, the 
Commission will not be able to complete the process of developing 
proposals for, consulting on, and making auditor appointments for 2012/13 
until 1 September 2012.  

37 Where a body’s current auditor is a firm, we do not expect to have to 
change the appointment from 2012/13. However, we can only confirm this 
when the national picture on auditor appointments has been finalised. This 
is because we may need to change some current firms’ existing 
appointments, either to enable us to manage any independence issues that 
may be identified in the appointments process or in response to 
representations from audited bodies. 

38 Because an auditor needs to be in place at the start of the financial 
year, we will need to make an interim auditor appointment to cover the 
period from 1 April to 31 August 2012. 

39 We have proposed extending bodies’ current auditor appointment to 
deal with any issues that may arise during that period. Over the period of 
the interim appointment, the current auditor will be completing the audit of 
the body’s financial statements for 2011/12 and will therefore be monitoring 
issues that could impact on the 2011/12 opinion and certificate. So to 
extend the appointment in this way makes most practical sense and will 
serve to minimise disruption. 

40 We do not expect the interim auditor will need to undertake any 
substantive audit work relating to 2012/13.Their role will be limited to 
keeping a watching brief. Provided this is the case, the Commission will 
meet any costs properly incurred by the interim auditor. 

41 Any issues requiring the interim auditor to do substantive audit work will 
be of an exceptional nature – for example, a need to exercise their statutory 
reporting powers. The interim auditor will tell both the audited body and the 
Commission about the need to do the work. Where appropriate the 
Commission will determine a variation to the scale audit fee to reflect the 

141



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

8

 
 

costs of the work. The additional fee will then become payable by the 
audited body. 

42 The process for consulting audited bodies on interim appointments will 
be managed in the normal way. 

43 We wrote to all relevant audited bodies to consult them formally on the 
interim auditor appointment in December 2011.  

44 The Commission Board will be asked to approve all interim auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 at its meeting on 22 March. 

The process of consulting on permanent 2012/13 
auditor appointments 

45 The process of developing and consulting on permanent auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 will follow the four-stage process outlined below.  

Stage 1 

46 The Commission will begin the process of consulting audited bodies on 
auditor appointments for either three or five years from 2012/13 at the end 
of April 2012.  

47 Initial proposals on auditor appointments will be made by the 
Commission’s Director of Audit Policy and Regulation (APR). 

48 Where a body is currently audited by a firm, we expect to extend the 
current auditor’s appointment from 2012/13. However, we can only confirm 
this when the initial proposals on auditor appointments have been finalised.  

49 This is because, under the terms of our contracts with the firms, we may 
need to change some firms’ current appointments, to enable us to manage 
any independence issues that may be identified as a result of the 
appointment process. A firm may have a prior or current business 
relationship with an audited body – such as providing consultancy services 
directly relevant to auditors’ responsibilities (for example in relation to a PFI 
scheme or the provision of internal audit services) – which would preclude 
the Commission appointing the firm, or the firm accepting appointment, as 
the auditor to that body. We may also need to make changes in response to 
representations from audited bodies. But, in practice, we envisage that any 
changes to firms’ current appointments will be exceptional. 

50 Where a body is currently audited by the Commission’s Audit Practice, 
we will propose the winning firm in each Contract Area as the appointed 
auditor, unless there are good reasons that prevent this. This reflects the 
fact that, through the competitive process run by the Commission, the firm 
will have demonstrated it is the best provider in that geographical area. This 
process included a rigorous assessment of the ability of the firm to deliver 
high-quality audits, so we will be confident of their skills, competence and 
resources to perform the audit to our required standards. The Commission 

142



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

9

 
 

has published the evaluation methodology it applied in evaluating firms’ bids 
on its website. 

51 However, our contract strategy ensures the Commission will have the 
option of appointing a different firm to an audited body should this be 
appropriate.   

52 In developing our initial proposals for auditor appointments we will also 
consider whether certain types of local public body should be audited by a 
limited number of firms nationally, to enable those firms to develop 
appropriate specialisation in the audit of those bodies. Historically, the 
Commission has applied this policy to such single-purpose bodies as police 
authorities and national parks authorities.  

53 We will also consult, at the same time, on the appointment of the auditor 
proposed for 2012/13 and future years to complete any work relating to the 
2011/12 or prior years’ audits that remains outstanding at 31 October 2012.  

54 The incoming auditor will also be required by the Commission to 
complete all grant certification work that has not been completed by that 
date.  his includes the housing benefit and council tax subsidy claim which 
is due to be completed by 30 November 2012. 

55 To support the consultation, the Commission will provide all audited 
bodies in a Contract Area with the opportunity to meet the Commission and 
a senior partner from the firm we have proposed to appoint to bodies in that 
area. This will provide an opportunity for all audited bodies to meet the firm 
and understand how it proposes to deliver the audits. It will also allow any 
audited bodies that object to the proposed appointment to have a face-to-
face discussion with Commission staff. 

56 We will also need to make similar arrangements for those audited 
bodies where we are not proposing to appoint the winning firm. This will 
arise only in a limited number of cases as Tenderers are required to confirm 
they are able to audit the great majority of audited bodies in a Contract Area 
(90 per cent by number and 80 per cent by value). 

57 It is expected that most auditor appointments held by firms under the 
existing (2006 and 2007) contracts will be extended, so that all 
appointments will end at the same time. The process for consulting those 
audited bodies will be managed in the normal way as far as practicable. 
Where it is necessary to propose not extending an appointment of a firm, we 
will deal with that audited body in the same way as other bodies at which we 
are proposing a change of auditor. 

58 We expect the great majority of audited bodies will be content to accept 
whichever firm the Commission decides is appropriate. Nevertheless we 
recognise that in some instances there could be good reason why the 
winning firm in an area should not be appointed to an individual body or 
bodies.  

143



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

10

 
 

59 Audited bodies will have the opportunity to make representations to the 
Commission on the proposed auditor appointments. 

60 If the body does not object to the proposed appointment, the 
Commission’s Managing Director (MD), Audit Policy will recommend the 
appointment to the Commission Board at its meeting on 26 July. 

61 If a body’s objection to a proposed appointment is upheld at any 
subsequent stage, Stage 1 will be repeated.  

Stage 2

62 Where an audited body objects to the proposed appointment, it should 
set out in writing good reasons why the proposed appointment should not 
be made. 

63 We have identified the following grounds that may amount to good 
reasons. 
  There is an independence issue, of which the Commission and/or the 

firm was previously unaware, which would preclude the Commission 
appointing the firm – or the firm accepting appointment – as the auditor 
to a particular body. 

  Other than for SHAs and PCTs (which will no longer exist after 31 
March 2013), the audited body is involved in formal and on-going joint 
working arrangements (for example, joint management team or shared 
back office functions or joint provision of major services with 
neighbouring bodies), which means it would be more appropriate for 
those bodies to have the same auditor. 

  There is another specific good reason – for example, a body can 
demonstrate a history of inadequate services from a particular firm. 

64 The MD, Audit Policy will consider carefully all representations made 
and respond to audited bodies by 8 June 2012. The MD, Audit Policy will 
either reject the representations and confirm the original proposed auditor 
appointment, or ask the Director of APR to consult on an alternative 
proposal. Where an alternative proposal is made, Stage 2 may be repeated.  

65 If the body does not continue to object to the proposed appointment, the 
MD, Audit Policy will recommend the appointment to the Commission Board 
at its meeting on 26 July. 

Stage 3

66 If the audited body still objects to the proposed auditor appointment, 
after completion of Stages 1 and 2, it will have a further opportunity to 
submit its case in writing to a subcommittee of the Commission Board (the 
Board’s Appointments Panel). The terms and reference and membership of 
the Panel are attached as Appendix 1 

67 The Appointments Panel will consider the representations made and the 
MD, Audit Policy’s grounds for rejecting the body’s initial representations. It 
will then either endorse the proposed auditor appointment or ask the 

144



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

11

 
 

Director, APR to consult on an alternative proposal. Where an alternative 
proposal is made, Stage 3 may be repeated.  

68 Where the Panel endorses the proposed appointment it will make a 
formal recommendation to the Board at its meeting on 26 July. 

Stage 4 

69 The Board will consider the recommendations of the MD, Audit Policy 
and the Appointments Panel and either accept the recommendations and 
formally appoint the proposed auditor, or ask the Director of APR to consult 
on an alternative proposal. Where an alternative proposal is made, Stage 4 
will be repeated. 

70 The Board’s decision on the appointment of auditors will be final, 
subject only to judicial review.   

Making the appointment 

71 Once the Board has appointed the auditor, the Commission will formally 
write to the audited body to confirm the appointment. 

72 Where the firm is also to be appointed to complete any outstanding 
work relating to the 2011/12 or prior years’ audits, we will specify the 
auditor’s terms of appointment for this work. 

73 The auditor appointment process set out above is summarised in a 
diagram in Appendix 2. 

 

145



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

12

 
 

Timetable 

74 The key milestones in the project plan are set out below: 

 
Communication with audited bodies on the 
procurement process and implications for 
auditor appointments 

Ongoing 

Consultation with audited bodies on interim 
auditor appointments ends  

17 February 2012 

Commission Board approves interim auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 

22 March  

Consultation with audited bodies on 
permanent auditor appointments begins 

w/c 23 April 

Regional introductory events 30 April – 18 May 
Last date for representations to MD, Audit 
Policy 

25 May 

MD, Audit Policy considers representations by 
audited bodies 

30 May – 8 June 

Further consultation with audited bodies 18 June – 6 July 
Board Appointments Panel considers further 
representations from audited bodies 

w/c 9 July 

Commission Board approves appointments 26 July 
Letters sent to audited bodies to confirm 
appointments  

By 10 August 

Appointments begin   From 1 September 

146



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

13

 
 

Appendix 1: The Appointments Panel 

Terms of reference

 
The Board Appointments Panel will: 

 
a) determine the strategic policy framework, produced by the Project 

Board, for the appointment of auditors from 2012/13;  
 
b) consider and determine significant issues arising during the project, 

reported by the Project Board; 
 
c) review the project risk register; 
 
d) consider final representations from principal audited bodies where 

they object to the auditor proposed by the Commission, following 
consideration of initial representations by the Managing Director, 
Audit Policy; and,  

 
e) having considered all representations in those cases, recommend 

auditor appointments for approval by the Commission Board. 
 
The Panel will meet as necessary, timed around key milestones and 
decision points in the draft appointments timetable. The Panel may meet 
‘virtually’ with papers being circulated, and decisions made, by email.  
 
At any meeting of the Panel the quorum shall be three voting members 
present. Members may attend meetings of the Board by telephone or 
videoconferencing facility. Members attending a meeting by these means 
shall be deemed to be present in person at that meeting. The responsible 
officer shall record the circumstances of any member attending a meeting 
by telephone or videoconferencing facility. 

Membership

The membership of the Panel will be: 
 
Commission Board members 
 

  Bharat Shah (Chair); 
  Jennifer Dixon; 
  Councillor Steve Houghton; 
  Councillor Robert Light; and 
  Councillor Sir David Williams. 

 
Independent non-voting members 

  Mike More, Chief Executive, Westminster City Council; and 

147



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

14

 
 

  Sean Nolan, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate 
Resources, East Sussex County Council. 

Secretariat support to the Panel will be provided by the Commission Board 
Secretariat. 
 

Reporting arrangements 

The Panel will report to the Commission’s Board.  

148



 

Audit Commission Appointments Strategy for making auditor appointments for 
2012/13 and future years  

15

 
 

Appendix 2: The auditor appointment process 

149



150

This page is intentionally left blank



The process for audited bodies to object to a 
proposed auditor appointment 
 
 
Stage 1 - May 2012  
 
  Director, Audit Policy and Regulation (APR) formally consults audited bodies on 

proposed auditor appointments. 
  To support the consultation there will be an introductory event in each contract area, 

involving the Commission and the proposed firm. 
  Audited bodies can make written representations, if they object to the proposed 

appointment. 
  If the body does not object to the proposed appointment, the Commission’s Managing 

Director (MD), Audit Policy will recommend the appointment to the Commission Board 
(Stage 4). 

 
 
 
 
 
Stage 2 - June 2012 
 
  MD, Audit Policy considers audited bodies’ written representations 
  He may either (1) accept them and ask the Director, APR to consult on an alternative 

proposal or (2) reject them and confirm the original proposed auditor appointment. 
  Where an alternative proposal is made, Stage 2 may be repeated. 
  If representations are rejected audited bodies may then make further representations. 
  If the body does not continue to object to the proposed appointment, the MD, Audit 

Policy will recommend the appointment to the Commission Board (Stage 4). 
 
 
 
 
 
Stage 3 - July 2012 
 
  The Board’s Appointments panel will consider any further representations and will either 

ask the Director, APR to consult on an alternative proposal or recommend the 
appointment to the Commission Board. 

  Where an alternative proposal is made, Stage 3 may be repeated. 
 
 
 
 
 
Stage 4 - July 2012 
 
  The Commission Board will consider the recommendations for the MD, Audit Policy and 

the Appointments Panel and will either ask the Director, APR to consult on an alternative 
proposal or approve the auditor appointments. 

  The Board’s decision in all cases will be final, subject only to judicial review. 
 
 

January 2012 

151



152

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15 
Pages 153 to 232 

153

Document is Restricted



232

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 INFORMATION REPORT - Audit Opinion Plan 2011/12
	3.1 Audit Plan for 2011-12
	Pension Fund Planning Report
	Certification Final Report

	9 INFORMATION REPORT - Risk Management Update
	Risk Management - Appendix 1 March Corporate Risk Register
	Risk Management - Appendix 2 High Level Summary
	Risk Management - Appendix 3 Risk Appetite Statement 2012-13

	10 INFORMATION REPORT - Insurance Risks
	11 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2012/13
	IA Annual Plan 2012-13

	12 INFORMATION REPORT - Future Appointment of External Auditors
	Appt - App1 - auditor appointments strategy
	Appt - App2 - audited bodies objection process

	15 INFORMATION REPORT - Insurance Risks

